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CHARACTERISTICS OF THE GROWTH ENTERPRISE MARKET (the
“GEM") OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED (THE
“STOCK EXCHANGE")

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to accommodate
companies to which a higher investment risk may be attached
than other companies listed on the Stock Exchange. Prospective
investors should be aware of the potential risks of investing in
such companies and should make the decision to invest only after
due and careful consideration. The greater risk profile and other
characteristics of the GEM mean that it is a market more suited to
professional and other sophisticated investors.

Given the emerging nature of companies listed on the GEM, there is
a risk that securities traded on the GEM may be more susceptible
to high market volatility than securities traded on the main board of
the Stock Exchange and no assurance is given that there will be a
liquid market in the securities traded on the GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Stock Exchange
take no responsibility for the contents of this report, make no
representation as to its accuracy or completeness and expressly
disclaim any liability whatsoever for any loss howsoever arising from or
in reliance upon the whole or any part of the contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors of Sky Forever Supply Chain
Management Group Limited for the financial year ended 31 March
2015 (the “Directors” and the “Company”, respectively) collectively
and individually accept full responsibility, includes particulars given in
compliance with the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
GEM of the Stock Exchange (the "GEM Listing Rules”) for the purpose
of giving information with regard to the Company. The Directors,
having made all reasonable enquiries, confirm that to the best of
their knowledge and belief, the information contained in this report is
accurate and complete in all material respects and not misleading or
deceptive, and there are no other matters the omission of which would
make any statement herein or this report misleading.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
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Mr. Lung Chee Ming, George (Chairman)
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Mr. Huang Yunlong (appointed on 18 July 2014 and
resigned on 17 June 2015)
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and resigned on 19 June 2015)
Mr. Kwok Chi Sun, Vincent (resigned on 22 July 2014)
Mr. Yeung Kam Yan (resigned on 22 July 2014)
Mr. Cheung Chi Hwa, Justin (resigned on 22 July 2014)
Mr. Chan Francis Ping Kuen (resigned on 22 July 2014)
Mr. Kwok Kam Tim
(appointed on 13 June 2014 and resigned on 22 July 2014)
Mr. Kinley Lincoln James Lloyd
(appointed on 13 June 2014 and resigned on 22 July 2014)
Mr. Yu Chon Man
(appointed on 19 June 2014 and resigned on 22 July 2014)
Mr. Tam Chak Chi (resigned on 2 May 2014)
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On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”), | hereby present
the Annual Report of Sky Forever Supply Chain Management Group
Limited (formerly known as Rising Power Group Holdings Limited) (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) for the year
ended 31 March 2015 to our shareholders.

RESULTS

The Group recorded a dramatic increase in turnover of approximately
126 times to approximately HK$1,640.1 million for the current year as
compared to approximately HK$13.0 million in the previous year. The
increase in turnover was due to the commencement of the supply chain
management services in the second quarter.

Save for such new sources of income, the Group experienced a
decrease of approximately 30% in the service fee income from lightning
electromagnetic pulse protection business and energy management
business for the current year as compared for the year ended 31 March
2014,

The Group recorded an increase in gross profit from approximately
HK$1.6 million in the previous year to approximately HK$9.2 million
in the current year. However the gross profit margin decreased from
12% in the previous year to 0.6% in the Year. The decrease in gross
profit margin was mainly due to the low profit margin of supply chain
management business.

Net loss attributable to equity holders of the Company for the current
year amounted to approximately HK$59.2 million (2014: HK$76.3
million). The major component of the Group’s expenses being legal
and professional fee, announcement fee, salaries and payroll, rent and
rates, marketing and promotion expenses and exchange loss.

OPERATIONAL REVIEW

Setting up of information technology platform

To cope with the growing business of the supply chain management,
Shenzhen Qianhai Sky Forever Industry Chain Management Company
Limited (a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company) is collaborating
with SAP (Beijing) Software System Company Limited for designing
and building up an effective big data platform. The platform will
support point-to-point operation process, real time planning, execution,
reporting and analysis function. It is expected that the new system
under our development embodies the main idea of supply chain
management - centralized purchase, production, sales, settlement and
financial management.

The system of big data platform is now in progress and it is expected
to be tested, implemented and applied in the trades in the summer of
2015.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
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Supply chain management services

The supply chain management service is the main focus of the Group
and it is developing. The Group is providing intermediate service
between suppliers and customers and it takes advantage of the
business networks and resources in order to assist SMEs in various
industries to minimize the overall operation cost. Owing to the solid
financial background of the Group and the great demand for supply
chain service in mainland China, the Group has established many
strategic partnerships with other supply chain companies, so as to
undertake the operation of purchase and sales based on the services
on import and export trade, logistic, customs clearance and storage.

Naming right in relation to Shenzhen Football Club

With our expanding business in mainland China, the Group keeps on
promoting the brand so as to increase the exposure of the Group.
Mindsim Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company and
Shenzhen Football Club (“SZFC”) entered into a Naming Right
Agreement. SZFC is a popular and remarkable football team in mainland
China and it takes part in various football matches regularly. By
leveraging the popularity of SZFC in the promotion of the image of the
Group, the Group believes that it can substantially help publicize the
brand and create a positive image.

PROSPECT

With the lead of the management team, the Company is actively
exploring business opportunities in other sectors to diversify risks
and broaden the sources of income of the Company. The Company
has adequate resources to continue with its business operations, and
will continue to focus on its corporate objective to develop current
businesses in order to strengthen its competitiveness, integrate its capital
resources and contribute a maximum wealth to our equity holders.

Noting that the supply chain management business is still at the starting
stage, the Company will pay close attention to its performance and
future development. At the same time, the management will continuously
monitor and review the overall operation and financial performance of
the Group’s businesses so as to cope with the ever-changing business
environment. The management will keep proactively seeking for other
investment and business opportunities with promising prospect to
broaden the source of income of the Group and enhance value to the
shareholders of the Company.

Finally, on behalf of the Board, | would like to take this opportunity
to express my gratitude to all members of the Board and staff for
their dedication and contribution to the Group and to those who have
supported us. We will continue to make our best efforts in developing
our businesses to produce good economic results and better return for
our shareholders.

Yu Weiye
Chairman

Hong Kong, 29 June 2015
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

OPERATION REVIEW

Setting up of information technology platform

To cope with the growing business of the supply chain management,
Shenzhen Qianhai Sky Forever Industry Chain Management Company
Limited (a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company) is collaborating
with SAP (Beijing) Software System Company Limited for designing and
building up an effective big data platform. The platform will support
point to point operation process, real time planning, execution, reporting
and analysis function. It is expected that the new system under our
development embodies the main idea of supply chain management
- centralized purchase, production, sales, settlement and financial
management.

The system of big data platform is now in progress and it is expected
to be tested, implemented and applied in the trades in the summer of
2015.

Supply chain management services

The supply chain management service is the main focus of the Group
and it is developing. The Group is providing intermediate service
between suppliers and customers and it takes advantage of the
business networks and resources in order to assist SMEs in various
industries to minimize the overall operation cost. Owing to the solid
financial background of the Group and the great demand for supply
chain service in mainland China, the Group has established many
strategic partnerships with other supply chain companies, so as to
undertake the operation of purchase and sales based on the services
on import and export trade, logistic, customs clearance and storage.

Naming right in relation to Shenzhen Football Club

With our expanding business in mainland China, the Group keeps on
promoting the brand so as to increase the exposure of the Group.
Mindsim Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company and
Shenzhen Football Club (“SZFC") entered into a Naming Right
Agreement. SZFC is a popular and remarkable football team in mainland
China and it takes part in various football matches regularly. By
leveraging the popularity of SZFC in the promotion of the image of the
Group, the Group believes that it can substantially help publicize the
brand and create a positive image.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B E E & W R 2 W

Non-core business

Non-core businesses such as energy saving business under Beaming
Investments Limited (“Beaming”) were discontinued during the year
ended 31 March 2015 (the “Year”) as they were not in line with the
Company's new core business direction of supply chain management.

On 18 July 2014, Upper Power Limited, a direct wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, entered into a sale and purchase
agreement with an independent third party pursuant to which Upper
Power Limited sold the entire equity interest of Beaming and its
subsidiaries at a consideration of HK$3.0 million.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Results

The Group recorded a dramatic increase in turnover of approximately
126 times to approximately HK$1,640.1 million for the Year as compared
to approximately HK$13.0 million in the previous year. The increase
in turnover was due to the commencement of the supply chain
management services in the second quarter. The Group has continued
to develop business relationship with the business partners and
potential partners in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) in order
to increase and explore the new sources of income.

Save for such new sources of income, the Group experienced a
decrease of approximately 30% in the service fee income from lightning
electromagnetic pulse protection business and energy management
business for the Year as compared for the year ended 31 March 2014.

The Group recorded an increase in gross profit from approximately
HK$1.6 million in the previous year to approximately HK$9.2 million in
the Year. However the gross profit margin decreased from 12% in the
previous year to 0.6% in the Year. The decrease in gross profit margin
was mainly due to the low profit margin of supply chain management
business. The Group will continue to control the material costs and
explore new business so as to improve the gross profit of the Group.

Net loss attributable to equity holders of the Company for the Year
amounted to approximately HK$59.2 million (2014: HK$76.3 million).
The major component of the Group’s expenses being legal and
professional fee, announcement fee, salaries and payroll, rent and
rates, marketing and promotion expenses and exchange loss.

RO ER

Beaming Investments Limited ([Beaming )
MRS O EBRERBEE_S—RF
ZSRA=T-BEFEE(REE]) RIELE
RRABBESEARNRNTIZLOER R -
HAEEE R Y AR o

R-ZZ—NELA+N\B  KRAEEZEH
JB A AlUpper Power Limited £/ % = 77 5]
MR EE R - 15 it Upper Power Limited
H&EBeaming R EMIB R A 2 2 EPARHE - KB
A 75 %3,000,0007T °

B % [ 8
REBERFERE XA %E%1,640,100,000
B K F 4978 #13,000,0007T A 18 47126
 BEBEMIBREE —FEMABHER
EERY AEBEERREAFE ARENE
([HhE]) EBRHREEREMEBEERIU
#IMEFESFHOURARR o

of ol

>

B DT A RN - NEE 2 R B
B EXEREREEERRATE 2R
EWABRBZE-_T—NF=A=+—HIL®F
R A #I30% o

REBMEFN B EF 1,600,000 E
R F [E 474 #9,200,0007T ° A 0 EFIEmH
EFEZ12%RERFE20.6% ° EFETRE
ZHMNMEEETEERNFERREMK - K
SEBEEEHEMBKATRSHER - U
ERASENER -

AEENARTIREREAREERTE
5 #)7% %59,200,0007T (= F — 4 F : B
76,300,0000r) - A&BE X EHMXIBE BE
EREXER NEB FekIE HER
Zi - ZHKEERIUREREE -

SKY FOREVER SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT GROUP LIMITED (FE#E#EEEERAR)



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Liquidity, financial resources and capital structure

As at 31 March 2015, the Group had total assets of approximately
HK$819.9 million (2014: HK$181.9 million), including net cash and bank
balances of approximately HK$281.2 million (2014: HK$86.7 million).

For the Year, the Group financed its operations mainly with its own
working capital and there were no general banking facilities (2074: Nil).
There was no charge on the Group's assets as at 31 March 2015 (2014:
Nil).

During the Year, the Company successfully completed a rights issue
on 12 February 2015 (the “Rights Issue”), details of which are set out in
the Company’s circular dated 22 December 2014 and the Company’s
announcements dated 20 November 2014, 12 January 2015, 22 January
2015 and 12 February 2015, respectively. As a result, 883,634,696
rights shares were issued and the issued share capital of the Company
was increased to 1,325,452,044 shares. The net proceeds of the Rights
Issue were approximately HK$397,6 million.

As at 31 March 2015, the gearing ratio (defined as the ratio between
total bank borrowings and total assets) was zero (2014: Zero). The
Group had no bank borrowings as at 31 March 2015 (2014: Nil).

There was no issuance and redemption of convertible securities during
the Year. All the operations of the Group were financed by the fund
generated internally and the Rights Issue held during the Year.

Exposure to fluctuations in exchange rates and related hedges
Most of the transactions of the Group are denominated in Hong Kong
Dollar (“HKD”), United States Dollar (“USD") and Renminbi (“RMB”).
As such, the Group is aware of the potential foreign currency risk that
may arise from the fluctuation of exchange rates between HKD, USD
and RMB. The Group adopts a conservative treasury policy with most of
the bank deposits being kept in HKD, or in the local currencies of the
operating subsidiaries to minimise exposure to foreign exchange risks.
As at 31 March 2015, the Group had no foreign exchange contracts,
interests or currency swaps or other financial derivatives for hedging
purposes.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B E E & W R 2 W

Charge on Group assets
As at 31 March 2015, the Group did not have any charge on its assets
(2014: Nil).

Segment information

The revenue of the Group comprises the supply chain management
business, provision of energy management business and the provision
of integrated solutions for lightning electromagnetic pulse protection
business.

As to the geographical segments, sales of the Group generated in the
Hong Kong and the PRC market was approximately HK$783.5 million
and HK$856.5 million respectively during the Year (2014: HK$13.0
million in the PRC).

Please also refer to note 4 to the consolidated financial statements in
this annual report for details of segment information.

New products and services

During the Year, the Group continued to develop new products and
services to increase its products range and strengthen its competitive
position.

Outlook

Noting that the supply chain management business is still at the starting
stage, the Company will pay close attention to its performance and
future development. At the same time, the management will continuously
monitor and review the overall operation and financial performance of
the Group’s businesses so as to cope with the ever-changing business
environment. The management will keep proactively seeking for other
investment and business opportunities with promising prospect to
broaden the source of income of the Group and enhance value to the
shareholders of the Company.

Significant investments
The Group did not have any significant investment during the Year.

Material acquisitions or disposals of subsidiaries and affiliated
companies

At 1 August 2014, the Group disposed of its 100% equity interest in

Beaming.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Other than the above, the Group did not have any material acquisitions
or disposals of subsidiaries during the Year.

Share Option Scheme

The Company adopted a share option scheme on 18 October 2011
(the “Share Option Scheme”) for the purpose of providing incentives or
rewards to the eligible participants for their contribution to the Group
and/or enabling the Group to recruit additional employees and retain
existing employees and to provide them with a direct economic interest
in attaining the long term business objectives of the Group.

Eligible participants of the Share Option Scheme include the
employees, consultants, suppliers or customers of the Company and its
subsidiaries, including any independent non-executive directors of the
Company.

No share option has been granted under the Share Option Scheme
since its adoption.

Future plans for material investments and expected source of
funding

Other than disclosed elsewhere in the annual report, the Group did not
have any plan for material investment or acquisition of material capital
assets as at 31 March 2015. However, the Group is constantly looking
for opportunities for investments or capital assets to enhance the
shareholders’ value.

Contingent liabilities
The Group had no contingent liabilities as at 31 March 2015.

Employees and remuneration policies

As at 31 March 2015, the Group had 86 (20714: 77) employees
including directors. Total staff costs (excluding directors’ emoluments)
amounted to approximately HK$12.3 million for the Year (2014: HK$7.5
million). Remuneration is determined by reference to market terms
and the performance, qualifications and experience of the individual
employee. Year-end bonus based on individual performance will be
paid to employees as recognition of and reward for their contributions.
Other benefits include contributions to statutory mandatory provident
fund scheme to its employees in Hong Kong and basic insurance
for the elderly, basic medical insurance, work injury insurance and
unemployment insurance to its employees in the PRC.

EEE N W R 2 M

B EAESN  REERAFE L ELMERR
BRHENBATMNER -

fBIRRERT &

ARERN_E——F+ATN\BRB—HER
B E ([RBERERE]  SEZBAEDS
EREEUASEZEME HABAKERF
NHRBEEZEENREREREE  URERR
SEREXGESHAERRERLENS

BRESENSEREEEEALA LEN
BLoRZRE - EH HEEEF  BEA
NREIBLIFRTES

AR ST B DATR - 34 8 b 1 T
B -

FERERETHNEARERAHNES TR

BRARFREMBAAREEIN  R-FT—0F
ZA=t—R AEEYEFEETEANEX
RESWBERELREE - A - AKEED
HHEREREXEAEENRARRZE
g e

HAREE

RZZE-RF=A=+—H AEELTEIA
BE-

BERFMBER

R-Z—AF=RA=+—H A£EERT86
H(ZFE—mFE:775)EE (RRESE) - &
FEZREIRA(TEREESHE) NAB
#12,300,0007T (= F—HF : 7&#7,500,000
o) FMI2BRMBEHRRRENEIHNE
B-BRERERMET - AREREEBEIM
EMER - AEEBERIE TRIRAEREE
BELELTERES - £M0EFBERES
BEEENEITREIEAELFENETRE
TREEBEEZFEARR EABERR
THRBRRKERR -

ANNUAL REPORT 2014-2015 5 3&

3



14

DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
EE ke REHEE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Yu Weiye, aged 55, was appointed as an executing director and
chairman of the board of directs of the Company on 19 June 2015.
He was also appointed as the compliance officer of the Company on
22 June 2015. Mr. Yu is a member of the Shenzhen Committee of the
People’s Political Consultative Conference of China (RIITTHIHZEE),
a vice president of Shenzhen General Chamber of Commerce (FIIT
#rEsl€R) and a honorary vice president of the Shenzhen General
Chamber of Commerce (RIITAENGEEREGER). He is currently
a chairman and legal representative of Shenzhen Yi Li Group Co.,
Ltd. (FYTHHEEEER2AE) and Shenzhen Huayu Investment and
Development Co., Ltd. (RIITTEFHREERERAF), he is also a
chairman of Guangzhou Yita Investment Co., Ltd. (BN ZHIZREAR A
&) and a vice-chairman of Longbai Chain Industry Investment Fund (8
MEHEEEREES).

Mr. Wu Zhinan, aged 39, was appointed as an executive director and
the chief executive officer of the Company on 13 May 2013. Mr. Wu was
re-designated from the chief executive officer to a Joint Chief Executive
Officer on 13 June 2014. Mr. Wu holds a bachelor’'s degree of Industrial
Automatic from the Information Science and Engineering Faculty of
Jilin University (formerly known as Jilin University of Technology of
China). Mr. Wu is the holder of a Certificate for the Qualifications of
Lightning Prevention Design and Construction issued by the Beijing
Meteorology Bureau. With 11 years of experience in the sales of
electromagnetic security products, Mr. Wu was the Deputy General
Manager of Beijing Allday Science and Technology Co., Ltd. (3t =B
ZRHZAR A F)), responsible for the sales of electromagnetic security
products to telecommunications companies, power companies and
the PRC government. Mr. Wu was also the Chief Marketing Officer of
Beijing Comtest Co., Ltd. (JERBAIRHLIAREME AT, responsible
for the sales of communication testing gauges to telecommunication
operators across the country. Mr. Wu is currently the directors of several
subsidiaries of the Company, namely Boomtech Limited, Fantastic
Limited, Beijing Reese Compag Technology Co., Limited (3t &3 &1 FE A
R ER AR, Beijing Outwitting Huanyu Technology Company Limited
(Ut REBRFREAR2AT) and PalmPay Technology Co. Limited (it
REBGBERHEAR AR, and is responsible for the coordination of the
business planning and operation.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Li Zhike, aged 35, was appointed as an executive Director on
12 December 2014. He has approximately 12 years’ experience of
business management. Mr. Li holds a bachelor's degree in computer
science and technology from South China University of Technology. Mr.
Li has worked as the head of the equipment maintenance department
of Shenzhen Depeng Sales and Services Centre (ZRIIABEE $EIRFSF L))
of China Telecom Corporation Limited from June 2002 to August 2008
and as the director and the general manager of Zhuhai Xinghe Cultural
Communication Company Limited ((/8TEAXLEREERAR) from
September 2008 to April 2013. Mr. Li is currently the chief executive
officer for Shenzhen Sky Forever Supply Chain Management Company
Limited (RIIFEHEEBEEER L F]), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company.

Mr. Zhang Xiaozheng, aged 64, was appointed as an executive
director on 17 June 2015. He is an experienced investment analyst
and a project operation specialist. He obtained a bachelor’'s degree
of Economics with a major in Economic Management from Guangxi
University. Mr. Zhang is an executive director of Aurum Pacific (China)
Group Limited (stock code: 8148), a company listed on the Stock
Exchange. He is also currently a vice president and an executive
director of Shenzhen Zhiweilong Industrial Development Company
Limited. He is the director of certain subsidiaries of Mega Medical
Technology Limited (formerly known as Wing Tai Investment Holdings
Limited) (stock code: 876), a company listed on the Stock Exchange.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
EE ke REHEE

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Ms. Chen Nan, aged 32, was appointed as an executive director and
the vice chairman of the Company on 2 May 2014, re-designated as
a Joint Chief Executive Officer of the Company on 13 June 2014 and
appointed as the compliance officer of the Company on 22 July 2014
and resigned on 22 June 2015. Ms. Chen resigned as a Joint Chief
Executive Officer and re-designated as a non-executive director on 19
June 2015. Ms. Chen completed a training program of a certified supply
chain manager (G EHEE IR (F4)) from the China Enterprise
Confederation (F B> 254 €) and a training program of supply chain
manager (EE R EH#EEEAR) from the Council of Supply Chain
Manager Professionals (Bl fi{/E#EEE ). Ms Chen obtained a
senior logistics professional manager management certificate (¥
BEGBERIZ (S4)) from the China Federation of Logistics and
Purchasing (Bl %) i KB FE & €). Ms. Chen holds a double degrees
of Bachelor of Engineering and Bachelor of Law (T k£ &4 &)
majoring in bioengineering (£ %1 Ti2) and legal science (%2) from the
Northwest A&F University (Fidb E#EHEE A Z) in the People’s Republic
of China (the "PRC") and also a Master of Engineering majoring in
Logistics Engineering (¥ T2 %81 T#2) from the Shanghai Jiao Tong
University (/8B AE) in the PRC. Ms. Chen has over eight years
experience in the logistics industry and is currently the chief executive
officer of a private company established in the PRC, which is principally
engaged in supply chain management.

Ms. Chen is the wife of Mr. Gong Dongsheng, an ex-executive director
and the ex-chairman of the Company.

Mr. Lam Kwok Cheong, aged 61, was appointed as a non-executive
Director and a member of the nomination committee on 17 June 2015
and 19 June 2015 respectively. He is currently a non-executive Director
of Mega Medical Technology Limited (formerly known as Wing Tat
Investment Holdings Limited) (stock code: 876), a company listed on
the Stock Exchange. He is a Justice of Peace and a solicitor of the
High Court of the HKSAR. He holds a Bachelor of Laws degree from
the University of Hong Kong. Mr. Lam is currently a China-appointed
Attesting Officer, Civil Celebrant of Marriages and a member of
Buildings Ordinance Appeal Tribunal Panel, a member of Panel of
Adjudicators, Obscene Articles Tribunal and an Ex-Officio Member of
Heung Yee Kuk New Territories. Mr. Lam is also an independent non-
executive director of Sparkle Roll Group Limited (stock code: 970) and
Southwest Securities International Securities Limited (formerly known
as Tanrich Financial Holdings Limited) (stock code: 812), both of which
are companies listed on the Stock Exchange. He was formerly an
independent non-executive director of 21 Holdings Limited (stock code:
1003) and GCL New Energy Holdings Limited (formerly known as Same
Time Holdings Limited) (stock code: 451), companies listed on the
Stock Exchange, until his resignation in October 2011 and May 2014,
respectively.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Chui Man Lung, Everett, aged 51, was appointed as an
independent non-executive director, the chairman of the audit
committee and a member of the remuneration committee of the
Company with effect from 20 May 2015. Mr. Chui obtained a bachelor’s
degree of Social Sciences in Business Economics and Accounting from
the University of Southampton in July 1986. He has over 20 years of
professional experience in the finance and accounting fields and has
been a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants since January 1991. He was admitted as an associate
of the Chartered Association of Certified Accountants in England in
January 1991 and has become a fellow member since February 1996.
Mr. Chui has also been an associate of the Institute of Chartered
Accountants in England and Wales since January 2008.

Mr. Chui had worked at KPMG Peat Marwick responsible for audit
work from 1988 before he joined Yau Lee Holding Limited (stock
code: 0406), a company listed on the Main Board of The Stock of
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”), as the
financial controller in February 1995. Mr. Chui was a director and a
member of the audit committee of Duoyuan Printing, Inc., a then New
York Stock Exchange listed company since November 2010. Currently,
Mr. Chui is an independent non-executive director, the chairman of
the audit committee and the nomination committee and a member of
the remuneration committee of Taung Gold International Limited (stock
code: 0621) and an independent non-executive director, the chairman
of the audit committee and a member of the remuneration committee
and the nomination committee of SinoCom Software Group Limited
(stock code: 0299). Both companies are listed on the main board of the
Stock Exchange.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
EE ke REHEE

Mr. Liu Weiliang, aged 53, was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director, the chairman of the remuneration committee and a
member of each of the audit committee and the nomination committee
of the Company with effect from 18 July 2014. Mr. Liu obtained a
bachelor of arts from the Guangdong Education College (ER# & £67)
in 1981 and a master of computer science from the Harbin Institution
of Technology (MEE T AZ) in 1997. Mr. Liu worked as the general
manager and director of Shenzhen Chuangguan Intellectual Network
Technology Company Limited (YT AEIEE 4K EMABRAF]) from
1997 to 2005 and the chairman of the board of Shenzhen Biaosheng
Technology Investment Company Limited (FIITTZERFIEER A 7).
Mr. Liu has also been the chairman of the board of Shenzhen Zhiying
Technology Industry Investment Company Limited (Y| AERH
EEIREARAT) since 2006 and the vice-chairman of the board of
Shenzhen Qiaorong Investment Company Limited (&I &R B2

Befn 2 D).

Mr. Lung Chee Ming, George, aged 58, was appointed as an
independent non-executive director, chairman of each of the
nomination committee and remuneration committee and a member
of audit committee of the Company on 17 June 2015. He is currently
an independent non-executive director of Mega Medical Technology
Limited (formerly known as Wing Tat Investment Holdings Limited)
(stock code: 876), a company listed on the Stock Exchange. He is a
member of the National Committee of the Chinese People’s Political
Consultative Conference (REIARBUAHEEZEEZEZE®) and Justice
of the Peace of Hong Kong Special Administrative Region. Mr. Lung
joined Manulife (International) Limited in 1990, and has achieved
outstanding results. He currently serves as the Senior Regional Director
and leads a team of over 700 insurance agents and financial planners.
In 1995, he was selected as one of the awardees of the Ten Outstanding
Young Persons (TOYP) Selection, and was elected as the President of
The Outstanding Young Persons’ Association from 2003 to 2004.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Chow Wing Sing, Bobby, aged 32, was appointed as a Joint Chief
Executive Officer of the Company with effect from 19 June 2015. Mr.
Chow has over nine years of experience in the investment banking
industry and capital markets and has extensive experience in execution
of corporate finance transactions including mergers and acquisitions,
corporate and capital restructuring, and equity and debt fund raising.
Mr. Chow had been licensed by the Securities and Futures Commission
to carry out Type 6 (advising on corporate finance) regulated activity
since December 2005 and had been Responsible Officer since
November 2010. Mr. Chow held senior positions in different corporate
finance firms, including Kingston Corporate Finance Limited, whose
parent company, Kingston Financial Group Limited, is listed on the main
board of the Stock Exchange and his last position was as an associate
director and a responsible officer for Type 6 (advising on corporate
finance) regulated activity. Before joining the Company, Mr. Chow
was the associate director and responsible officer of China Securities
(International) Corporate Finance Company Limited for Type 6 (advising
on corporate finance) regulated activity. Mr. Chow holds a Master
Degree in Business Administration and a Bachelor Degree in Science
from the University of Hong Kong.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Fung Nam Shan, aged 38, was appointed as a company secretary
of the Company on 20 May 2015. Mr. Fung holds a bachelor's degree
in accounting awarded by the University of Newcastle, Australia. Mr.
Fung is a Certified Public Accountant of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and a Certified Practising Accountant of
CPA Australia. Mr. Fung was employed as financial controller and the
company secretary of South China Land Limited, a company listed
on the GEM of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 8155) from February
2012 to April 2013. Currently, Mr. Fung is the company secretary of
Seamless Green China (Holdings) Limited, a company listed on the
GEM of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 8150). Mr. Fung is also an
independent non-executive director, a member of each of the audit
committee, remuneration committee and nomination committee of
Energy International Investments Holding Limited, a company listed on
the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 353).
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The directors of the Company (the “Directors”) hereby present the
annual report and the audited financial statements of Sky Forever
Supply Chain Management Group Limited (formerly known as Rising
Power Group Holdings Limited) (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively the “Group”) for the year ended 31 March 2015 (the
“Year”).

CHANGE OF NAME

Pursuant to a special resolution passed at the special general meeting
of the Company held on 11 July 2014, the name of the Company was
changed from Rising Power Group Holdings Limited & H&EBZEER A
] to Sky Forever Supply Chain Management Group Limited 18 £ f&#

SEARRAR

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. Details of
the principal activities of the subsidiaries are set out in note 17 to the
consolidated financial statements.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

An analysis of the Group’s turnover and contribution to results by
reporting segments and geographical areas of operations for the Year is
set out in note 4 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS
The Group’s results for the Year are set out in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income in this annual report on page 51.

The board of Directors (the “Board”) did not recommend the payment of
any dividend during the Year.

SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION

The following is a summary of the published result for the continuing
and discontinued operations of the Group for each of the five years
ended 31 March 2015 and of the assets, liabilities and non-controlling
interests of the Group as at 31 March 2015, 2014, 2013, 2012 and 2011.
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Consolidated results
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Year ended 31 March
BE=A=1t—-HILLEFE

(LA BB 2015 2014 2013 2012 2011
(In HK$°000) FrrBElr) “E-RF ZT-WNF ZT=F ZT——-F —T——F
Turnover BEHE 1,642,127 14,855 58,520 28,516 23,786
Loss before taxation 75 Al 5 18 (61,275) (79,662) (58,808) (71,866)  (327,722)
Income tax (expenses)/credit FEf (Ax) #He - (14) (7,865) 229 (1,412)
Loss for the year KEEEE (61,275) (79,676) (66,673) (71,637)  (329,134)
Attributable to: AT AT :

Equity holders of the Company
Non-controlling interests

ARATRIEHEA  (59,185) (76,292) (77,654) (68,192)  (328,601)

IR

(2,090) (3,384) 10,981 (3,445) (533)

(61,275)  (79,676)  (66,673)  (71,637)  (329,134)

Consolidated assets and liabilities and non-controlling interests

REBE  BERFERER

As at 31 March

R=B=+-H
(LA BB 2015 2014 2013 2012 2011
(In HK$'000) FirB#EN) “E-RHF ZT-WNF ZT—=F ZT—=F ZT—F
Total assets BEE 819,881 181,908 177,909 152,128 167,451
Total liabilities BaE (341,791) (28,720) (30,063) (29,698) (43,756)
Non-controlling interests R E R 2,251 (1,176) (4,272) (13,365) (4,309)

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the Group  KEBHYE - BENFZENRNEEHEH
during the Year are set out in note 15 to the consolidated financial ER HRiGASHEREMT15 -

statements.

480,341 152,012 143,574 109,065 119,386

ME - BERRE
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SHARE CAPITAL
Details of movements in the Company’s issued share capital are set out
in note 26 to the consolidated financial statements.

ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS OF SUBSIDIARIES
On 1 August 2014, the Group disposed of its 100% equity interest in
Beaming Investments Limited.

Other than the above, the Group did not have any material acquisitions
or disposals of subsidiaries and investments during the Year.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Bye-laws or the laws of Bermuda, which would oblige the Company to
offer new shares on a pro rata basis to the existing shareholders of the
Company (the “Shareholders”).

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF LISTED SECURITIES OF
THE COMPANY

The Company did not redeem any of its listed shares (the “Shares”), nor
did the Company or any of its subsidiaries purchase or sell any such
Shares during the Year.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group and the Company
during the Year are set out in the consolidated statement of changes
in equity on pages 55 to 56 of the annual report and in note 27 to the
consolidated financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 March 2015, the Company’s reserves available for cash
distribution and/or distribution in specie amounted to approximately
HK$16,460,000 (2014: HK$90,229,000), as computed in accordance
with the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda. In addition, the
Company’s share premium account had a balance of approximately
HK$437,446,000 as at 31 March 2015 (2014: HK$58,605,000).

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Apart from change of directors disclosed under the section of
“Corporation Information” on page 3, The Group had no material event
subsequent to 31 March 2015, the end of the reporting period and up to
the date of this report.

N
ARBEETRANEDFBEANGEH
BRI EE26 °

WERLENEAR
RZE—NENA—B AEEHEER
Beaming Investments Limited 2 100% % < 1
Eé\- o
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the Year, turnover attributable to the Group’s five largest
customers accounted for 88% (2014: 93%) of the total turnover for the
Year. Turnover attributable to the largest customer accounted for 43%
(2014: 76%) of the total turnover for the Year.

During the Year, purchases from the Group’'s five largest suppliers
accounted for 98% (2014: 78%) of the total purchases for the Year.
Purchases from the Group’s largest supplier or accounted for 42%
(2014: 41%) of the total purchases for the Year.

As far as the Directors are aware, neither the Directors or any of their
close associates nor any Shareholders which, to the best knowledge of
the directors, own more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital
had any beneficial interests in the Group’s five largest customers and
suppliers during the Year.

DIRECTORS
The Directors during the Year and up to the date of this report were:

Executive Directors:
Mr. Yu Weiye (Chairman) (appointed on 19 June 2015)
Mr. Gong Dongsheng (appointed on 13 June 2014 and

resigned on 19 June 2015)

Mr. Wu Zhinan
(Joint Chief Executive Officer)

(re-designated as Joint Chief
Executive Officer on 13 June
2014)

Mr. Zhang Xiaozheng (appointed on 17 June 2015)

Mr. Li Zhike (appointed on
12 December 2014)

Mr. Chan Francis Ping Kuen (resigned on 22 July 2014)

Mr. Chan Hin Wing, James (resigned on 22 July 2014)

Mr. Woo Yik Man (appointed on 27 May 2014 and

resigned on 12 December 2014)

E 5 g 8 &
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Non-executive Directors:
Ms. Chen Nan

Mr.

Mr.

Lam Kwok Cheong

Tsang Ho Ka, Eugene

(appointed on 2 May 2014 and
re-designated as non-exective
director on 19 June 2015,
re-designated as Joint Chief
Executive Officer on 13 June
2014 and resigned on 19 June
2015)

(appointed on 17 June 2015)

(resigned as Chairman on 13 June
2014 and resigned on 22 July
2014)

Independent non-executive Directors (the “INEDs”):

Mr.

Mr.

Mr.

Mr.

Mr.

Chui Man Lung, Everett
Lung Chee Ming, George

Ma Yiu Ho, Peter

Liu Weiliang

. Huang Yunlong

. Kwok Chi Sun, Vincent

. Yeung Kam Yan

. Cheung Chi Hwa, Justin

. Kwok Kam Tim

. Kinley Lincoln James Lloyd

. Yu Chon Man

Tam Chak Chi

(appointed on 20 May 2015)
(appointed on 17 June 2015)
(appointed on 18 July 2014

and resigned on 20 May 2015)
(appointed on 18 July 2014)
(appointed on 18 July 2014

and resigned on 17 June 2015)
(resigned on 22 July 2014)
(resigned on 22 July 2014)
(resigned on 22 July 2014)
(appointed on 13 June 2014 and

resigned on 22 July 2014)

(appointed on 13 June 2014 and
resigned on 22 July 2014)

(appointed on 19 June 2014 and
resigned on 22 July 2014)

(resigned on 2 May 2014)
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In accordance with bye-laws 84(1) and (2) of the Bye-laws of the
Company (the “Bye-laws”), Mr. Wu Zhinan and Mr. Liu Weiliang will
retire from office by rotation at the forthcoming annual general meeting
of the Company (the “AGM”). Pursuant to bye-law 83(2) of the Bye-laws,
Mr. Yu Weiye, Mr. Zhang Xiaozheng, Mr. Lam Kwok Cheong, Mr. Chui
Man Lung, Everett and Mr. Lung Chee Ming, George will retire from
office at the AGM. All the above retiring Directors, being eligible, have
offered themselves for re-election thereat.

The Company confirmed that it has received from each of its INEDs the
annual written confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule 5.09
of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the GEM (the “GEM
Listing Rules”) and considered them to be independent as at the date of
this report.

DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S BIOGRAPHIES
The biographical details of the Directors and the senior management of
the Group are set out on pages 14 and 19 of the annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the executive Directors and the INEDs has entered into a letter
of appointment with the Company for a term of one year commencing
from the date of appointment and will continue thereafter until
terminated by either party giving not less than one month’s notice in
writing to the other party.

Save as aforesaid, none of the Directors proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming AGM has a service contract with the Company, which is
not determinable by the Company within one year without payment of
compensation, other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

No Director had a significant beneficial interest, either directly or
indirectly, in any contract of significance to the business of the Group to
which the Company, its holding company or any of its subsidiaries was
a party during the Year.

E 5 g 8 &

BEARABHQEMEEA ([ABE]) F84(1)
k)G REMEERIBERAEBAERR
REERRAFARG ([REBFAE]) t&H
BRE - REQBMAIFESQ)G  REEX
ERNERE MBIBEE  BRXELTER
BTHEEERNREAFAE LR - LAAT
BERAEERAERABENRRBE RS
FEEEE -

ARAEHAKIEBLFATEZREAE
RiEH EHRA ([8IRR ETARA ) 55.0015
MAREMELEEERBILALNFERR
g MRAHRERH  ARBADARKERE
MALe

EERGHEEERER
EENAEBEREEENERABEHRN
FRE14Z198 o

EENREBEEH
ERTEERBUFRTESEEARAG
VEEE HEZERMERE—F BT
fAI—FRAR—HTELAPIR-—EANEEL
AR BRZERBEOE —BEER -

PR LIUASH - BN EERRIBEAS LEEE
ENESRAEEARAFTUAARIBERE
CEERERMN TAR-FRARIENRBEE
o

EENENER
MEBEEERAFEERIRBRUNEMRL
A HERARSEEAMBAR G RITNT
WHARERBBEREATEZANTHEAR
EAERE S -

ANNUAL REPORT 2014-2015 5 3&

23



26

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
E =228 &

RELATED AND CONNECTED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Except otherwise disclosed in note 32 to the consolidated financial
statements, the Group had no transactions incurred during the Year
which need to be disclosed as connected transactions in accordance
with the requirements of the GEM Listing Rules.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACT

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or existed during the Year.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND FIVE INDIVIDUALS WITH
HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS

Details of the emoluments of the Directors and the five individuals with
the highest emoluments for the Year are set out in notes 8 and 9 to the
consolidated financial statements, respectively.

TAX RELIEF
The Company is not aware of any taxation relief available to the
Shareholders by reason of their holding of the Shares.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 March 2015, none of the Directors nor the chief executive
of the Company had any interests or short positions in any shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporation (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities
and Futures Ordinance, Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong (the
“SFO”) which were required: (a) to be notified to the Company and The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant
to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short
positions which he is taken or deemed to have under such provisions of
the SFQO); or (b) pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the
register referred to therein; or (c) pursuant to Rules 5.46 to 5.67 of the
GEM Listing Rules relating to the securities transactions by directors to
be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR DEBENTURES
At no time during the Year were rights to acquire benefits by means
of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company or of
any other body corporate granted to any Directors or their respective
spouses or children under 18 years of age, or were any such rights
exercised by them; or was the Company, its holding company or any
of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries a party to any arrangement
to enable the Directors, their respective spouses or children under 18
years of age to acquire such rights in any other body corporate.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS
As at 31 March 2015, the interests and short positions of persons, in the

shares and underlying shares of the Company which would fall to be

disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of

Part XV of the SFO or, who was, directly or indirectly, interested in 10%

or more of the nominal value of any class of share capital carrying rights

to vote in all circumstances at general meetings of any other members

of the Group, or substantial shareholders as recorded in the register

of substantial shareholders required to be kept by the Company under

Section 336 of the SFO were as follows:

E 5 g 8 &

TERRER
RZZE-—RF=ZA=+—H ' UTATRAER
ARG ARG - BEREESFRAEK
I ZEXVER 235 EF & 16 SLAR R AR 1 B 35 B8
MEZIAR  JEERIHEREEEE@ER
TARAEEEMEMKERRANBRRERS
FEEREERN TR R ALERIEE 0%
FEES - ARBEESF RS GOIE336KE
HARAGEMNTIZRRERMASEHETE
BREWT :

Approximate

percentage
Number of of issued
Name of Shareholders Nature of interests the Shares held share capital
HEBRITRAE
RRERE A Bty BFERGEAR EEER
Yan Chuyi (“Mr. Yan”) (Note 1) Beneficial owner 187,576,000(L) 14.15%
BRI ([EELE]) (M) EnlEBA
Interest of spouse 6,416,000(L) 0.48%
[Er g
Zhou Zhaoshan (“Ms. Zhou”) (Note 1) Beneficial owner 6,416,000(L) 0.48%
[ERRM(TEZ L)) (Ha21) EnlEBA
Interest of spouse 187,576,000(L) 14.15%

(L) denotes long position

(L) #EHE

Note:

AoiBEs

1. Ms. Zhou beneficially owned 6,416,000 Shares. Mr. Yan by virtue of being
the husband of Ms. Zhou, is deemed to be interested in 6,416,000 Shares
held by Ms. Zhou. Mr. Yan beneficially owned 187,576,000 Shares.

Ms. Zhou, being the wife of Mr. Yan, is deemed to be interested in

187,576,000 Shares held by Mr. Yan.

b

1. BAXRLTEZEHE64160008 WD - BEE L
BRAZTZIXR BRERAZTIFEELZ
6,416,000k EF BB EZ  BEAEERHE
5187,576,000/% i 17 °

At REXEZET WRERBAEREZ
187,576,000/ 1D & PHEH = o
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2015, the Directors are not
aware of any other person who had an interest or short position in the
Shares or underlying Shares which would fall to be disclosed to the
Company under the provisions of Division 2 and 3 of Part XV of the
SFO or, who was directly or indirectly, interested in 5% or more of the
nominal value of any class of share capital carrying rights to vote in all
circumstances at general meetings of any other members of the Group,
or any other substantial shareholders whose interests or short positions
were recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under
Section 336 of the SFO.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
to the best knowledge of the Directors as at the date of this report,
there is a sufficient public float of the issued Shares (i.e. at least 25%
the issued Shares being held by the public) as required under the GEM
Listing Rules throughout the Year and thereafter up to the date of this
report.

DONATIONS
Charitable and other donations made by the Group during the Year
amounted to HK$30,000 (2014: nil).

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN COMPETING BUSINESS

During the Year, none of the Directors or the management shareholders
or substantial shareholders or their respective close associates (as
defined in the GEM Listing Rules) of the Company had an interest in a
business which competed with or might compete with the business of
the Group.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
A report on the principal corporate governance practices adopted by
the Company is set out on page 30 to page 48 of this annual report.

BEXHEEN N_T-—RHE=F=1+—
B EFVAABEMER A TR AR
B HEREBEESRPEEAIEXVEE
2R3 EE G XA R AN A ) K B MO AR S sk
B REEIHBEREEEEMER TAIRAE
EEMEMRKEARNBRERS FZ R ERE
6 o] IR RSB RI T E5% A ERURERS » 8
BEELER ARSI EI6EARAAFEN
EMArREAEaEEZRENERIAR

RANRERE
READBAGHRRER  IREENAR
SRERRM  RAFEREREEAHRER
BRI BETRDAGRIRR ETRARE
HEALZFRE (ED25%ME BTN
AARKAR)

B

REBRAEERENESZNEMBRAES
#30,0007T (= FE—O4F « f7) o

EESNSEER < ER
RAEE  ARRESHEEBRRLATER
RIWESACETHEAN (ERRAXRE
mARADMENES A ERAREXBAERS
ZEGHEAE M -

BERARAERZTECEERER 2R
LE PN A FEREIE F48E o
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company set up an audit committee (the “Audit Committee”) on
18 October 2001, with written terms of reference in compliance with
the GEM Listing Rules, for the purpose of reviewing and providing
supervision over the financial reporting process and internal control of
the Group. As from 25 June 2015, the Audit Committee comprised the
three INEDs, namely Mr. Chui Man Lung, Everett, Mr. Lung Chee Ming,
George and Mr. Liu Weiliang. During the Year, the Audit Committee held
four meetings to review and supervise the financial reporting process,
and to provide advice and recommendations to the Board.

The financial statements of the Group for the Year have been reviewed
by the Audit Committee, which is of the opinion that such statements
comply with the applicable accounting standards, as well as the Stock
Exchange’s and legal requirements, and that adequate disclosures
have been made.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements for the Year have been audited
by Mazars CPA Limited, Certified Public Accountants, who will retire
and, being eligible, offer itself for re-appointment at the forthcoming
AGM. Having been approved by the Board upon the Audit Committee’s
recommendation, a resolution to re-appoint Mazars CPA Limited as
the auditor and to authorise the Directors to fix its remuneration will be
proposed at the forthcoming AGM.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD
Yu Weiye
Chairman

Hong Kong
29 June 2015

E 5 g 8 &
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES 12
The Company has adopted the code provisions set out in the Corporate 2R

BRaER
AERMEBMAEX AR ([H

Governance Code (the “CG Code”) and Corporate Governance X Fr])ElEME A LHRB([EIER ETR

Report contained in Appendix 15 to the Rules Governing the Listing 8 ])

sxiomE b X E R TR ([REERT

of Securities on the Growth Enterprise Market of The Stock Exchange  8I|]) REEE®E 2 SFRHEX » B T prit

of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange” and the “GEM Listing  Z&4h

CARREEAEEE AT ZRA - A

Rules”, respectively). The Company has applied the principles in the BEREZ-_E—FRE=A=+—HIEE([K
CG Code and complied with the code provisions set out in the CG Code  F & |) B ¥ E A AIHE 2 SFAE ©

for the year ended 31 March 2015 (the “Year”), save and except for the
following:

1. code provision A.1.3 of the CG Code stipulates that at least 14 1.
days’ notice should be given to all directors for a regular board
meeting. For all other board meetings, reasonable notice should be
given. Due to practical reasons, 14 days’ advanced notifications
have not been given for all regular meetings of the board of
directors of the Company (the “Board”). Reasons had been given
in the notifications in respect of those meetings of the Board
where it was not practical to give 14 days’ advance notification.

The Board will use its best endeavours to give 14 days’ advance
notifications of Board meetings to the extent practicable;

2. code provision of A.4.1 of the CG Code stipulates that all non- 2.
executive directors should be appointed for a specific term,
subject to re-election. Currently, all non-executive directors are not
appointed for a specific term. They are, however, subject to the
retirement by rotation and re-election as directors of the Company
(the “Directors”) pursuant to the Bye-laws of the Company (the
“‘Bye-laws”). Since their appointment will be reviewed when
they are due for re-election, the Board considers that sufficient
measures have been taken to ensure that the Company’s corporate
governance practices are no less exacting than those set out in the
CG Code.

3. code provision of E.1.2 of the CG Code stipulates that the 3.

chairman of the board should attend to answer questions at
the annual general meeting (the “AGM”).  However, Mr. Gong
Dongsheng, the chairman of the Board was unable to attend the
annual general meeting of the Company held on 6 August 2014
(the “2014 AGM”") due to other important engagement. Mr. Woo Yik
Man acted as chairman of the 2014 AGM to ensure an effective
communication with the shareholders of the Company (the
“Shareholders”).

SKY FOREVER SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT GROUP LIMITED (FE#E#EEEERAR)
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CODE OF CONDUCT REGARDING DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding directors’
securities transactions on terms no less exacting than the required
standard of dealings as set out in Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing
Rules. Having made a specific enquiry with all the Directors, each of
them confirmed that he/she had complied with such code of conduct
and the required standard of dealings regarding securities transactions
throughout the Year.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND BOARD MEETINGS

The Board is responsible for the Group’s corporate policy formulation,
business strategies planning, business development, risk management,
major acquisitions, disposals and capital transactions, and other
significant operational and financial matters. Major corporate matters
that are specifically delegated by the Board to the management include
the preparation of annual, interim and quarterly financial statements
for the Board’s approval before public reporting, execution of business
strategies and initiatives adopted by the Board, implementation
of adequate systems of internal controls and risk management
procedures, and compliance with relevant statutory requirements and
rules and regulations.

During the Year and up to date of this report, the Board comprised the
following Directors:

Executive Directors:
Mr. Yu Weiye (Chairman) (appointed on 19 June 2015)
Mr. Gong Dongsheng (appointed on 13 June 2014

and resigned on 19 June 2015)

Mr. Wu Zhinan
(Joint Chief Executive Officer)

(re-designated as Joint Chief
Executive Officer on
13 June 2014)

Mr. Zhang Xiaozheng (appointed on 17 June 2015)

Mr. Li Zhike (appointed on 12 December 2014)

Mr. Chan Francis Ping Kuen (resigned on 22 July 2014)

Mr. Chan Hin Wing, James (resigned on 22 July 2014)

Mr. Woo Yik Man (appointed on 27 May 2014 and

resigned on 12 December 2014)
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Non-executive Directors:
Ms. Chen Nan

Mr.

Mr.

Lam Kwok Cheong

Tsang Ho Ka, Eugene

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

X E R B &

(appointed on 2 May 2014 and
re-designated as an
non-executive Director on

19 June 2015, re-designated as
Joint Chief Executive Officer on

13 June 2014 and resigned
on 19 June 2015)

(appointed on 17 June 2015)

(resigned as chairman on
13 June 2014 and resigned
on 22 July 2014)

Independent non-executive Directors (the “INEDs”):

Mr.

Mr.

=

Mr.

=

Mr.

=

Mr.

Mr.

Mr.

Mr.

Mr.

Mr.

Mr.

Mr.

Chui Man Lung, Everett
Lung Chee Hing, George

Ma Yiu Ho, Peter

Liu Weiliang

Huang Yunlong

Kwok Chi Sun, Vincent

Yeung Kam Yan

Cheung Chi Hwa, Justin

Kwok Kam Tim

Kinley Lincoln James Lloyd

Yu Chon Man

Tam Chak Chi

(appointed on 20 May 2015)
(appointed on 17 June 2015)
(appointed on 18 July 2014 and
resigned on 20 May 2015)
(appointed on 18 July 2014)
(appointed on 18 July 2014 and
resigned on 17 June 2015)
(resigned on 22 July 2014)
(resigned on 22 July 2014)
(resigned on 22 July 2014)
(appointed on 13 June 2014 and

resigned on 22 July 2014)

(appointed on 13 June 2014 and
resigned on 22 July 2014)

(appointed on 19 June 2014 and
resigned on 22 July 2014)

(resigned on 2 May 2014)

FHTES:

Rt

3
=0
o

JIES

off
Hit
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The Directors’ biographical information is set out on pages 14 to
18 of this annual report. All Directors have given sufficient time
and attention to the affairs of the Group. Each executive Director
has sufficient experience to hold the position so as to carry out his/
her duties effectively and efficiently. Mr. Gong Dongsheng, an ex-
executive Director and the ex-chairman of the Board, is the husband
of Ms. Chen Nan, a non-executive Director of the Company. Save as
disclosed above, there is no financial, business, family or other material
relationship among the members of the Board.

The Company appointed three INEDs who have appropriate and
sufficient experience and qualifications to carry out their duties so as to
protect the interests of Shareholders. Each of them has been appointed
for a term of one year commencing on the date of appointment, which
will continue thereafter until terminated by either party giving the other
not less than one month’s notice. Every Director should be subject to
retirement by rotation at least once every three years and is eligible for
re-election in accordance with the Bye-laws.

Pursuant to Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules, the Company has
received written confirmation from each INED of his independence.
Based on such confirmations of independence, the Company considers
all of the INEDs to be independent.

Apart from the regular Board meetings, the Board meets on other
occasions when a board-level decision on a particular matter is
required.

During the Year, 39 Board meetings, an AGM and three special general
meetings of the Company (the “SGMs”) were held.
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Details of the attendance of the meetings of the Board members during EEe@REHEAFE EETC@E 7L

the Year are as follows: FEWT
Board meetings General meetings
Attended/ Attended/
Eligible to attend Eligible to attend
EZEER BREAE
BiiE/ 2tk
Name of Directors RERLE RERLE
=244 Z8EYA Z8EYA
Executive Directors:
HTES:
Mr. Yu Weiye (Chairman) (appointed on 19 June 2015) N/A N/A
REXEE(LE) (RZFE—TFNATNAEEL) TiE R TiER
Mr. Gong Dongsheng (appointed on 13 June 2014 26/31 2/3
and resigned on 19 June 2015)
BRAERAE (R-ZFE-—MFENAT=AEZF
RRZF—HBFNAT/HAEF)
Mr. Wu Zhinan (Joint Chief Executive Officer) 21/39 0/4
REMEE (HEEEHTE)
Mr. Li Zhike (appointed on 12 December 2014) 8/10 11
RER KL (R-ZFE—PF+_H+-HEZ(T)
Mr. Zhang Xiaozheng (appointed on 17 June 2015) N/A N/A
RN A (RZF—RFENA++HEEZE) TE A TE A
Mr. Chan Francis Ping Kuen (resigned on 22 July 2014) 13/16 0/2
PR R 5 & (R-ZFE—PF+H -+ HFHE)
Mr. Chan Hin Wing, James (resigned on 22 July 2014) 13/16 1/2
REREE (RZF—ME+H 1= HFE)
Mr. Woo Yik Man (appointed on 27 May 2014 and 19/25 2/2
resigned on 12 December 2014)
AT S & (R-ZFE-—MFEFRA—++HEZAER
RZF—mF+= A1 = AFF)
Non-executive Directors:
FHTES:
Ms. Chen Nan (appointed on 2 May 2014 and re-designated 27/38 0/3
as non-executive Director on 19 June 2015,
re-designated as Joint Chief Officer
on 13 June 2014 and resigned
on 19 June 2015)
BRfg L (RZF-—WERFA-HEZFRR
ZE-—RFENATNAAERIERTESE
URRZFE—WFENAT=HHFTE
RHEEEHTERR -_F—0LF
NAFILEABFE)
Mr. Lam Kwok Cheong (appointed on 17 June 2015) N/A N/A
B8 %% (RZFE—RFNAT+HEEL) NEH NEH
Mr. Tsang Ho Ka, Eugene (resigned on 22 July 2014) 1115 2/2

o

(R=ZF—pF+H =+ = HEFF)
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Board meetings General meetings

Attended/ Attended/
Eligible to attend Eligible to attend
EZEER REAE
BiE/ BHRE/
Name of Directors BERLE BERLE
S A= Z8ZEYH
INEDs:
BYFHITER:
Mr. Chui Man Lung, Everett (appointed on 20 May 2015) N/A N/A
RXRERE (RZE-—HFERA-—THEZF) TiER TER
Mr. Ma Yiu Ho, Peter (appointed on 18 July 2014 16/26 2/2
and resigned on 20 May 2015)
FEZRE (RZF—HE+AT/\HEZELR
RZF—AFHA=THEE)
Mr. Huang Yunlong (appointed on 18 July 2014 15/26 0/2
and resigned on 17 June 2015)
BEELE (RZE—WE+A+VAEZER
R-ZE—LFNAT+HEE)
Mr. Liu Weiliang (appointed on 18 July 2014) 15/26 0/2
ABREE (RZFB—ME+HA+/\AREF)
Mr. Lung Chee Ming, George (appointed on 17 June 2015) N/A N/A
EFHEE (RZE-—RENA++HEZF) TE A TEH
Mr. Kwok Chi Sun, Vincent (resigned on 22 July 2014) 9/15 0/2
HELFE (RZFE—WE+ A=+ HEFT)
Mr. Yeung Kam Yan (resigned on 22 July 2014) 8/15 1/2
BeRLsE (RZFE—WE+ A=+ HEFT)
Mr. Cheung Chi Hwa, Justin (resigned on 22 July 2014) 8/15 0/2
REERE (RZFE—WE+ A=+ HET)
Mr. Kwok Kam Tim (appointed on 13 June 2014 and 417 11
resigned on 22 July 2014)
FHERLE (RZFE—WENA+=HEZER
R=ZF—WFLA=+=HFF)
Mr. Kinley Lincoln James Lloyd (appointed on 13 June 2014 and 3/7 0/1
resigned on 22 July 2014)
TMERE (RZFB—WENAT=HRBZELR
R-ZFE—QF+H -+ HFHE)
Mr. Yu Chon Man (appointed on 19 June 2014 and 27 0/1
resigned on 22 July 2014)
REGRE (RZFB—HENATNHEEELR
R=ZF—WF+H=+=HFF)
Mr. Tam Chak Chi (resigned on 2 May 2014) 11 0/1

BENE

(R-ZF—F8H—HHE)
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DIRECTORS' INDUCTION AND CONTINUING PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT

Pursuant to code provision A.6.5 of the CG Code, all Directors
should participate in continuous professional development to develop
and refresh their knowledge and skills. This is to ensure that their
contribution to the Board remains informed and relevant. Up to the date
of this report, all Directors have participated in continuous professional

ESENRBEERER

RIELFERTRNTARXEALLK =
BESR2ARBEEXERUBRLRENN
FZRBLE NERAEEEABEZEE
AR EMBZERTRESSELER - B
EARERY  2REZCRBLENTEH

development by attending training courses or reading related materials/ (> EARBH 2 1Z R R BEEREME

in house briefing on the topics related to corporate governance and

regulations as follows:

ABERE  2EBEZFER:

Reading materials/
In house briefing

Attending
training courses

Name of Directors BEM R
e nEE RS ZMEIRE
Executive Directors:
HTES !
Mr. Yu Weiye (Chairman) (appointed on 19 June 2015) * *
REERE(LE) (RZFE-—BFENATNAEZE)
Mr. Gong Dongsheng (appointed on 13 June 2014 and v v
resigned on 19 June 2015)
BRERE (R-ZFE-—AENAT=AEZF
RRZFE—HFNATAEF)
Mr. Wu Zhinan (Joint Chief Executive Officer) v 4
REERE(HEEEHTE)
Mr. Li Zhike (appointed on 12 December 2014) v v
REMESE (R-ZFE-—AFE+ A+ _HAEZF)
Mr. Zhang Xiaozheng (appointed on 17 June 2015) * *
oR/NE ST A (RZFE-—BFENAT+HEZE)
Mr. Chan Francis Ping Kuen (resigned on 22 July 2014) v 4
BRImHE £ (RZFE-—AFE+ A=+ -HEFET)
Mr. Chan Hin Wing, James (resigned on 22 July 2014) v -
RERLE (R=ZF—-—mF+ A=+ =AFE)
Mr. Woo Yik Man (appointed on 27 May 2014 and v v
resigned on 12 December 2014)
TRk (R-ZFE-—AFLA-T+HEZFR
RZFE-—AF+ =+ HFHF)
Non-executive Directors:
EHTES:
Ms. Chen Nan (appointed on 2 May 2014 and v v
re-designated as non-executive Director
on 19 June 2015, re-designated as
Joint Chief Executive on 13 June 2014
and resigned on 19 June 2015)
Bt (RZF—NFERA-HEZHFRR
ZE-RENATAABERHNTESE -
HURR=F—WFENAT=HHESE
HEEREHTERR-_F—0F
NA T AFE)
Mr. Lam Kwok Cheong (appointed on 17 June 2015) * *
WE & &4 (RZFE-—BFNATtHEZE)
Mr. Tsang Ho Ka, Eugene (resigned on 22 July 2014) v 4

BERLE

(R=—F—mE+H =+ = HEF)
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Reading materials/ Attending
In house briefing  training course
BEMA
Name of Directors EEnA nEE GRS SMEHIRE
INEDs:
BYFHTES:
Mr. Chui Man Lung, Everett (appointed on 20 May 2015) * *
HXERE (RZF-—HAFRA-THEZF)
Mr. Lung Chee Ming, George (appointed on 17 June 2015) * *
EFRHLE (RZFE-—RFNATHAEZE)
Mr. Ma Yiu Ho, Peter (appointed on 18 July 2014 and
resigned on 20 May 2015) v v
FERLE (RZFE-—MFELAT/\AEEZF
RR-ZF—HFRA=THFE)
Mr. Liu Weiliang (appointed on 18 July 2014) 4 4
fERESE (RZF-IFE+ A+ \FEZE)
Mr. Huang Yunlong (appointed on 18 July 2014 v 14
and resigned on 17 June 2015)
BERLAE (RZF-—MFELAT/\AEEZF
RRZF—RFENA T+ HEE)
Mr. Kwok Chi Sun, Vincent (resigned on 22 July 2014) v v
BELEE (R=ZFB—WFE+ A=+ =HFI)
Mr. Yeung Kam Yan (resigned on 22 July 2014) v -
BeRrE (RZFE-—AFE+L A+ ZHEFHF)
Mr. Cheung Chi Hwa, Justin (resigned on 22 July 2014) 4 -
REELE (RZF-[FE+ A=+ =HEFET)
Mr. Kwok Kam Tim (appointed on 13 June 2014 and v v
resigned on 22 July 2014)
BRAEE (RZF-WFENAT=HEZER
RZFE—WF+ A=+ HFF)
Mr. Kinley Lincoln James Lloyd (appointed on 13 June 2014 and v -
resigned on 22 July 2014)
Rk (RZFE-—MENAT=HEZEL
R-ZFE—WFE+ A=+ =HFE)
Mr. Yu Chon Man (appointed on 19 June 2014 and v v
resigned on 22 July 2014)
REGEE (RZFE-—[FENATNAEZER
REZFE—WF+ A=+ =HEF)
Mr. Tam Chak Chi (resigned on 2 May 2014) 4 4

BEZRE

* Not applicable

(R=F—mFHH=HFE)

" NER

ANNUAL REPORT 2014-2015 5 3&

37



38

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

it %X & B ® &

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Board values diversity as a factor in selecting candidates to
serve on the Board, and believes that the diversity which exists in
its composition provides significant benefits to the Board and the
Company.

The Board adopted a board diversity policy (the “Board Diversity
Policy”) which relates to the selection of candidates for the Board. The
Board believes that a key success factor of an effective Board is that
it comprises a range and balance of skills, experience, knowledge and
independence, with individuals that work as a team. The Board Diversity
Policy was adopted to ensure that diversity in its broadest sense
continues to remain a feature of the Board.

The Nomination Committee has been delegated with the responsibilities
for the review of the Board Diversity Policy on an annual basis.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

On 13 June 2014, Mr. Tsang Ho Ka, Eugene resigned, and Mr. Gong
Dongsheng was appointed, as the chairman of the Board. Mr. Yu Weiye
was appointed as the chairman of the Board following the resignation of
Mr. Gong Dongsheng on 19 June 2015.

Ms. Chen Nan was re-designated from the vice Chairman to a Joint
Chief Executive Officer and Mr. Wu Zhinan was re-designated from the
chief executive officer to a Joint Chief Executive Officer on 13 June
2014. On 19 June 2015, Ms. Chen resigned as Joint Chief Executive
Officer and Mr. Chow Wing Sing, Bobby was appointed as Joint
Executive Officer.

The role of the Chairman and the chief executive officer are separated
and exercised by different individuals.

INEDs

Each of the INEDs has entered into a letter of appointment with the
Company for a term commencing on the date of appointment, which will
continue thereafter until terminated by either party giving not less than
one month’s notice in writing to the other party.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTION
The Board is also responsible for performing the corporate governance
duties as set out below:

a) to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance;

EERRESTLHE
EFRMEGEARAEERRERS T
LIESTERE R ERRAATTHE
7l o

EZSCRNEBTEREAEAESTEN
EFgRESTERR([EFEXES T
BR]) EFCHREAEUNESTENNXIH
RENBEEZ R FENKE £ MEK
BUM  EFNEAEREEERN—BMT
{E - ZTACHORMERS - UWEREREZE
ELNZTBERFESEN ARG -

RAZEGDERELZ TEHRBERS
B E IR -

ITREREREATE

RZE—MEANA+TZA EEEALEIM
BRAFARZEREFTELIR - REXELL
TELERERZT—RERATNAHMT
KEZEREFEELRE -

RZZE-—MERAT=0 " BEZtTHAEE
RERSHABERHNTE REFEEHERH
TEATIABAERNTE - R-T—0FRX
AThB  BRELHHIHEEFRTE MAEX
ARERZERBMAERATE -

ITREEFEATENBEE TRAL AR
RALHEE-

BUFHTES
EBUFNTEFDRARARFTURES - £
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b) to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of the Directors and senior management;

c) to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices and
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

d) to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to the employees and the
Directors; and

e) to review the Company’'s compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.

The Board has reviewed this corporate governance report in discharge
of its corporate governance functions, ensuring compliance with the
GEM Listing Rules.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three Board committees, namely the
Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination
Committee, to oversee particular aspects of the Company’s affairs. The
Board committees are provided with sufficient resources to discharge
their duties.

The written terms of reference for each of the Board committees named
above are in line with the GEM Listing Rules and are posted on the
respective websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee was established in January 2006 with
written terms of reference in compliance with the CG Code. The
Remuneration Committee presently comprises three members, all
being INEDs, namely Mr. Lung Chee Ming, George, Mr. Chui Man
Lung, Everett and Mr. Liu Weiliang. The chairman of the Remuneration
Committee is Mr. Lung Chee Ming, George.

The role and function of the Remuneration Committee are to make
recommendations to the Board for its final determination on the
specific remuneration packages of all Directors, including benefits
in kind, pension rights and compensation payments, including
any compensation payable for loss or termination of their office or
appointment.
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The Remuneration Committee held five meetings during the Year
to review the remuneration package of the Directors and senior

®OE

RAEE  FMZBE@RTAAER M RIE
ENEREEBZHFMAR - KBERREHME

=

management. Details of the attendance of the Remuneration Committee B & &% 7l stfi5W0 | ¢

meetings are as follows:

Number of meetings

Members attended/Eligible to attend
24= BHESERLEEZEREE
Mr. Lung Chee Ming, George (appointed on 17 June 2015) N/A
(Chairman)

ETHAE(LE) (RZFE—RFENA++HEEZE) TiE R
Mr. Liu Weiliang (appointed on 18 July 2014) 2/2
FEREE (R-ZFE—FE+ AT/ NAEEF)

Mr. Huang Yunlong (appointed on 18 July 2014 and resigned on 17 June 2015) 2/2
BEERE (R-ZFE—HE+ A+ \ABEERR-FE—HFNA++HEE)

Mr. Ma Yiu Ho, Peter (appointed on 18 July 2014 and resigned on 20 May 2015) 2/2
FERLE (RZFE-—MF+ATAEZERR-_E—AFAA =1 HEFE)

Mr. Chui Man Lung, Everett (appointed on 20 May 2015) N/A
mXRERE (RZF—hFRA-THEZHF) TiER
Mr. Chan Francis Ping Kuen (resigned on 22 July 2014) 5/5
BRIFHE L& (RZF—WE+H =+ HEHT)

Mr. Kwok Chi Sun, Vincent (resigned on 22 July 2014) 5/5
PELEE (R=ZF—WF+LA=+=HEFF)

Mr. Yeung Kam Yan (resigned on 22 July 2014) 5/5
meERE (RZFE—PF+ A=+ AFHT)

Mr. Cheung Chi Hwa, Justin (resigned on 22 July 2014) 5/5
REELE (RZF—WEFELA =+ =HEFF)

Mr. Kwok Kam Tim (appointed on 13 June 2014 and resigned on 22 July 2014) 11
AR E (RZF—MENHA+=ZHEZLR

Mr. Kinley Lincoln James Lloyd

EAEE

Mr. Yu Chon Man
REFEE

Mr. Tam Chak Chi
BEIRE

RZF—ME+H 1= AFFIE)

(appointed on 13 June 2014 and resigned on 22 July 2014) 11
(RZF-—WENAT+=HEZFL

RZF—WFE+H =+ = HAFFF)

(appointed on 19 June 2014 and resigned on 22 July 2014) 11
(RZF—MENH+NNAEELER

RZFE—ME+H 1= AFFE)

(resigned on 2 May 2014) 0/0
(R=ZZF—F 7 A= HEHT)

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
Details of the emoluments of the Directors and the senior management
of the Company for the Year are set out in notes 8 and 9 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Pursuant to code provision of B.1.5 of the CG Code, the annual
remuneration of the senior management (other than the Directors) for
the Year by band is set out below:

Remuneration bands (in HK$)

AR (E%)

EEREAEEEZHFM
ARFEERBRERBBNAEE 2 F M
BERER A M B RKME8RI

BECEE AT ZTAUENBAS  BRE
BEE (EERINRNAEEZEEFSRER
AT

Number of individuals

AE

Nil to 1,000,000 % %1,000,000

1
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company established a Nomination Committee on 23 March
2012 with written terms of reference in compliance with the CG Code.
The Nomination Committee presently comprises three members, with
one non-executive Director, namely Mr. Lam Kwok Cheong and two
INEDs, namely Mr. Lung Chee Ming, George and Mr. Liu Weiliang. The
chairman of the Nomination Committee is Mr. Lung Chee Ming, George.

The Nomination Committee is mainly responsible for making
recommendations to the Board on appointment of the Directors
and succession planning for the Directors. The Board takes into
consideration criteria such as the expertise and experience of the
relevant candidates, the market situation and applicable laws and
regulations when considering new director appointments.

The Nomination Committee held five meetings during the Year to
review the structure and composition of the Board as well as the Board
Diversity Policy and made recommendations on the appointment and

it ¥ B A&
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re-appointment of retiring Directors. Details of the attendance of the EBER  -WMEHEREZLZELQHZ 7O TE
Nomination Committee meetings are as follows: m

Number of meetings
Members attended/Eligible to attend
K& BHiE/AERLEZEEHE
Mr. Lung Chee Ming, George (appointed on 17 June 2015) N/A

(Chairman)

ETALE(LE) (RZE-—RENA++HEZF) TiER
Mr. Gong Dongsheng (appointed on 18 July 2014 and resigned on 19 June 2015) 1/1
BRAERSE (RZF-—AF+A+/\AEZERR - E—LFNATAHFE)
Mr. Lam Kwok Cheong (appointed on 19 June 2015) N/A
WEI & &4 (RZE-—RENA+NAEZF) TiER
Mr. Liu Weiliang (appointed on 22 July 2014) 11
ANRREE (RZFB—mE+H+/\AREF)
Mr. Huang Yunlong (appointed on 18 July 2014 and resigned on 17 June 2015) 1/1
BEELE (R-ZFB-—MFE+ AT \AREFRR-FE—LFNHA++HEFHE)
Mr. Kwok Chi Sun, Vincent (resigned on 22 July 2014) 5/5
BELEE (R-ZFB—MFE+H -+ ZHEE)
Mr. Chan Francis Ping Kuen (resigned on 22 July 2014) 5/5
PR S (R-ZFB—MFE+H -+ ZHEE)
Mr. Yeung Kam Yan (resigned on 22 July 2014) 4/5
BeRLsE (R-ZFB—MFE+H -+ ZHEE)
Mr. Cheung Chi Hwa, Justin (resigned on 22 July 2014) 5/5
REELE (RZFB—MFE+H -+ ZHEE)
Mr. Kwok Kam Tim (appointed on 13 June 2014 and resigned on 22 July 2014) 1/1

?B f% /N

Mr. Kinley Lincoln James Lloyd

SAERE

Mr. Yu Chon Man
REHFEE

Mr. Tam Chak Chi
BELEE

(resigned on 2 May 2014)
(R-ZFB—MEHH_ HFT)

(RZFE—WENA+=HEZER
R-ZFE—Q{F+H -+ HFE)
(appointed on 13 June 2014 and resigned on 22 July 2014) 1/1
(RZFB—HENAT=HRZER
R-ZFE—QF+H -+ HFE)
(appointed on 19 June 2014 and resigned on 22 July 2014) 1/1
(RZE—WENA+NNAEZER
R-ZE—F+H -+ HFT)

0/0
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company established an Audit Committee with written terms of
reference in compliance with the CG Code. The primary duties of the
Audit Committee are to review and supervise the financial reporting
process and internal controls system of the Group and provide advice
and comments on the Company’s draft annual reports and financial
statements, half year reports and quarterly reports to the Directors. The
Audit Committee presently comprises three members, namely Mr. Chui
Man Lung, Everett, Mr. Lung Chee Ming, George and Mr. Liu Weiliang,
all of them being INEDs. The chairman of the Audit Committee is Mr.
Chui Man Lung, Everett.

The Audit Committee held four meetings during the Year. Details of the

attendance of the Audit Committee meetings are as follows:

Members

54|

}
I

BERZES

ARREREXEATIRIEZZEGLH
THEARELE ENZEGCIBRER
BEENERAKE M BEREF AR
HE  YHARBFREVBRE  FLFRS
REEHEZERAAEFRERZERER
EVZEQBE=R2KEAR  DRIRHEX
RAL BIHAXRLERBBREL BABY
FRTES - BERZBEIERRNERLE -

FE EFEHRRBEERETOREH -KEBH
BREEERIHFLEFBNOT

Number of meetings
attended/Eligible to attend
BHE/AEREECSRHE

Mr. Chui Man Lung, Everett (appointed on 20 May 2015)

Not applicable

(Chairman)
WXREE(LE) (R-ZFE—LFAA-+HEEHL) TiER
Mr. Lung Chee Ming, George (appointed on 17 June 2015) N/A
ETHLE (RZE-—HENA++HEZE) TEM
Mr. Ma Yiu Ho, Peter (appointed on 18 July 2014 and resigned on 20 May 2015) 3/3
EREE (R-ZF-WFE+LAT/\AEZERR -F—AFLH—1THEFHT)
Mr. Huang Yunlong (appointed on 18 July 2014 and resigned on 17 June 2015) 3/3
BEERE (R-F-—AF+AT\AEZERR - F—aF A1+ HFE)
Mr. Liu Weiliang (appointed on 18 July 2014) 3/3
AEREE (RZE—WE+A+/NHEZE)
Mr. Kwok Chi Sun, Vincent (resigned on 22 July 2014) 11
BELLE (RZFE—WE+ A=+ =HEFHF)
Mr. Yeung Kam Yan (resigned on 22 July 2014) 11
BeRLE (R-ZFE—PF+H -+ HFHE)
Mr. Cheung Chi Hwa, Justin (resigned on 22 July 2014) 0N
RAEELLE (R=ZF—WF+ A=+ =HEFIF)
Mr. Kwok Kam Tim (appointed on 13 June 2014 and resigned on 22 July 2014) 1/1
BIATE (/J_/\ :_;@¢/\ﬁ+ Eﬁg??/f&
Mr. Kinley Lincoln James Lloyd (appointed on 13 June 2014 and resigned on 22 July 2014) 0/0
EMELLE (%fy E¢Aﬁ+ E#%E&
Mr. Yu Chon Man (appointed on 19 June 2014 and resigned on 22 July 2014) 0/0
REHELE (Ff —E¢Aﬁ+ﬂ5#§E&
Mr. Tam Chak Chi (res/gned on 2 May 2014) 0/0

BEIRE

(R-ZF—mFER A - HEE)
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During the Year, the Audit Committee reviewed the first and third
quarterly results and interim results for the Year, the annual results
of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2014 and the accounting
principles and practice adopted by the Group and recommended to
the Board for considering the re-appointment of Mazars CPA Limited
(“Mazars”), Certified Public Accountants, as the Company’s auditor at
the 2014 AGM.

The annual results for the Year have been reviewed by the Audit
Committee at its meeting held on 23 June 2015 before submission to the
Board for approval. The members of the Audit Committee considered
that the results were prepared in accordance with applicable
accounting standards and the GEM Listing Rules and sufficient
disclosure had been made.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

It is the external auditor’s responsibility to form an independent opinion,
based on their audit, on the consolidated financial statements and to
report their opinion solely to the Shareholders, as a body, in accordance
with Section 90 of the Bermuda Companies Act and for no other
purpose. They do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability
to any other person for the content of the auditor’s report.

The Company has appointed Mazars as the auditor of the Group.
The Board was authorised by the Shareholders at the 2014 AGM
to determine the remuneration of Mazars. During the Year, the fees
charged by Mazars for the statutory audit and non-audit assignments
of the Group amounted to approximately HK$950,000 and HK$270,000
respectively. The non-audit services included the professional services
in connection with the circulars to Shareholders of HK$250,000 and
other audit-related services of HK$20,000.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

The present company secretary of the Company (the “Company
Secretary”) is an external service provider, and his primary corporate
contact person is Mr. Yu Weiye, as executive Director and the chairman
of the Board for the purpose of code provision F.1.1 of the CG Code.
All Directors have access to the advice and services of the Company
Secretary to ensure the Board procedures, and all applicable law, rules
and regulations, are followed.

Ms. Chu Wing Sze, Jenny resigned and Mr. Fung Nam Shan was
appointed as the Company Secretary on 20 May 2015. The Company
Secretary is to ensure a good information flow within the Board and
between the Board and senior management of the Company, to provide
advice to the Board in relation to the Directors’ obligations under the
GEM Listing Rules and applicable laws and regulations and to assist
the Board in implementing the corporate governance practices. Mr.
Fung has provided his training records to the Company indicating his
compliance with the 15-hour training requirement under Rule 5.15 of the
GEM Listing Rules.

INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board is responsible for maintaining the Group’s internal controls
and for reviewing the effectiveness of these controls. Internal control
systems are designed to meet the particular needs of the Group and the
risk to which it is exposed.

In consideration of the size of the Group, the Board does not consider
to establish an internal audit team at present. However, the key control
procedures established by the Group are day-to-day supervision of
the business by the executive Directors, supported by the managers
responsible for the operation and the key division support functions of
finance, information system and human resources. The key elements
of internal controls described below have been in place throughout the
Year:

- procedures for the approval of capital expenditure and payments;

- regular financial information provided to management for reviewing
the Group’s performance;

- clearly defined management structure and lines of responsibility.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Under the Bye-laws, Shareholders holding at the date of deposit of the
requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company
carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the Company shall
at all times have the right, by written requisition to the Board or the
Company Secretary, to require a SGM to be called by the Board for
the transaction of any business specified in such requisition; and such
meeting shall be held within two months after the deposit of such
requisition. Within 21 days of such deposit, the Board should proceed to
convene such meeting.

Shareholders may send written enquiries to the Company or put forward
any enquiries or proposals to the Board. The contact details are as
follows:

The Company Secretary
Sky Forever Supply Chain Management Group Limited
Address: Room 601, 6/F, China Building,
No. 29 Queen’s Road Central
Central, Hong Kong
Fax No.: 852-2576 2400

To put forward proposals at an AGM or a SGM, the Shareholders
shall submit a written notice of those proposals with detailed contact
information to the Company Secretary at the above address.

The request will be verified with the Company’s branch share registrar
in Hong Kong and upon its confirmation that the request is proper
and in order, the Company Secretary will ask the Board to include the
proposed resolution in the agenda for the general meeting.

PROCEDURE FOR SHAREHOLDERS TO SEND ENQUIRES TO
THE BOARD

Shareholders are provided with contact details of the Company, such
as telephone hotline, fax number, email address and postal address, in
order to enable them to make any query that they may have with respect
to the Company. They can also send their enquiries to the Board
through these means. The contact details of the Company are provided
in this report, the “Corporate Information” section of this annual report
and the Company’s website.

The Board welcomes views of Shareholders and encourages them to
attend general meetings to raise any concerns that they may have with
the Board or the management directly. Board members and appropriate
senior staff of the Group are available at the meetings to answer any
questions raised by Shareholders.
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for the preparation of the
financial statements of the Group for the Year. In preparing the financial
statements, the generally accepted accounting standards in Hong Kong
have been adopted, appropriate accounting policies have been used
and applied consistently, and reasonable and prudent judgments and
estimates have been made.

The Board is not aware of any material uncertainties relating to events or
conditions which may cast significant doubt over the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern. Accordingly, the Board has continued to
adopt the going concern basis in preparing the financial statements.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company keeps on promoting investor relations and enhancing
communication with the existing Shareholders and potential investors.
It welcomes suggestions from investors, stakeholders and the public.
Enquires to the Board or the Company may be sent by post to the
Company'’s principal place of business in Hong Kong.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS OF THE COMPANY

During the Year, there were no changes in the Company’s Memorandum
of Association and the Bye-laws except the change of Company’s name.
A copy of the latest version of the Memorandum of Association and the
Bye-laws are available on the respective websites of the Company and
the Stock Exchange.
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CHANGES IN DIRECTOR’S INFORMATION
The changes in Directors’ information since the disclosure made in the

2014 Interim report are set out below:

Name of Director

Mr. Yu Weiye

Mr. Gong Dongsheng

Ms. Chen Nan

Details of changes

Appointed as an executive Director and
chairman of the Board on 19 June 2015

Appointed as the compliance officer
and an authorised representative of the
Company on 22 June 2015

Appointed as an authorised
representative of the Company on 12
December 2014

Resigned as the chairman of the
Nomination Committee on 17 June 2015

Resigned as Executive Director,
chairman of the Board and member of
the Nomination Committee on 19 June
2015

Resigned an authorised representative of
the Company on 22 June 2015

Re-designated from Executive Director to
Non-Executive Director on 19 June 2015
and resigned as a Joint Chief Executive
Officer of the Company on 19 June 2015

Resigned as the compliance officer of
the Company on 22 June 2015
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Mr. Li Zhike

Mr. Liu Weiliang

Mr. Chui Man Lung,
Everett

Mr. Lung Chee Ming,
George

Mr. Zhang Xiaozheng

Mr. Lam Kwok Cheong

Mr. Huang Yunlong

Mr. Ma Yiu Ho, Peter

Mr. Woo Yik Man

*ﬁﬂ:

Appointed as an Executive Director on
12 December 2014

The director’'s fee has been revised to
HK$45,000 per month with effect from 1
February 2015

The director’'s fee has been revised to
HK$12,500 per month with effect from 1
February 2015

Appointed as the chairman of the
Remuneration Committee and a member
of each of the Audit Committee and the
Nomination Committee on 18 July 2014

Resigned as the chairman of the
Remuneration Committee on 17 June
2015

Appointed as the chairman of the Audit
Committee and a member of the
Remuneration Committee on 20 May
2015

Appointed as the chairman of the
Nomination Committee and
Remuneration Committee and a member
of the Audit Committee on 17 June 2015

Appointed as an executive Director
on 17 June 2015

Appointed as a non-executive Director
on 17 June 2015

Resigned as an INED and member of
the Audit Committee, Remuneration
Committee and Nomination Committee
on 17 June 2015

Resigned as an INED, chairman of the
Audit Committee and member of the
Remuneration Committee on 20 May
2015

Resigned as an Executive Director and
an authorised representative of the
Company on 12 December 2014
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

MAZARS

To the shareholders of

Sky Forever Supply Chain Management Group Limited
(formerly known as Rising Power Group Holdings Limited)
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Sky Forever
Supply Chain Management Group Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (together the “Group”) set out on pages 51 to 128, which
comprise the consolidated and the Company’s statements of financial
position as at 31 March 2015, and the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in equity
and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and
a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and
for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely
to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Companies Act
1981 of Bermuda (as amended), and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person
for the contents of this report. We conducted our audit in accordance
with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements are free from material misstatement.

B MY % B O®F

Mazars CPA LIMITED

35 B g o 2 A L

42nd Floor, Central Plaza,

18 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong
T WS VAT S Y89 1 89 R IR BG40
Tel ®ifi: (852) 2909 5555

Faxf#E: (852) 2810 0032

Email FE #: info@mazars.hk
Website#44ik: www.mazars.cn

B

Sky Forever Supply Chain Management
Group Limited
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B Y & BB OB &

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those
risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to
the entity’s preparation of the consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An
audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made
by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 31
March 2015, and of the Group’s loss and cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
and have been properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Mazars CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 29 June 2015

Eunice Y M Kwok
Practising Certificate number: P04604
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

nvli\

8 2 Em W & %

Year ended 31 March 2015 &£ 2 —HE=ZH=+—HILEH

Note 2015 2014
(In HK$'000) (LB TTREN) B 5F —E-RE “E-NF
Continuing operations BEREER
Turnover EEE 5 1,640,061 13,022
Cost of services rendered and REBRBIRKAREEEY
cost of goods sold Z AR (1,630,883) (11,441)
Gross profit EH 9,178 1,581
Other revenue H it Y 25 5 553 621
Other income Hp A 6 1,707 120
Selling and distribution costs HERDEAAR (5,275) (6,017)
Administrative expenses THHAY (62,765) (23,271)
Other operating expenses Hgeams (4,070) (19,731)
Share of results of associates i N ES 19 (1,523) (12,255)
Loss before taxation from continuing FESEXBRBAEE
operations 7 (62,195) (58,952)
Income tax expenses PSR X 10 = (14)
Loss for the year from continuing SEKEERFTAERE
operations (62,195) (58,966)
Discontinued operations B IEERH
Profit (Loss) for the year from discontinued B4 It ¥ & REF (E12)
operations 1 920 (20,710)
Loss for the year EREE (61,275) (79,676)
Other comprehensive income (loss) FREMZEKE (FE)
for the year:
ltems that may be reclassified BEG g EN A EERm B -
subsequently to profit or loss:
Exchange differences on consolidation meRZERER 165 418
Share of other comprehensive e AREMER
(loss) income of associates (B18) Yz 19 (312) 732
(147) 1,150
Total comprehensive loss for the year FRZHEIEEE (61,422) (78,526)
Loss attributable to: NTATEELES:
Equity holders of the Company ARAIREREA 12 (59,185) (76,292)
Non-controlling interests IR (2,090) (3,384)
(61,275) (79,676)
Total comprehensive loss UTATEEZEEE
attributable to: mE
Equity holders of the Company ARERERFEA (59,212) (75,430)
Non-controlling interests R E R (2,210) (3,096)
(61,422) (78,526)
Loss per share BREE 14 (restated)
From continuing and discontinued KERENRBRILER (Z5))
operations
Basic BN (HK10.15 centsi&1l) (HK17.56 centsi&ill)
Diluted 1 (HK10.15 centsi&1ll) (HK17.56 cents/&fl)
From continuing operations REFBELCEER
Basic E5YN (HK10.30 centsi&fli) (HK13.14 centsi& L)
Diluted 31 (HK10.30 centsi&fl)) (HK13.14 centsi& L)
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At 31 March 2015 A - —HAE=H=+—H

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
a8 BB R R ® X

Note 2015 2014
(In HK$°000) (BB F o3& ) B x —E-—FE —ET-mEF

Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - BERHZB 15 13,747 1,209
Intangible assets BRAE 16 10,877 -
Available-for-sale financial assets AtHESHEE 18 — 12,450
Interests in associates B N AR A 19 9,104 10,939
Other assets Hih&EE 20 8,675 =
Goodwill EES 21 5,573 10,808
47,976 35,406

Current assets RBEE
Available-for-sale financial assets AEHESRHEE 18 - 2,564
Other assets Hih&EE 20 1,025 -
Trade and other receivables P M8 BR % B EL At R MR 22 489,634 57,263
Bank balances and cash RITHEHR MRS 23 281,246 86,675
771,905 146,502
Current liabilities REEE

Trade and other payables & 1<F B 3K R L At & 51 3K 24 337,394 23,907
Tax payable JE B TE 1,928 2,249
339,322 26,156
Net current assets REEEFE 432,583 120,346
Total assets less current liabilities BEERTBDAR 480,559 155,752

Non-current liabilities FREEE
Loan from a director BEEEXR 25 2,469 2564
2,469 2,564
NET ASSETS EEFE 478,090 153,188

SKY FOREVER SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT GROUP LIMITED (FE#E#EEEERAR)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIA
A B B KR R ],

At 31 March 2015 R =R —HE=ZH=1+—H

Note 2015 2014
(In HK$'000) (LB TFTREN) B 5 —B-RHE —T-mF
Capital and reserves IR R
Share capital [N 26 13,254 4,418
Reserves & 467,087 147,594
Equity attributable to equity holders RARRERE ABGER
of the Company 480,341 152,012
Non-controlling interests FERE S (2,251) 1,176
TOTAL EQUITY FEZ A EE 478,090 153,188

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 29 June R —FE—FFENNH -+ W HARKEEZS W EN

2015 BRETIZ
Yu Weiye Li Zhike
Director Director
EZ E2
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
BB R R | X

At 31 March 2015 R=F—HAE=ZH=+—H

Note 2015 2014
(In HK$°000) (BB F o3& ) B E —E-—FE —E—mF

Non-current assets FRBEE
Investment in subsidiaries RIB AR 2 &KE 17 = =
Available-for-sale financial assets AHEESREE 18 = 12,450
- 12,450

Current assets REEE
Available-for-sale financial assets AEHESHEE 18 - 2,564
Other receivables HAth B M 3R 22 2,396 30,573
Due from subsidiaries JE Ws BT /B A B 2 ZR IR 17 294,681 26,005
Bank balances and cash IRITHEB LR E 23 172,678 84,696
469,755 143,838
Current liabilities Bk IA=N=

Other payables H A FE {5 5K 24 200 630
Due to subsidiaries JERT BN B A 7l 2 518 17 2,395 2,406
2,595 3,036
Net current assets REEEFE 467,160 140,802
NET ASSETS EEFE 467,160 153,252

Capital and reserves B R &
Share capital &N 26 13,254 4,418
Reserves 1 27 453,906 148,834
TOTAL EQUITY B 467,160 153,252

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 29 June R Z-ZFE—FENH -+ L HEEEZSHE R

2015 BRETZ
Yu Weiye Li Zhike
REH RER
Director Director
EZE EZE

SKY FOREVER SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT GROUP LIMITED (FE#E#EEEERAR)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES
R E REa 8 5 X

Year ended 31 March 2015 #& % ~2—FAE=H =1 —H L4

Attributable to equity holders of the Company

ARFAREREARE
Reserves
e
Non-
Share Share Contributed ~ Exchange ~ Warrant  Statutory Accumulated Total controlling
capital  premium  surplus reserve reserve reserve losses  reserves  Subtotal interests Total
FUE
R&  RHEE  HABR  EXRE i EERE ZHER  B86 Nt FERER ait
Note (note 27(i)) (note 27(ii)) (note 27(iii)) (note 27(iv))  (note 27(v))
(In HKS "000) LEETAAEN)  WE (skan()) (Wiskar(in) (Wsergii) (Wter(v)  (Wiker(y)
At 1 April 2013 RZF-=£WA-A 33,387 55,357 485,118 8,428 240 2438 (441,394) 110,187 143,574 4212 147,846
Loss for the year EREE - - - - - - (16292 (76292)  (16292)  (3384)  (79676)
Other comprehensive ~ Ef12 Al
income
Items that may be ARREFTBE
reclassified EaHES
subsequently fo
profit or loss
Exchange differences  SAKZERZE
on consolidation - - - 130 - - - 130 130 28 418
Share of other ElbBeanaLf
comprehensive 2Eh&
income of associates - - - 32 - - - 132 732 - 732
Total comprehensive ~ EAZENE (B8)
income (loss) ag
for the year = = = 862 = - (18299) (754300 (754300 (30%)  (7852)
Transactions with ~ ERERFAES
equity holders X5
Contributions and RERAE
distributions
Expiry of unlisted FEMAREZER
warrants - - - - (240) - 240 - - - -
Issue of sheresupon ~ AZF-=%1A
placing in April 2013 REMEARH 349 210 - - - - S0 M5M - U5
Capital reductionand ~ FRABIH R A B
share consolidation (33,194)  (76395) 109,589 - - - - 33,19 - - -
Issue of sharesupon ~ EZF—-=%N8
placing in REMETRG
September 2013 320 25,750 - - - - - 25,750 26,070 - 26,070
Issue of sharesupon ~~ EEAHEET
top-up placing EARH a0 3280 = = = = - ngd 33 - 3w
Transfer of statutory ~ BEATRE
reserve - - - - - 4 (74) - - - -
(28.969) 3248 109,589 - (240) 74 166 112,837 83,868 - 83,868
At 31 March 2014 RZ5-BE=f=1-A 4418 58,605 504,107 9,290 - 2512 (B17520) 147,594 152,012 1,176 153,188

Au%z&u_u‘ol 5 & 4
r Tty o - -
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
= 8 8B X

Year ended 31 March 2015 #& %~ —HAEZH = +— H IL4ERE

Attributable to equity holders of the Company

RLAREREARL
Reserves
1]
Non-
Share Share Contributed ~ Exchange ~ Warrant  Statutory Accumulated Total controlling
capital  premium  surplus  reserve  reserve  reserve losses  reserves  Subtotal interests Total
ke RGRE AABE  EXGE i EERE ZHER  ARE Nt FERER ait
Note (note 27(i)) (note 27(ii)) (note 27iii)) (note 27(iv))  (note 27(v))
(In HKS"000) (WERTTEEN) Wi (Wakr(i)  (Wkrgi) (Wskargii) (Wskorv)  (WsFor()
At 1 April 2014 RZ5-RERA-A 4,418 58,605 594,707 9,290 - 2512 (5175200 147,594 152,012 1,176 153,188
Loss for the year ERER - - - - - - (59185) (59,185  (59,185)  (2,090)  (61,275)
Other comprehensive  £f12 /% (58)
income (loss)
ltems that may be AR EH7HEE
reclassified EaHEA
subsequently fo
profit or loss
Exchange differences  SABZEXZE
on consolidation - - - 285 - - - 285 285 (120) 165
Share of other EEBEAREM
comprehensive 2EER
loss of associates - - - (312) - - - (312) (312) - (312)
Total comprehensive 2 EBE
loss for the year % - - - @7 = - (M85 (39212) (59212 (210)  (61,422)
Transactions with ~~~ EREFAAES
equity holders LR5
Contributions and RERAE
distributions
Issue of sharesupon AR
rights issues figaRH 26(1) 8836 378,841 - - - - - esM 3eTeTT - em
Changes inownership ~ 4 /EEZ 25
interest
Disposal of subsidiaries  HEHBAR 3 - - - (136) - - - (136) (1) (207 (1,359
8,836 378,841 - (136) - - - 378,705 387,541 (1,217) 386,324
At 31 March 2015 RZE-EE=B=1-H 13,254 437,446 594,707 9,121 = 2512 (576,705) 467,087 480,341 (2,251) 478,09

SKY FOREVER SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT GROUP LIMITED (FE#E#EEEERAR)




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

8 B & "R B R

Year ended 31 March 2015 &£ 2 —HE=ZH=+—HILEH

Note 2015 2014

(In HK$'000) (UBEETTRENL) P & —2-0%F —T-mE
OPERATING ACTIVITIES KT
(Loss) Profit before taxation BRE¢ AT (B 18) & A

From continuing operation REFELEED (62,195) (58,952)

From discontinued operation BB RIEER 920 (20,710)
Amortisation of intangible assets B EEHH 4 -
Amortisation of other assets Hih B EEH 545 -
Depreciation of property, ME - BERREBNE

plant and equipment 2,895 383
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEMRBAR 2 Wa (806) -
Loss on disposal of HETHHESREEZER

available-for-sale financial assets 70 -
Impairment loss of goodwill HEZRBEEBE 4,000 31,500
Impairment loss of intangible assets BEEEZREEBE - 831
Impairment loss of deposits paid BEfffRe 2 MEEBE - 5,000
Interest income FE A (553) (621)
Waiver of amount due to an E AN = PN

ex-shareholder of subsidiaries — B A RE A (1,379) -
Write-off of property, plant and MEME - BB KR

equipment 409 -
Share of results of associates FEMGES S DA% E 1,523 12,255
Changes in working capital LEESEY

Trade and other receivables R UK AR 3R % L At B M R (472,993) (29,561)

Trade and other payables J& 1~ BR % I EL At & < 5K 322,886 3,065
Exchange difference R (63) (316)
Cash used in operations REERFTARS (204,737) (57,126)
Income taxes paid BERFER = (36)
Net cash used in operating activities K& EFEFTARLFE (204,737) (57,162)
INVESTING ACTIVITIES RETEE
Interest received 2 IRA B 553 621
Payment for other assets Hth & E MR (10,245) -
Purchase of property, BEWME  BEREE

plant and equipment (16,072) (323)
Purchase of intangible assets BERFLEE (10,881) -
Purchase of available-for-sale BEAHLEeRERE

financial assets - (15,014)
Disposal of subsidiaries HEMWEB QA 33 2,891 -
Disposal of available-for-sale HEAMHEE

financial assets EREE 18 14,944 -
Refund for deposit paid for JER [B] 5t Uk B B B

acquisition of subsidiaries UNGIIRE PP & 30,500 =
Net cash from (used in) REZBRE (FTA)

investing activities BEeFE 11,690 (14,716)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Year ended 31 March 2015 #&E R —HAE=H =+— HIL4EE

Note 2015 2014

(In HK$°000) (LB F T B E ) B x —E-—FE —
FINANCING ACTIVITIES & EE
Proceeds from shares issued upon R i 35 17 AR 12 BT 15 308

rights issue 26(i) 387,677 -
Proceeds from shares issued upon A-E—=FNAEEMm

placing in April 2013 BITRMDFE R - 24,534
Proceeds from shares issued upon A-E—=FNAREM

placing in September 2013 BIIRMOEHIE - 26,070
Proceeds from shares issued upon FERTREMETRG

top-up placing FTi3 8 - 33,264
Repayment of promissory notes BEALERR - (5,359)
Net cash from financing activities METBEESFHE 387,677 78,509
Net increase in cash and BeRBGEEMEMTEHE

cash equivalents 194,630 6,631
Cash and cash equivalents at KREMNRERRESEEY

beginning of reporting period 86,675 79,985
Effect on foreign exchange rate INEEEREE B T

changes, net (59) 59
Cash and cash equivalents at end of REHREESRBEEEY

reporting period, represented by BRITHEBRRS

bank balances and cash 23 281,246 86,675

SKY FOREVER SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT GROUP LIMITED (FE#E#EEEERAR)




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
= & B B | x KM &

Year ended 31 March 2015 #& % —%F

CORPORATE INFORMATION

Sky Forever Supply Chain Management Group Limited (formerly
known as Rising Power Group Holdings Limited) (the “Company”)
is incorporated in Bermuda on 7 June 2001 as an exempted
company with limited liability under the Bermuda Companies Act
of 1981. The Company’s shares are listed on the Growth Enterprise
Market (the “GEM”) of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”). The registered office of the Company is
located at Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM 11,
Bermuda and its principal place of business is located at Room
601, 6/F., China Building, 29 Queen’s Road Central, Hong Kong.

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding and the
principal activities of its subsidiaries are detailed in note 17 to the
consolidated financial statements.

STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”"), which collective term includes all applicable Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”), accounting
principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. These
consolidated financial statements also comply with the applicable
disclosure requirements under the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the GEM of the Stock Exchange (the “GEM Listing
Rules”).

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared on
a basis consistent with the accounting policies adopted in the
2014 consolidated financial statements except for the adoption
of certain new/revised HKFRSs that are relevant to the Group
and effective from the current year as detailed in note 3 to the
consolidated financial statements.

A summary of the principal accounting policies adopted by the
Group is set out in note 3 to the consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BB ® x K O

Year ended 31 March 2015 #& %~ —HAEZH = +— H IL4ERE

e U

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs

Amendments to HKAS 32: Presentation — Offsetting Financial
Assets and Financial Liabilities

The amendments to HKAS 32 clarify the requirements for offsetting
financial instruments. These amendments do not have an impact
on the consolidated financial statements as they are consistent
with the policies already adopted by the Group.

Amendments to HKAS 36: Recoverable Amount Disclosures for
Non-Financial Assets

The amendments to HKAS 36 modify the disclosure requirements
for impaired non-financial assets. Among them, additional
information is required to be disclosed when the recoverable
amount of impaired assets is based on fair value less costs
of disposal. These amendments do not have an impact on the
consolidated financial statements.

Basis of measurement

The measurement basis used in the preparation of these
consolidated financial statements is historical cost, except for
available-for-sale financial assets, which are measured at fair value
as explained in the accounting policies set out below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial
statements of the Company and all of its subsidiaries as at 31
March each year. The financial statements of the subsidiaries are
prepared for the same reporting year as that of the Company using
consistent accounting policies.

All intra-group balances, transactions, income and expenses
and profits and losses resulting from intragroup transactions are
eliminated in full. The results of subsidiaries are consolidated from
the date on which the Group obtains control and continue to be
consolidated until the date that such control ceases.
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Year ended 31 March 2015 &RE_F—HFE=H=+—HILFE

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Non-controlling interests are presented, separately from equity
holders of the Company, in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income and within equity in the consolidated
statement of financial position. The non-controlling interests in the
acquiree, that are present ownership interests and entitle their
holders to a proportionate share of the acquiree’s net assets in
the event of liquidation, are measured initially either at fair value
or at the present ownership instruments’ proportionate share in
the recognised amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets.
This choice of measurement basis is made on an acquisition-
by-acquisition basis. Other types of non-controlling interests are
initially measured at fair value, unless another measurement basis
is required by HKFRSs.

Allocation of total comprehensive income

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income
are attributed to the equity holders of the Company and to the non-
controlling interests. Total comprehensive income is attributed
to the equity holders of the Company and the non-controlling
interests even if this results in the non-controlling interests having a
deficit balance.

Changes in ownership interest

Changes in the Group’s ownership interest in a subsidiary that
do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as equity
transactions. The carrying amounts of the controlling and non-
controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in their
relative interests in the subsidiary. Any difference between the
amount by which the non-controlling interests are adjusted and
the fair value of the consideration paid or received is recognised
directly in equity and attributed to the equity holders of the
Company.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Changes in ownership interest (Continued)

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the profit or loss on
disposal is calculated as the difference between (i) the aggregate
of the fair value of the consideration received and the fair value of
any retained interest determined at the date when control is lost
and (ii) the carrying amount of the assets (including goodwill), and
liabilities of the subsidiary and any non-controlling interests at the
date when control is lost. The amounts previously recognised in
other comprehensive income in relation to the disposed subsidiary
are accounted for on the same basis as would be required if the
Group had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.
Any investment retained in the former subsidiary and any amounts
owed by or to the former subsidiary are accounted for as a
financial asset, associate, joint venture or others as appropriate
from the date when control is lost.

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity that is controlled by the Group. The
Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or has rights, to
variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has the
ability to affect those returns through its power over the entity.
The Group reassesses whether it controls an investee if facts and
circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of
the elements of control.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, an investment
in subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment loss. The carrying
amount of the investment is reduced to its recoverable amount on
an individual basis, if it is higher than the recoverable amount. The
results of subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company on the
basis of dividends received and receivable.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant
influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in the
financial and operating policy decisions of the investee but no
control or joint control of those policies.

The Group’s investment in associate is accounted for under the
equity method of accounting, except when the investment or a
portion thereof is classified as held for sale. Under the equity
method, the investment is initially recorded at cost and adjusted
thereafter for the post-acquisition changes in the Group’s share of
the investee’s net assets and any impairment loss relating to the
investment. Except to the extent that the Group has incurred legal
or constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of the
investee, the Group discontinues recognising its share of further
losses when the Group’s share of losses of the investee equals or
exceeds the carrying amount of its interest in the investee, which
includes any long term interests that, in substance, form part of the
Group’s net investment in the investee.

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from transactions between
the Group and its associates are eliminated to the extent of the
Group’s interest in the investees, except where unrealised losses
provide evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred, in
which case they are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

If an investment in an associate becomes an investment in a
joint venture, any retained interest is not remeasured. Instead,
the investment continues to be accounted for under the equity
method. In all other cases, on the loss of significant influence, the
Group remeasures any retained interest in the former investee at
fair value. The difference between the fair value of any retained
investment and proceeds from disposing of the partial interest
in the investee and the carrying amount of the investment at
the date when significant influence is lost is recognised in profit
or loss. In addition, all amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in respect of the former investee are
accounted for on the same basis as would be required if the former
investee had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.
The fair value of the retained interest on the date of ceasing to be
an associate is regarded as the fair value on initial recognition of a
financial asset.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a subsidiary is measured at
the excess of the consideration transferred, the amount of any
non-controlling interests in the acquiree and the fair value of any
previously held equity interest in the acquiree over the acquisition
date amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities
assumed of the acquired subsidiary. Goodwill arising on an
acquisition of an associate is measured as the excess of the cost
of investment over the Group’s share of the net fair value of the
identifiable assets and liabilities of the acquired associate.

Goodwill on acquisition of subsidiary is recognised as a separate
asset. Goodwill on acquisitions of associates is included
in interests in associates. Goodwill is carried at cost less
accumulated impairment losses, which is tested for impairment
annually or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying value may be impaired. For the purpose
of impairment test and determination of gain or loss on disposal,
goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units. An impairment loss
on goodwill is not reversed.

In respect of a subsidiary, any excess of the acquisition date
amounts of identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed
of the acquired subsidiary over the sum of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interests in the
acquiree and the fair value of the acquirer's previously held
interest in the acquiree, if any, after reassessment, is recognised
immediately in profit or loss as a bargain purchase. In respect of
an associate, any excess of the Group’s share of its net fair value
of identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost of investment is
recognised immediately as income.

Discontinued operation

A discontinued operation is a component of the Group that
comprises operations and cash flows that can be clearly
distinguished, operationally and for financial reporting purposes,
from the rest of the Group. It represents a separate major line of
business or geographical area of operations, or is part of a single
coordinated plan to dispose of a separate major line of business
or geographical area of operations, or is a subsidiary acquired
exclusively with a view to resale. Classification as a discontinued
operation occurs upon disposal or when the operation meets the
criteria to be classified as held for sale, if earlier. It also occurs
when the operation is abandoned.

SKY FOREVER SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT GROUP LIMITED (FE#E#EEEERAR)

TESHBE (B)

Gk

KENBAREL cHENRMERL
RE RBEEBT 2 EMFEERERSE
B RN AIE J7 2 (A7 SE A P45 R AN
mZ A FEBLHMRENBARZER
ARBREERMAZAGBZRERY
SR ERME - WBRERTELL
7B IR B AN TR Hh AN SR B R T A
ZRRERBABANEER BB ATE
RRISHEAE -

BEMELRELECAETIERAES
BE UBKZARELAZEHZABHE
REFE DRI A - BB EKAIR
2 REBER  LASFIERER
B SBEABRTEEEREREREZ
EHABREERERAT 2RA -5
BERAREELERBME BED
TEERCELEN -HBZMESRE
AREEE o

HMBLRRAME - MKENBARZEHE
AR BRI EERMAEAE CWERS
SHBLAERRE KRR 2 EM
JRHE R i o 2 88 S R U7 St B IR R R
KRR 2 N ERRE EFER (I
B)  BAHERAIENBRANER R —8
HEBE - BBMERRAME  AEE#E
AHEMNEERBBEZATEFEBLK
BRAZERERE - ARHER AN -

ERIEEH
EREXRGRAGEZH . — &0 &
EERRERIEELHHREB M
5 OAEASREEMEFERED o &A
NEFEHF - EBUNEIEXHHEK
REWE  INE-REFELEEE
EBIREHER T2 REEMUEZ
MEBRAR - EHEREZEBTENE
REER (UAREERE) IFRER
EXE® - EXBERERTEHRER
EXEB-
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Year ended 31 March 2015 &RE_F—HFE=H=+—HILFE

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Trademarks

The initial cost of acquiring trademarks is capitalised. Trademarks
with indefinite useful lives are carried at cost less accumulated
impairment losses. Trademarks with finite useful lives are carried at
cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment
losses. Amortisation is provided on the straight-line basis over their
estimated useful lives of 10 years.

Computer software/Research and development costs

Research costs are expensed as incurred. Costs incurred on
development activities, which involve the application of research
findings to a plan or design for the production of new or
substantially improved products and processes, are capitalised
if the product or process is technically and commercially
feasible and the Group has sufficient resources to complete
the development. The expenditure capitalised includes the cost
of materials, direct labour and an appropriate proportion of
overheads. Other development expenditure is recognised in profit
or loss as an expense as incurred. When the asset is available
for use, the capitalised development costs are amortised on a
straight-line basis over the estimated useful life.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses. The cost of an
item of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase
price and any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its
working condition and location for its intended use. Repairs and
maintenance are charged to profit or loss during the year in which
they are incurred.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost less accumulated
impairment losses of property, plant and equipment over their
estimated useful lives as set out below from the date on which they
are available for use and after taking into account their estimated
residual values, using the straight-line method. Where parts of
an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful
lives, the cost of the item is allocated on a reasonable basis and
depreciated separately. The principal annual rates used are as
follows:

Plant and machinery 10%
Leasehold improvements over the remaining lease terms
Furniture and fixtures 20%
Computer and office equipment ~ 20%

Motor vehicles 25%

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss
arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
item) is included in profit or loss in the year in which the item is
derecognised.

Financial instruments

Recognition and derecognition

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when and
only when the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions
of the instruments and on a trade date basis.

A financial asset is derecognised when and only when (i) the
Group’s contractual rights to future cash flows from the financial
asset expire or (i) the Group transfers the financial asset and
either (a) the Group transfers substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership of the financial asset, or (b) the Group neither
transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the financial asset but it does not retain control of the
financial asset.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Recognition and derecognition (Continued)

If the Group retains substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Group continues to
recognise the financial asset and also recognises a collateralised
borrowing for the proceeds received.

If the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership and continues to control the transferred
asset, the Group recognises the financial asset to the extent of its
continuing involvement and an associated liability for amounts it
may have to pay.

A financial liability is derecognised when and only when the
liability is extinguished, that is, when the obligation specified in the
relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or expires.

Classification and measurement

Financial assets or financial liabilities are initially recognised at
their fair value plus, in the case of financial assets or financial
liabilities not carried at fair value through profit or loss, transaction
costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of the
financial assets or financial liabilities.

(1) Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an
active market and are not held for trading. They are measured
at amortised cost using the effective interest method, except
where receivables are interest-free loans and without any
fixed repayment term or the effect of discounting would be
insignificant. In such case, the receivables are stated at cost
less impairment loss. Amortised cost is calculated by taking
into account any discount or premium on acquisition over the
year to maturity. Gains and losses arising from derecognition,
impairment or through the amortisation process are
recognised in profit or loss.

= & B B | x KM &

Year ended 31 March 2015 &RE_F—HFE=H=+—HILFE

3. FEEFTHR(E)
$RIA (&)
R R BE R (&)
MARBABRERECER I MARL
ERREERzEBEE ~EEE
BETER T RE E A RIER 5P AT
BRREZEERER -

WARERTER R RBURE A #
ZEBREER  BEEEHMEBBEEE -
AEEREFE2EREERARASN
ZHBAEEMEREBEE

EREENBERNREHRRE T BUEHE
R BB A ERMER - i
EAEN IS

PR E
SWAELBABYSRAFENE
MeBAERSMA B RRATFEN
AR RN LR BT BAER
SMEEZAEBERIRA -

(1) BEFREWN

BER R YR B A B XA
SHERRERMSRE LI
RERZHEZHFTESREE -
WERBEBRF R TR & HA A
E HEEURRELEERRILEE
AEEERNRB R EEATE
BRON o MR IER T » Y IR AR AR
OB B (B 1R 51 B o # 5H Ak K T &t
AWFE 2 (EARIRER s B IR IR R B
MAZERE - BEUHER R
BRETEEFEL 2 R RBE
TSR BE R -

ANNUAL REPORT 2014-2015 5 3}




68
>

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

n

N

a8 9

™ w R KM R

Year ended 31 March 2015 #& %~ —HAEZH = +— H IL4ERE

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Classification and measurement (Continued)

(2) Available-for-sale financial assets
Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivative
financial assets that are either designated at this category
or not classified in any of the other categories of financial
assets. They are measured at fair value with changes in
value recognised as a separate component of equity until
the assets are sold, collected or otherwise disposed of, or
until the assets are determined to be impaired, at which
time the cumulative gain or loss previously reported in other
comprehensive income shall be reclassified to profit or loss
as a reclassification adjustment.

Available-for-sale financial assets that do not have a quoted
market price in an active market and whose fair value cannot
be reliably measured are stated at cost less impairment loss.

(8) Financial liabilities
All financial liabilities except for derivatives are recognised
initially at their fair value and subsequently measured at
amortised cost, using the effective interest method, unless
the effect of discounting would be insignificant, in which case
they are stated at cost.

Impairment of financial assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group assesses whether
there is objective evidence that financial assets, other than those
at fair value through profit or loss, are impaired. The impairment
loss of financial assets carried at amortised cost is measured
as the difference between the assets’ carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flow discounted at the
financial asset’s original effective interest rate. Such impairment
loss is reversed in subsequent periods through profit or loss
when an increase in the asset's recoverable amount can be
related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was
recognised, subject to a restriction that the carrying amount of the
asset at the date the impairment is reversed does not exceed what
the amortised cost would have been had the impairment not been
recognised.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

When an available-for-sale financial asset is impaired, a cumulative
loss comprising the difference between its acquisition cost
(net of any principal repayment and amortisation) and current
fair value, less any previously recognised impairment loss in
profit or loss, is reclassified from equity to profit or loss as a
reclassification adjustment. Impairment losses recognised in profit
or loss in respect of available-for-sale equity instrument are not
reversed through profit or loss. Any subsequent increase in fair
value of available-for-sale equity instrument after recognition of
impairment loss is recognised in equity. Reversal of impairment
loss of available-for-sale debt instruments are reversed through
profit or loss, if the increase in fair value of the instrument can be
objectively related to an event occurring after the impairment loss
was recognised in profit or loss.

For an available-for-sale financial asset that is carried at cost, the
amount of impairment loss is measured as the difference between
the carrying amount of the financial asset and the present value of
estimated future cash flows discounted at the current market rate
of return for a similar financial asset. Such impairment loss shall
not be reversed.

Cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash
equivalents represent short-term highly liquid investments which
are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which are
subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, net of bank
overdrafts.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the Group and when the revenue and costs, if
applicable, can be measured reliably and on the following bases:

Sale of goods is recognised on transfer of risk and rewards of
ownership, which generally coincides with the time when the
goods are delivered to customers and the title is passed.

Income in respect of lightning electromagnetic pulse protection
business, energy management business and supply chain
management business is recognised when services are rendered.
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LAY

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Interest income from financial assets is accrued on a time basis,
by reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective
interest rate applicable.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the Group’s
rights to receive payment have been established.

Foreign currency translation

Items included in the financial statements of each of the Group’s
entities are measured using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates (the “functional
currency”). The consolidated financial statements are presented
in the currency of Hong Kong dollars, which is the Company’s
functional and presentation currency.

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional
currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the
transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the
settlement of such transactions and from the translation at year-
end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies are recognised in profit or loss. Foreign
exchange gains and losses resulting from the retranslation of non-
monetary items carried at fair value are recognised in profit or
loss except for those arising on the retranslation of non-monetary
items in respect of which gains and losses are recognised directly
in equity, in which cases, the gains or losses are also recognised
directly in equity.

SKY FOREVER SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT GROUP LIMITED (FE#E#EEEERAR)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Foreign currency translation (Continued)
The results and financial position of all the Group’s entities that
have a functional currency different from the presentation currency
(“foreign operations”) are translated into the presentation currency
as follows:

e  Assets and liabilities for each statement of financial position
presented and, where applicable, goodwill and fair value
adjustments on the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
arising on an acquisition of a foreign operation which are to
be treated as assets and liabilities of that foreign operation,
are translated at the closing rate at the end of the reporting
period.

e Income and expenses for each statement of comprehensive
income are translated at average exchange rate.

e All resulting exchange differences arising from the above
translation and exchange differences arising from a monetary
item that forms part of the Group’s net investment in a foreign
operation are recognised as a separate component of equity.

e On the disposal of a foreign operation, which includes a
disposal of the Group’s entire interest in a foreign operation,
a disposal involving the loss of control over a subsidiary
that includes a foreign operation, or a partial disposal of an
interest in a joint arrangement or an associate that includes
a foreign operation of which the retained interest is no longer
equity-accounted for, the cumulative amount of the exchange
differences relating to the foreign operation that is recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated in the
separate component of equity is reclassified from equity to
profit or loss when the gain or loss on disposal is recognised.

e  On partial disposal of the Group’s interest in a subsidiary
that includes a foreign operation which does not result in the
Group losing control over the subsidiary, the proportionate
share of the cumulative amount of the exchange differences
recognised in the separate component of equity is re-
attributed to the non-controlling interests in that foreign
operation and are not reclassified in profit or loss.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Foreign currency translation (Continued)

e On all other partial disposals, which includes partial
disposal of associates or joint ventures that do not result in
the Group losing significant influence or joint control, the
proportionate share of the cumulative amount of exchange
differences recognised in the separate component of equity is
reclassified to profit or loss.

Impairment of other assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews internal
and external sources of information to assess whether there is any
indication that property, plant and equipment, intangible assets,
other assets and investment in subsidiaries and associates may be
impaired or impairment loss previously recognised no longer exists
or may be reduced. If any such indication exists, the recoverable
amount of the asset is estimated, based on the higher of its fair
value less costs to sell and value in use. Where it is not possible to
estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Group
estimates the recoverable amount of the smallest group of assets
that generates cash flows independently (i.e. cash-generating
unit).

If the recoverable amount of an asset or a cash-generating unit is
estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount
of the asset or cash-generating unit is reduced to its recoverable
amount. Impairment losses are recognised as an expense
immediately.

A reversal of impairment loss is limited to the carrying amount of
the asset or cash-generating unit that would have been determined
had no impairment loss been recognised in prior years. Reversal
of impairment loss is recognised as income in profit or loss
immediately.

For investments in associates recognised using the equity method,
the impairment loss is measured by comparing the recoverable
amount of the investment as a whole with its carrying amount. The
impairment loss is reversed if there has been a favourable change
in the estimates uses to determine the recoverable amount.

The accounting policy for recognition and reversal of the
impairment loss for goodwill is stated in the accounting policy for
goodwill in the earlier part of this note.

SKY FOREVER SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT GROUP LIMITED (FE#E#EEEERAR)

TESHBE (B)

HEERE (F)

s ERMAHEMSMNEE (BREIHMHE
ERENARARELREEUAE
BAREBATE NS AREHE) -
AIRESEBSORACELER
ZEBAEHEMELPIER D BRER

s o
T

HitbEERE

RERERR - AEEKRE A RN
BRAR - NEEDE - BEREE - &
FRERNMBARLBERR 2 RE

SRERETRIUNEERZRBEER
REEBIAGFEXAEDED - HEH

EAZETR  BREBEECLTFE
BEERAREREE(URSERE)
CRERE RS R R A
BEZAROERH ARESFEEL
EXRERECKRNEEMAR (AREE
REM) ZAKREEHE

Wist —HEEX—EREELEN

Al EeBEREREE  MABE
ESREELEN 2 RAES THRE
AL E S8 o BEEEEER AR

AEBREEREIRABEENZEERR
SELEBNUNBEFE WA REMIR
EEEMAEZREE QEREBR
AERBETER DA

FRAfREDSZRANGEQRRRE -
HEEEMNTAFTE - HEREETK
EEBNETHRANES  Alggm
BEREHE -

AEREBRZERRDR 2 @ HER
TORAHIEERT X 2 B & S BR AR -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Leases

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the
lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
to the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

Rentals payable under operating leases are charged to profit or
loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.

Lease incentives are recognised in profit or loss as an integral part
of the net consideration agreed for the use of the leased asset.
Contingent rentals are recognised as expenses in the accounting
period in which they are incurred.

Employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave, contributions to
defined contribution retirement plans and the cost of non-monetary
benefits are accrued in the year in which the associated services
are rendered by employees. Where payment or settlement is
deferred and the effect would be material, these amounts are
stated at their present values.

Defined contribution plans

The obligations for contributions to defined contribution retirement
scheme for the staff in Hong Kong are recognised as an expense
in profit or loss as incurred and are reduced by contributions
forfeited by those employees who leave the scheme prior the
contributions are vested fully in those employees. The assets of
the scheme are held separately from those of the Group in an
independently administered fund.

Pursuant to the law and regulations of the People’s Republic
of China (the “PRC”), contributions to the defined contribution
retirement schemes for the Group’s PRC staff are made to the
relevant government authorities in the PRC, which are calculated
on certain percentages of the applicable payroll costs as
stipulated under the requirements in the PRC. These contributions
are expensed as incurred.

= & B B | x KM &

Year ended 31 March 2015 &RE_F—HFE=H=+—HILFE

FTEETEE(B)

RN

AR REEEZEAD YRR K EFES
EBEAZHOYBERBERN AR
RO BREERLD -

RELEHENZENEEZRERERE
ARABMARNBS R MGE -

HOBBERESTHAS/BERREE
BEZFRECARES - ZAEERN
EX et PHEER/AX -

BERH

KHES 15T

e FRIEL FEAHFRY - REH
At 2 R MR G R Z KA
HERBREMURE < FEANAETEE
X3 AXHEREREEANTE » %
FHRAINRE 2 RE2H

RE Bt &

HEBB T 2 AEHFE R EIfRZ
ERERLERAEREARR AR &
B 2 8RB AT R a8 408
Wz BTG EMR el cEERME
AEBEENHCBUERESRA -

BREFEARLME ((FE]) 2EER
RO AEBEREPEETHENRE
HRERFE 2 HEREXTHEABEK
[FH#E  HRFRFRRAELNERTLE
RAN—EBANLEE - ZFHKES
HRERBRAXH -

ANNUAL REPORT 2014-2015 5 3}




74

P W
l._“.‘-

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

n

N

a5 B

™ w R KM O

Year ended 31 March 2015 £ 2 —H4AE=H =1—H IL4E

SKY FOREVER SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT GROUP LIMITED (FE#E#EEEERAR)

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Share-based payment transactions

Equity-settled transactions

The Group’s employees, including directors, receive remuneration
in the form of share-based payment transactions, whereby the
employees rendered services in exchange for shares or rights over
shares. The cost of such transactions with employees is measured
by reference to the fair value of the equity instruments at the grant
date. The fair value of share options granted to employees is
recognised as an employee cost with a corresponding increase
in a reserve within equity. The fair value is determined using the
Black-Scholes-Merton model, taking into account the terms and
conditions of the transactions, other than conditions linked to the
price of the shares of the Company (“market conditions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised, together with
a corresponding increase in equity, over the years in which the
vesting conditions are to be fulfilled, ending on the date on which
the relevant employees become fully entitled to the award (“vesting
date”). During the vesting period, the number of share options that
is expected to vest ultimately is reviewed. Any adjustment to the
cumulative fair value recognised in prior years is charged/credited
to profit or loss for the year of the review, with a corresponding
adjustment to the reserve within equity.

When the share options are forfeited after the vesting date or
are still not exercised at the expiry date, the amount previously
recognised in share options reserve will be transferred to retained
earnings.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, an
additional expense is recognised for any increase in the value of
the transaction as a result of the modification, as measured at the
date of modification.

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled before the vesting
date, it is treated as if it had vested on the date of cancellation,
and any expense not yet recognised for the award is recognised
immediately. However, if a new award is substituted for the
cancelled award, and designated as a replacement award on the
date that it is granted, the cancelled and new awards are treated
as if they were a modification of the original award, as described
above.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Share-based payment transactions (Continued)

Equity-settled transactions (Continued)

Share-based payment transactions in which the Company grants
share options to subsidiaries’ employees are accounted for as an
increase in value of investment in subsidiaries in the Company’s
statement of financial position which is eliminated on consolidation.

Taxation

The charge for current income tax is based on the results for the
year as adjusted for items that are non-assessable or disallowed.
It is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period between
the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in
the consolidated financial statements. However, any deferred tax
arising from initial recognition of goodwill; or other asset or liability
in a transaction other than a business combination that at the time
of the transaction affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable
profit or loss is not recognised.

The deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is
recovered or the liability is settled, based on tax rates and tax laws
that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the
reporting period.

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable
that future taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences, tax losses and credits can be
utilised.

Deferred tax is provided on temporary differences arising on
investment in subsidiaries and associates, except where the timing
of the reversal of the temporary differences is controlled by the
Group and it is probable that the temporary difference will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.
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OTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 3. BETBUR (8)
Related parties ki yal

A related party is a person or entity that is related to the Group. A AEANEEEREEZEAANERE -
(a) A person or a close member of that person’s family is related (@) M—BATFHEUATEYE  BIEZA
to the Group if that person: THZBRATRBZORBASE

Z BT
(i)  has control or joint control over the Group; () HEAEEHEFEHIENERE

48

(ii) has significant influence over the Group; or (i) BREEEBEEATE N 5%

(iii)y is a member of the key management personnel of the (i) AAEEZFTEEEERS -
Group.

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the following (b) WUATEMEGERE  EEAK
conditions applies: EE BB

(i) the entity and the Group are members of the same iy & %Eﬁi$&l7%ﬂ ’EIEZ,E\
group (which means that each parent, subsidiary and AEl(EBEEEQF  -HMEA
fellow subsidiary is related to the others). A E AR AR Féﬁ

) -

(i) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other (i) "AEBARS ERZHER
entity (or an associate or joint venture of a member of a EE A EACY-E -
group of which the other entity is a member). R P WNGIPA /NG

HEEhE) o
(iii) both entities are joint ventures of the same third party. (i) MABBHARR-—F=AZ&
BOE -

(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other (ivy " HEBARE-BBAZ2D

entity is an associate of the third entity. ¥ mME—EBRE=-EBZ
B AT e

(v) the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the (v) ERRAAEENEAEES
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity Ml s B 7 EEEHN TR
related to the Group. If the Group is itself such a plan, ZEEB B ERET 2 o (MAREE
the sponsoring employers are also related to the Group. AERZTE BB EEE

AEE NG

(vi) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person (vi) BEEX(a)FTHEE AL HIsk
identified in (a). [RIFE | o

(vii) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence (vii) (Q()VFTEEATHERERS
over the entity or is a member of the key management %i%:jjyz%,*?gﬁf (k% =&
personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity). BRANR)ZTEEEBEAS °

k- e
. SKY FOREVER SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT GROUP LIMITED (18 [Es# =B AE A /)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Related parties (Continued)

Close members of the family of a person are those family members
who may be expected to influence, or be influenced by, that
person in their dealings with the entity and include:

(a) that person’s children and spouse or domestic partner;

(b) children of that person’s spouse or domestic partner; and

(c) dependants of that person or that person’s spouse or
domestic partner.

In the definition of a related party, an associate includes
subsidiaries of the associate and a joint venture includes
subsidiaries of the joint venture.

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment item
reported in the consolidated financial statements, are identified
from the financial information provided regularly to the Group’s
chief operating decision maker for the purpose of allocating
resources to, and assessing the performance of, the Group’s
various lines of business and geographical locations.

Individual material operating segments are not aggregated for
financial reporting purposes unless the segments have similar
economic characteristics and are similar in respect of the nature
of products and services, the nature of production processes, the
type or class of customers, the methods used to distribute the
products or provide the services, and the nature of the regulatory
environment. Operating segments which are not individually
material may be aggregated if they share a majority of these
criteria.

Critical accounting estimates and judgements

Estimates and assumptions concerning the future and judgements
are made by the management in the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements. They affect the application
of the Group’s accounting policies, reported amounts of assets,
liabilities, income and expenses, and disclosures made. They
are assessed on an on-going basis and are based on experience
and relevant factors, including expectations of future events that
are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. Where
appropriate, revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in
the period of revision and future periods, in case the revision also
affects future periods.
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3. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 3. FEIBR(B)
Critical accounting estimates and judgements (Continued) FESHLE R HE (8)
(a) EFEBEIFIELIEAXHE

(a) Critical judgements made in applying accounting policies

Subsidiary governed under contractual arrangements

A subsidiary of the Company, tREHEAEEER AR
(“Reese Compaq”) entered into a set of control agreements
and supplemental agreements (the “Control Agreements”)
with It R B BIRFRBEARAE (“Outwitting Huanyu”) and the
legal owners of Outwitting Huanyu in December 2011. Since
there was a change in a legal owner of Outwitting Huanyu
during the year, Reese Compaq entered into another set of
control agreements with the new legal owner. In the opinion of
the directors and in accordance with the terms of the Control
Agreements, Reese Compaqg controls Outwitting Huanyu
because:

(i) the board of directors of Outwitting Huanyu is controlled
by Reese Compaq pursuant to the management
appointment agreements and the directors’
undertakings;

(ii) the general meeting of Outwitting Huanyu is controlled
by Reese Compaqg pursuant to the shareholders’
undertakings and the directors’ undertakings; and

(iii) all the benefits arising from the equity interests in
Outwitting Huanyu is entirely conveyed to Reese
Compag pursuant to the share charge, exclusive
consultancy service agreement and loan agreement.

The Company believes that, notwithstanding the lack of equity
ownership, the Control Agreements give the Company control
over Outwitting Huanyu in substance. Accordingly, Outwitting
Huanyu is accounted for as a subsidiary of the Company.

Ownership of motor vehicles

Certain motor vehicles of the Group are registered in the
name of independent third parties, which hold the motor
vehicles on behalf of the Group under trust arrangement. In
the opinion of the directors, the trust arrangement is sufficient
to create valid trusts under Hong Kong law and the Group
is the beneficial owner of the motor vehicles. Therefore, the
Group has accounted for these motor vehicles as property,
plant and equipment of the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
= 8

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Critical accounting estimates and judgements (Continued)
(b) Key resources of estimation uncertainty

Allowance for bad and doubtful debts

The provisioning policy for bad and doubtful debts of
the Group is based on the evaluation by management
of the collectability of the trade and other receivables. A
considerable amount of judgement is required in assessing
the ultimate realisation of these receivables, including
assessing the current creditworthiness and the past collection
history of each customer. If the financial conditions of these
customers were to deteriorate, resulting in an impairment
of their ability to make payments, additional allowance will
be required. At the end of the reporting period, the carrying
amount of trade and other receivables after provision
for impairment amounted to HK$489,634,000 (2014:
HK$57,263,000).

Impairment of investments and receivables

The Group assesses annually if investments in subsidiaries
and associates have suffered any impairment in accordance
with HKAS 36 and follows the guidance of HKAS 39 in
determining whether amounts due from these entities are
impaired. Details of the approach are stated in the respective
accounting policies. The assessment requires an estimation
of future cash flows, including expected dividends, from
the assets and the selection of appropriate discount rates.
Future changes in financial performance and position of these
entities would affect the estimation of impairment loss and
cause the adjustments of their carrying amounts.

BB O® R K O

Year ended 31 March 2015 &RE_F—HFE=H=+—HILFE
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Critical accounting estimates and judgements (Continued)
(b) Key resources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Impairment of goodwill

The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired at least
on an annual basis. This requires an estimation of the value
in use of the cash-generating units to which the goodwill is
allocated. Estimating the value in use requires the Group
to make an estimate of the expected cash flows from the
cash-generating unit and to choose a suitable discount rate
in order to calculate the present value of those cash flows.
Details of the estimates used to calculate the recoverable
amount are given in note 21 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Impairment of property, plant and equipment and intangible
assets

The management determines whether the Group’s property,
plant and equipment and intangible assets are impaired
where an indication of impairment exists. This requires an
estimation of the recoverable amount of the property, plant
and equipment and intangible assets, which is equal to the
higher of net selling price or the value in use. Estimating the
value in use requires the management to make an estimate
of the expected future cash flows from property, plant and
equipment and intangible assets and also to choose a suitable
discount rate in order to calculate the present value of those
cash flows. Any impairment will be charged to profit or loss.

SKY FOREVER SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT GROUP LIMITED (FE#E#EEEERAR)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEME
e M B ® R K &

Year ended 31 March 2015 &RE_F—HFE=H=+—HILFE

3. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 3. TETBER ( &)
Future changes in HKFRSs Ezﬁﬁ!ﬂ%ﬁ R 2 RKEE
At the date of authorisation of these consolidated financial E’\nxi';{”%/\ﬁﬂﬂ#&ﬁZHtEElﬁﬁ &8

statements, the HKICPA has issued a number of new/revised
HKFRSs that are not yet effective for the current year, which the

SHMACSERBMGZET/KIEFT2Z
ERVBREER  HRAFEHALE

Group has not early adopted.

o MASEL &R

Amendments to HKAS 19 (2011) Defined Benefit Plans - Employee Bt ERE195 REERHE ESLT
Contributions ' (ZE——E)2BHA

Various HKFRSs Annual Improvements Project - SERBYRREES E-FFR-F-—F
2010-2012 Cycle 2 BHZ iﬁ»ﬂ?}ﬁlﬁﬁ 2

Various HKFRSs Annual Improvements Project - SEE B RLER —F—FE-F-fF
2011-2013 Cycle 2 ﬁéﬁzfﬁﬂ*ﬁ?fﬂéﬁ ?

Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure Initiative ° EASIEANE IR BIR KEiE°

Amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 38  Clarification of Acceptable Methods EROHEREIRLEE TEZZIFERBHE
of Depreciation and Amortisation ® SRR BRE I EITR 2 FEY

Amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 41 Agriculture: Bearer Plants ® RReTENEIE AR £ £ENEY®

SHEHEHR 2B A
Amendments to HKAS 27 (2011) Equity Method in Separate Financial EEeENF7S BUERx 7%

Statement °

(ZB——F)ZEiX

Amendments to HKAS 28 (2011) Sale or Contribution of Assets BB e ERF085% REZHEEL )N
and HKFRS 10 between an Investor and its (ZE——E)RBAEE AEPZZANEE
Associate or Joint Venture ? RERBBIRZEITR  HERLE?

Amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12
and HKAS 28 (2011)

Investment Entities: Applying the
Consolidation Exception

BRMBHREEAFE08
BRMBREEN 125
RER G R F26%
(ZB——F) 2B XK

REEE ERGEHE’

Amendments to HKFRS 11 Accounting for Acquisition of Interests ERUBREERNENSEy WEBLEEEZ 7 8H°
in Joint Operations * iR

HKFRS 14 Regulatory Deferred Accounts ° ERMBRRLENS 14  BHELERS

Various HKFRSs Annual Improvements Project - SEERBY R REER —F-—FIZ-F-F
2012-2014 Cycle * BHEEIEER !

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with BRUBREEANE S KERFANINES
Customers ®

HKFRS 9 (2014) Financial Instruments © BEMBASRNROR  2HIAC

(Z2-mf)
1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2014 1 R-E-MELA-BozAEk/ EEHFEN
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2014, with 2 R-E-—MELR-Ba7ARBZEEERE

limited exceptions

B EARPSMER LB

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016 3 R-E—E—-f-Ba BBk EENEEN

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016, 4 R-E-—RE-R-HazARRZEEHRE
with limited exceptions W EEBAMER 2B

5 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017 5 REE—+E-A-RABRRZEERREN

6 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018 6 R-E-NE—F-Rg BBl EEHRER
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Year ended 31 March 2015 #&E R —HAE=H =+— HIL4EE

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Future changes in HKFRSs (Continued)

The Group does not anticipate that the adoption of these new
HKFRSs in future periods will have any material impact on the
results of the Group.

SEGMENTAL INFORMATION

The Group manages its businesses by individual companies,
which are organised by a mixture of both business lines and
geographical locations. In a manner consistent with the way
in which information is reported internally to the Group’s chief

ZEEER (&)
Eﬁﬂﬂ%i&%ﬁ-ﬁﬂziﬂﬁ"@@(%)
AEBFEFRAKBRENZEH BB
WHERERAR I SUAEE 2 XEE
REMEATE -

£ BRR

ARBEREBHBRUE - EEAE
S AESIBPERL RS  ARERRE
CREEESESY ot PE NG
AAEE) FHARARRERH 2 A

operating decision makers, who are the directors of the Company,

BEAZ—85 2 THREDE
BEaSHERRE D BAK TIHRE D
assessment, the Group has presented the following reporting =5

for the purposes of resource allocation and performance

segments. No operating segments have been aggregated to form
the following reporting segments:

A=Y

- Supply chain management segment which provides services - RESERBEEREZEZEMARA
involving the planning and implementation of an integrated RORE NEEEREZBR Y
solution for the effective flow of business, logistic, information moERER BEeRANEENH
and funds; JESHE IR D H

- Lightning electromagnetic pulse segment which provides - REZETUREGHEEXEHSREAZ

integrated solutions for lightning electromagnetic pulse
protection and its related engineering design, construction

MR T2 RG - BRREEMRS
ZEEBMANTRNEBEURED

and technical services; and N8

- Energy management segment which provides energy and - REREREREMEREENSOR
other resources management and conservation system and CURGABATRENEREE D
integrated solutions. 20 o

3982

I'h - :._-P_.
-— .
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATE
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4,

SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (Continued)
(a) Segment results, assets and liabilities

For the purposes of assessing segment performance and
allocating resources between segments, the Group’s chief
operating decision makers monitor the results, assets and
liabilities attributable to each reporting segment on the
following bases:

Segment assets include all allocated assets with the
exception of available-for-sale financial assets and other
corporate assets. Segment liabilities include trade and other
payables attributable to the sales/service activities of the
individual segments.

Revenue and expenses are allocated to the reporting
segments with reference to revenue generated by those
segments and the expenses incurred by those segments
or which otherwise arise from the depreciation of assets
attributable to those segments. However, assistance provided
by one segment to another, including sharing of assets and
technical know-how, is not measured.

Information regarding the Group’s reporting segments as
provided to the Group’s chief operating decision makers
for the purposes of resource allocation and assessment of
segment performance for the years ended 31 March 2015
and 2014 is set out below.

Y St

llei\

Year ended 31 March 2015 #& % ~2—FAE=H =1 —H L4

DEEE - BERERE
RABEDHRBERRE D BELE
BRME  AKEEFELERRA
BRUTEREERREN MR
B RERRE:
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3 -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M B ® Ok K O

Year ended 31 March 2015 & %E R —FE=H=+—HILFE

4. SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (Continued) 4, DEHER (8)
(a) Segment results, assets and liabilities (Continued) (a) P BEE BEEREE (E)
Continuing operations FFELE R
Lightning
Supply chain electromagnetic
management pulse protection Energy management
services business business business Consolidated
HERERRHER FEEHREREXE EREBER e

2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014

(In HK$'000) (LEEFLAEM) —%-1% _—E-ME —%-1f _T-MEF ZB-5f _T-MF CB-Ef _T-QF
Segment revenue PG
Sale of goods fo RIBEPHEER

external customers 1,630,379 - - - - - 1,630,379 -
Service fees from mINBEPYER

external customers REER 557 3548 1,922 9474 9,682 13,022

1,630,936 3,948 1,922 9474 1,640,061 13,022

Segment results e (13,880) (4,103) (1,293) (4440)  (18,888)  (8,63)
Loss on disposal of LETRIESR

available-for-sale BE/EE

financial assets - - - - (70) =
Impairment loss of goodwil BERERR - (13,900) - - (40000 (13,900)
Unallocated income AABUA 2,008 695
Unallocated expenses AR i (39,722)  (24.929)
Share of results of associates ~ EAEENREE (1528) (12,255
Loss before taxation BHAES (62,195)  (58,952)
Income tax expenses HEREY = (14)
Loss for the year from RELEEE

continuing operations EREE 62,195 (58,966)
Assets and labilities RERER
Segment assets APEE 560,088 17,600 8,670 8,244 582,617 25,844
Assets relating to discontinued ~~ HEA L%

operations EE%ZEE - - - 13,186 - 13186
Unallocated assets, including ROMEE  BER

interests in associates BENT 2 ER 287064 142878
Consolidated total assets GREESE 819,881 181908
Seqment liabilities PELL 318,984 6,482 10,068 7,090 335,737 13572
Liabilies relating to BEAEH

discontinued operations A - - - 9,553 - 9553
Unallocated liabilties AREE 6,054 5595
Consoldated total liabiltes FRaBEE W 28720
Other segment information A HEH
Amortisation of intangible assets ~ EFEE#SH - - - - 4 -
Amortisation of other asses HfEEER - - - - 545 -
Depreciation il \ 13 44 22 172 2,895 383
Additions to non-current assets ~ FEFRGEE 10,923 233 - 90 37,198 33
Research and RERREAA

development costs ‘ - - - 2,110 1,798 2,110
Impairment loss of AR RNERR

intangible assets \ - - - - - 831
Impairment loss of BiiEEZAEEE

deposits paid - - - - - 5,000

SKY FOREVER SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT GROUP LIMITED (FE#E#EEEERAR)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
= & B B | x KM &

Year ended 31 March 2015 &RE_F—HFE=H=+—HILFE

SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (Continued) 4. DHER (F)
(b) Geographical information (b) HEEHR
The Group’s operations are primarily derived from external AREBEBFIERAUNEERH
customers located in Hong Kong and the PRC. The following BHINSEEE o NREYIRMET
table provides an analysis of the Group's revenue from HENAEERBINBE AU
external customers by geographical market and information BT A RIR B EMN BIRENIER
about the non-current assets by locations of assets: MEBEENER o
Revenue from external Carrying amounts of
customers non-current assets
REIDEF R FRBEENREE
2015 2014 2015 2014
(In HK$'000) (KERTTHREL) ZTB-—HF —FT-NE —F-HF —T-QHOF
Hong Kong B 783,543 = 21,583 =
PRC H 856,518 13,022 26,393 22,956
1,640,061 13,022 47,976 22,956
(c) Information about major customers (c) FEXFPZER
For the year ended 31 March 2015, three customers (20714 BE-T—RF=-RA=+—HILHF
one customer) that individually accounted for over 10% of B BR8P (ZF—@mF: —F
total revenue for continuing operations of the Group are set EF)BAAMASERELEEKE
out below: W BiE10%  WEHNMT :
Lightning
Supply chain electromagnetic
management pulse protection Energy management
services business business business Consolidated
HEEERRERE ZEEHRENERE KREEER &a
‘ o 2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014
(In HK$'000) (AT LAEL) “%-1f -“Z-PF -%-1f C-T-MF -%-1f _5-MEF C%-BF _E-MF
Customer A EFA 698,736 - - - - - 698,736 -
Customer B ZFB 342,306 - - - - - 342,306 -
Customer C ZEC 166,744 - - - - - 166,744 =
Customer D ZFD NATER  NATER  NIAFER 2429 NIARER 8865  NIAFER 1124
1,207,786 - - 2,429 - 8,865 1,207,786 11,294
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Year ended 31 March 2015 #&E R —HAE=H =+— HIL4EE

5. TURNOVER AND REVENUE 5, BRI
An analysis of the Group’s turnover and revenue during the year REBRANEENSERESEBESXR
for continuing operations is as follows: Rz AT
Group
rEE
2015 2014
(In HK$'000) (LB FrBEN) —E-—FE —E—mF
Sale of goods from: KEUTHEEZERHEE
Supply chain management services it FE 58 B IR IR IS X 7 1,630,379 -
business
Service fees from: RENTEEZRBER
Lightning electromagnetic pulse ERTURENEER
protection business 7,203 3,548
Energy management business BEREEER 1,922 9,474
Supply chain management services HEEEIRRE XS
business 557 -
Turnover EER 1,640,061 13,022
Interest income from bank deposits RITERFEHA 230 576
Interest income from available-for-sale HEESHMEENT ERA
financial assets 223 45
Interest income from other receivables L 1R L2 5 3B 1 A1 B A 100 =
Other revenue =R 553 621
Total turnover and revenue EEBERKEERE 1,640,614 13,643
6. OTHER INCOME 6. Hfmlr A
Group
rEE
2015 2014
(In HK$°000) (LB FrBEN) —E-—FE —E—mF
Sundry income MBI A 328 120
Waiver of amount due to an HRERNKTB AR
ex-shareholder of subsidiaries —Z AR R FRIB 1,379 -
1,707 120
i‘zlg ®  SKY FOREVER SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT GROUP LIMITED ({84 6 54 MR 2 7))
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

LOSS BEFORE TAXATION

Loss before taxation from both continuing and discontinued
operations is stated after charging (crediting):

= & B B | x KM &

Year ended 31 March 2015 &RE_F—HFE=H=+—HILFE

7. BRBAEE

%% im £«<

%%&E”Jﬁ%ﬂ‘%ﬁﬁmu BB

Tk (FEA) ToIBIREE

Group
r~EE
2015 2014
(In HK$°000) (BT BE ) —E-FE —E—mF
Employee benefit expenses BERAHX (BREEHE)
(including directors’ remuneration)
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind ¥4 « 2ELREYFz 16,190 8,933
Contribution to defined contribution R G B 2 Stk
schemes 705 964
16,895 9,897
Other items HfER
Amortisation of intangible assets BREEEH 4 —
Amortisation of other assets Hin & E#H 545 -~
Auditor’s remuneration ZHAME & 950 630
Cost of services rendered (including RERBKA (BE
relevant employee benefit expenses BEHREERMAXL
and depreciation) &%%) 8,954 12,340
Cost of goods sold EEmEA 1,621,976 —
Depreciation of property, WJ% BERRETE
plant and equipment 2,895 383
Exchange loss (gain), net BE 5B R (s ) 88 3,026 (272)
Loss on disposal of available-for-sale HEHNESRMEE 2 BB
financial assets 70
Impairment loss of deposits paid * BN ZHERE * - 5,000
Impairment loss of goodwill * BEZREESE " 4,000 31,500
Impairment loss of intangible assets * BREEZREEE " - 831
Operating lease payments for premises ~ #M¥ 2 KELHEMR 5,556 862
Research and development costs 3% & B R A 1,798 2,110
Sponsorship fee on naming right —XEHBEBERENERE
over a football team 2,073 -
Write-off of property, plant and equipment #5415 - BE M & 409 =

*

Included in other operating expenses

ATARMEERX
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8. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

The aggregate amounts of remuneration received and receivable
by the Company’s directors are as follows:

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

EEMe

ARAIEECWRERH S

BT

2015
ZE-1F
Salaries, Contribution
allowances  to defined
Directors’ Discretionary  and benefits  contribution
fees bonus in kind scheme Total
o \ 5528 ﬁﬁ
(In HK$1000) (WEETTAEN) ESHe BERL  RENNE ‘UZ1 it
Executive directors HTES
Chan Francis Ping Kuen RinE _
(resigned on 22 July 2014) (RZZ-MELAZTZAEHE) 76 30 - 4 110
Chan Hin Wing, James B Eﬁéé
(resigned on 22 July 2014) (RZE-MELAZTZHEHE) 40 30 - - 70
Chen Nan (35
(appointed on 2 May 2014 (R=Z-MERA_REZER
and re-designated to non-executive E@:%%—ﬂi/\ NH
director on 19 June 2015) HERFNTES) 666 160 - 28 854
Gong Dongsheng BAK
(appointed on 13 June 2014 (RZZ-MEARAT=REZE
and resigned on 19 June 2015) ER-F-RFNATHhARE) 726 200 - 30 956
Li Zhike (appointed on BEM
12 December 2014) (R=Z-MmE+-A+-REZfH) 139 % - 5 234
Woo Yik Man (appointed on PN
27 May 2014 and resigned (R-F-MERA-tLAEZAR
on 12 December 2014) R-E-NE+-A+-HET) 397 211 - 19 627
Wu Zhinan R8E 30 100 638 S 108
2,344 821 638 86 3,889
Non-gxecutive director FYTES
Tsang Ho Ka, Eugene BiEE
(resigned on 22 July 2014) RZE-RELAZ+ZHEA) 132 57 - 6 195
Independent non-executive directors BUFHTES
Cheung Chi Hwa, Justin REE
(resigned on 22 July 2014) (R=F-MELAZ+ZHEA) 2 15 - - 3%
Kinley Lincoln James Lloyd EHE
(appointed on 13 June 2014 (RZZ-WERAT= H EZER
and resigned on 22 July 2014) RCE-MELAZTZHEE) 13 - - - 13
Kwok Chi Sun, Vincent Elpe
(resigned on 22 July 2014) RCB-MELAZT-AEE) 2 15 - - %
Kwok Kam Tim (appointed on BRA
13 June 2014 and resigned (R-B-MERAT=-HEZAR
on 22 July 2014) R-E-mELA-f-RBR) 13 - - - 13
Huang Yunlong BEE
(appointed on 18 July 2014 (R-Z-MELATN\REZER
and resigned on 17 June 2015) RZE-REAA+LEEME) 90 25 - - 115
Liu Weiliang BIER
(appointed on 18 July 2014) (RZZ-MELATN\REZEM) 90 25 - - 115
Ma Yiu Ho, Peter (appointed on SiER
18 July 2014 and resigned (R-Z-MELAT\REZER
on 20 May 2015) R-E-RAFRA-+HEL) 106 25 - - 131
Tam Chak Chi BEL )
(resigned on 2 May 2014) (R=B—MERAZAEE) 10 - - - 10
Yeung Kam Yan BeE
(resigned on 22 July 2014) (R=B-MELAZTZAEH) 2 15 - - 3%
Yu Chon Man (appointed on RER
19 June 2014 and resigned (R=F-REXATNAEZIR
on 22 July 2014) RoB-mEL A= f-REH) 11 - - - 11
393 120 - - 513
2,869 998 638 92 4,597
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Year ended 31 March 2015 & E R —H4E=H =+ —H L4

8. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (Continued) 8. EEM< (&)
2014
—Z-mE
Salaries,  Contribution
allowances to defined
Directors’  Discretionary  and benefits  contribution

fees bonus in kind scheme Total
Ge R AEMH
(In HK$'000) (WA T AEl) E3H% RERL REWHNE FHEZHER @it
Executive directors BTES
Chan Francis Ping Kuen R 201 - - 10 211
Chan Hin Wing, James RER 120 = = 5 125
Chum Hon Sing B3 276 - - 8 284
Sung Ting Yee KR 263 - 75 10 348
Tsang Ho Ka, Eugene LES 125 - - 5 130
Wu Zhinan REM 265 - 504 - 769
1,250 - 579 38 1,867
Non-executive director FUTES
Tsang Ho Ka, Eugene LR 213 - - 8 221
Independent non-executive directors ~ BUFHTES
Cheung Chi Hwa, Justin REE 60 - - = 60
Kwok Chi Sun, Vincent i 60 - - - 60
Tam Chak Chi EEZ 106 - - - 106
Yeung Kam Yan he 60 - - - 60
286 - - - 286
1,749 - 579 46 2,374
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Year ended 31 March 2015 #&E R —HAE=H =+— HIL4EE

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (Continued)

There was no arrangement under which a director waived or
agreed to waive any remuneration for the years ended 31 March
2015 and 2014. In addition, no emoluments were paid by the
Group to any of the directors as an inducement to join, or upon
joining the Group or as a compensation for loss of office for the
years ended 31 March 2015 and 2014.

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, the Company has
appointed several directors as follows:

- On 20 May 2015, Mr. Chui Man Lung, Everett, was
appointed as an independent non-executive director of the
Company;

- On 17 June 2015, Mr. Zhang Xiaozheng was appointed as
an executive director of the Company and Mr. Lam Kwok
Cheong and Mr. Lung Chee Ming, George, were appointed
as a non-executive director and independent non-executive
director of the Company respectively; and

- On 19 June 2015, Mr. Yu Weiye was appointed as an
executive director of the Company.

On 19 June 2015, Ms. Chen Nan re-designated from an executive
director to a non-executive director of the Company;

On 20 May 2015 and 17 June 2015, Mr. Ma Yiu Ho, Peter, and
Mr. Huang Yunlong resigned as independent non-executive
directors of the Company respectively. On 19 June 2015, Mr. Gong
Dongsheng resigned as an executive director of the Company.

ESMS (8)

REBEE-Z-AFEK=_F-—HFE=A
Z+—BILFE SESHETIHRE
KEEREEAMES 2 8 - 1t - A%
EREREE_T-—RER-_T—NF
AT BLEFERERNESIMNE
e EESEBMAREERRNE
AR B RIEE) - SkiEAEBERHE -

RBERRE  ARAREEREES
#EMT :

- RZIE-AFREA-TH RXE
REEBEERARRA ZBULIEHTT
EE

- RZIZE-AFRATLR RNE
REBZERARBZHITES
MHBEEREEREFHELD BIE
EERARBZFMITEERBY
FATES: R

- RIZE-AFRATAR REEXE
REBZERRRBZHITES

RZZ-REXNATNLA BREXLH
HTESHEIRARAIZFATES -

RZZE—RFRA-1+H BERALE
EARBBUFRTESE  R-T—8F
ANATER ZEERLEREALASE
VERTES -RZZE-—RFR ATH
B BRASEBRIADBZIHITES -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATE
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Year ended 31 March 2015 #& % ~2—FAE=H =1 —H L4

9. FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS 9.

The five highest paid individuals during the year included three
directors (2014: one), details of whose remuneration are set out
in note 8 to the consolidated financial statements above. Details
of the remuneration of the remaining two (2014 four) highest paid
individuals, who are not directors, are as follows:

Afi&EHAL
FRARURSHFALER =L (—F—H
F)EF EMEFHBEEHEINEL
XERA BB RRHIES - AHBMAL (ZF
—OF : [fr) FEERBERIBHFAL
EMeHBEII0T

Group
REE
2015 2014
(In HK$'000) (LB TTRENN) —E-FE —T—-mEF
Salaries, allowances and benefits e 2UREYNG
in kind 1,361 2,280
Contribution to defined contribution REMFREE 2 #HR
schemes 25 114
1,386 2,394

The two (2014: four) highest paid individuals’ remuneration falls
within the following band:

WAL (ZF—AF  FAfr) RBEH AL
FMNFTIATEE -

Number of employees

EEHE
2015 2014
—E-EF —E-mE
Nil to HK$1,000,000 T Z=%%1,000,0007T 2 4

No remuneration was paid by the Group to any of the two (2074:
four) highest paid individuals as an inducement to join or upon
joining the Group, or as a compensation for loss of office for the
years ended 31 March 2015 and 2014.

There was no arrangement under which any of the two (2014:
four) highest paid individuals waived or agreed to waive any
remuneration for the years ended 31 March 2015 and 2014.

RBE_Z—HEFRZFT—NF=H
=+—BUEFE AEBYERNEMAM
f(ZFE—WE : fmf7) ZmFATEA
ERHMW - EREBMAREEIRE
MARS B R IZE) - HIERBEBFE -

REBEE-_ZT-—AFK-_FT—HEHF=A
=+—HALEE BMU(ZFE-—HF H
) ERHEATRETIREXRERE
ez 2 -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
= 8 B ﬁi$ﬁ % M &

Year ended 31 March 2015 # % = F—F4E=H =+— H 14
10. INCOME TAX EXPENSES 10. FIEHEAX
Hong Kong Profits Tax has not been provided as the Group AAEERNEBE_E—TFEN_FT—
incurred a loss for taxation purposes for the years ended 31 March FE=A=+—BILEEH#SE mxa;gﬁg '
2015 and 2014. WA EEEF G BE -
The income tax provision in respect of operations in the PRC is BT REBNFRESHEENIREFANZ
calculated at the applicable tax rates on the estimated assessable B EER SN ERREIBEEE
profits for the year based on existing legislation, interpretations BITED - REREFEE o
and practices in respect thereof.
Group
rEE
2015 2014
(In HK$'000) (BB FrBEr) —E-1F ZT N
Continuing operations BREER
Current tax Eﬂ Hﬂ BiIE
PRC enterprise income tax, current year ~ AFEEHRE S EFEH - 14
Discontinued operations ERIEER
Current tax B EA% 1R
PRC enterprise income tax, current year ~AEERE M EFREH - =
Total income tax expenses from EERCRIEEBEH
continuing and discontinued XA
operations - 14
Reconciliation of effective tax rate from continuing operations S ERE LB R R
Group
rEE
2015 2014
—E-—A0F —Z—UF
% %
Applicable tax rate EATE (17.1) (17.9)
Share of results of associates i) WNGIE $ 0.4 3.4
Non-deductible expenses AR B IE 2 14.5 10.2
Non-taxable revenue FERE R M == (1.3) (0.2)
Unrecognised tax losses AR HIBEE 4.5 3.7
Utilisations of previously FERAEAMRAERZREER
unrecognised tax losses (0.4) =
Others Hfth (0.6) 0.8
Effective tax rate for the year AEEEBRBRE - =
The applicable tax rate is the weighted average of tax rates BEAMRARERTLREMEMEZ
prevailing in the territories in which the Group’s entities operate. HITMEEHFE o
92 SKY FOREVER SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT GROUP LIMITED (518 { & 4 & B A [F 2 7))
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11.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEME

DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

On 18 July 2014, Upper Power Limited, a direct wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, entered into a subscription agreement
with an independent third party (the “investor”) pursuant to which
Upper Power Limited sold the entire equity interest of Beaming
Investments Limited (“Beaming”) to the investor at a consideration
of HK$3,000,000 (the “Disposal”). Upon completion of the Disposal
on 1 August 2014, the Group no longer has any equity interest in
Beaming.

Beaming and its subsidiaries, Viva Champion Group (as
hereinafter defined), are engaged in the provision of energy
and other resources management and conservation system and
integrated solutions to optimise usage for enterprise, including the
telecommunication operators in the PRC.

Management considers that following the Disposal, the Group’s
control over Beaming had been discontinued. Since the operation
and cash flow of Beaming were clearly distinguished, operationally
and for financial reporting purposes, and represented a separate
major line of business under the segment of energy management
business, it constituted discontinued operations. The results and
cash flows of Beaming under the discontinued operations for
the period from 1 April 2014 to 1 August 2014 included in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the year
ended 31 March 2015 are as follows:

= A8 M B ® Rk B &

Year ended 31 March 2015 &RE_F—HFE=H=+—HILFE

11.

BRIEEHK
RZZE—mFEFLtA+N\B AARE
2 BB 2 flUpper Power Limited
BEBEVE=F(REE]D T LREW
& B tUpper Power Limitedd #% &
# H £Beaming Investments Limited
([Beaming]) 2 2 &k - RERAEM
3,000,0007T (THEFE]) - HEFER
“E-MENA-—BREKE KEER
B Beaming#k A (£ A AR # -

Beaming & E it B 2 A]Viva Champion
Group (E&E R T e EREEREE
MEREERBHRGIARGZEBART
RUMGE (BREPENEELERN)E
EEA -

EEERARNLESTHEE ~5E
$BeamingZ EH B LKL L - AR
Beamingz & B RBF it & &E R
BEEMMEABRE D WRKRER
EREBIBTH—EBINEZER
EE - WEBRKCRLEEY - FHEE=T
—AEZA=Z+BUEEZHGAZE
Wi kPR A2 B IE ¥ TBeaming
RZE-—HEFONA-—HAEZE=-ZT-—EFEN
A—BHEZEXERRSRENT
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OTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BB ® x K O

Year ended 31 March 2015 #&E R —HAE=H =+— HIL4EE

11. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (Continued) 1. S& ¥R (&)
(a) Profit (Loss) for the year from discontinued operations (a) ERLFHERNZR (EHB)
2015 2014
(In HK$'000) (BB TFraEl) —E-51f —Z—mF
Turnover S 2,066 1,833
Cost of services rendered and cost  RERBE 2K AR HE
of goods sold B2 KA (47) (899)
2,019 934
Selling and distribution costs HE R D AR (1,179) (667)
Administrative expenses TBAX (726) (3,377)
Other operating expenses Hth 8 & R 2 - (17,600)
Profit (Loss) before taxation PRt A A (B1E) 114 (20,710)
Income tax expenses TS 7 < = =
Profit (Loss) after taxation BREE RN (BE) 114 (20,710)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEWB R Rz W 806 =
Income tax related to gain on BRALENB AR KE
disposal of subsidiaries B P13 - _
Net profit (loss) attributable to BRIEEBEEZ
discontinued operations m A (E518) F 58 920 (20,710)
(b) Net cash (outflows) inflows attributable to discontinued (b) EREXBREERS ORH)
: MAFE
operations MAFEE
2015 2014
(In HK$'000) (BB F o B2 T) —ZT-58fF ZT—mEF
Net cash flows ReneFs
Operating activities RS (114) 176
Investing activities REES (12) (90)
Total net cash (outflows) inflows Be (RE)RAFHEE (126) 86
by 94 SKY FOREVER SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT GROUP LIMITED (512 fi 58 & 8 5 22 7])




12.

13.

14.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMEN

LOSS ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE
COMPANY

The loss attributable to equity holders of the Company for the
year ended 31 March 2015 includes a loss of HK$73,769,000
(2014: HK$76,653,000) which has been dealt with in the financial
statements of the Company.

DIVIDENDS
The directors of the Company do not recommend the payment of a
dividend for the year (2014. Nil).

LOSS PER SHARE

The calculation of basic loss per share is based on the loss
attributable to equity holders of the Company for continuing and
discontinued operations and the weighted average number of the

= A8 M B ® Rk B &

Year ended 31 March 2015 &RE_F—HFE=H=+—HILFE

12. XRAREFAEARGER

BE-_T-AE=-A=+—BLEE"
ARRIRERBABLEBEBREERRAR
B Rk P IR B 2 B3 48 5 673,769,000
TT(ZFE—F4F - E]76,653,0007T) °

13. RE
ARBEETEBERNAEERSE (ZF
—JY4E : 4E) o

14. BREE

BRALNERIRERAFELLES
RERIEEBZARBBRERE AEE
BREARFEARARE HTE RN

Company'’s ordinary shares in issue during the year as follows: BEEHREEAENT ¢
2015 2014
(In HK$'000) (BT BE M) —E-5F —E—mF
Loss attributable to equity holders REFBEEEBREKRIEES
of the Company from continuing ZARRRERBAEGLER
and discontinued operations (59,185) (76,292)
Loss attributable to equity holders REFELEEBZADT
of the Company from continuing BiERE ARGER
operations (60,052) (57,104)
2015 2014
—E-AE —E—mF
(restated)
Number of shares BRHEE (E3)
Weighted average number of ordinary FAD BT RRE
shares in issue during the year INHE 35 B 2K 583,046,276 434,506,879

The basic loss per share for 2014 has been restated to reflect the
bonus element of rights issue of shares completed in February
2015.

The Company had no dilutive potential ordinary shares for the
years ended 31 March 2015 and 2014. Accordingly, the diluted
loss per share is the same as basic loss per share.

—E-NEZEREABRBEEEY
IR —ZE—hE = ARk HERAA
FTE -

ARARBE-B-EER-F—MF
A=t -BLAELREEREER
B B - SEREEHARSRERER
IR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BB ® x K O

Year ended 31 March 2015 #& %~ —HAEZH = +— H IL4ERE

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15. Y% - BERRE

Group rE
Furniture Computer
Plant and Leasehold and and office Motor
machinery improvements fixtures equipment vehicles Total
£ )

(In HK$'000) (WERTTRELN) BEREE HENXEE GARRE  BOAZER AE st
Cost A
At 1 April 2013 R-E-=FNA-H 1 802 433 22,402 - 23,638
Additions AE = = = 90 233 323
Exchange realignment B (1) 31 17 862 - 909
At 31 March 2014 and RZZ-MEZA=1+-AR

1 April 2014 RZE-MEMA-A - 833 450 23,354 233 24,870
Additions AE - 409 - 196 15,467 16,072
Disposal of subsidiaries HENBAF - - - (838) - (838)
Written off i - (409) - - - (409)
Exchange realignment B AR - (31) (17) (813) o) (870)
At 31 March 2015 RZE-RE=f=1-H - 802 433 21,899 15,691 38,825
Accumulated depreciation ~ ZHFTERHE

and impairment
At 1 April 2013 R-E-Z4MmA-A - 161 166 22,089 - 2416
Depreciation ik - 167 67 132 17 383
Exchange realignment B AR - 6 6 850 - 862
At 31 March 2014 and RZZ-MEZA=+-AR

1 April 2014 R-Z-mEMA-B - 334 239 23,071 17 23,661
Depreciation il - 160 61 64 2,610 2,895
Disposal of subsidiaries HENBAH - - - (618) - (618)
Exchange realignment B 5 % - (12) (9) (838) (1) (860)
At 31 March 2015 W-2-5F=A=1-R - 482 21 21,679 2,626 25,078
Net book value REFE
At 31 March 2015 RZE-RE=f=1-H - 320 142 220 13,065 13,747
At 1 April 2014 RZE-MERA-A - 499 211 283 216 1,209

SKY FOREVER SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT GROUP LIMITED (FE#E#EEEERAR)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STAT

= & B B | x KM &

Year ended 31 March 2015 #& % ~2—FAE=H =1 —H L4

INTANGIBLE ASSETS 16. EFEE
Group rEE
Computer

software Trademarks Total
(In HK$'000) (LBETFTREN) EREH 5L @t
Reconciliation of carrying amount REEYHR

- year ended 31 March 2014 -HE-_F-NE-AZ+-ALEFE
At 1 April 2013 R-E—=EpmA—F 800 - 800
Impairment AE (831) = (831)
Exchange realignment B 5 A 31 - 31
At 31 March 2014 RZZE-WE=A=1+—-H - — =
Reconciliation of carrying amount FHEYE
- year ended 31 March 2015 -HZ-_Z-AF-HA=+-ALEE
At 1 April 2014 R-E-mEmA—A - - -
Additions NE 10,757 124 10,881
Amortisation g - 4) 4)
At 31 March 2015 RZE-HE=F=1+-H 10,757 120 10,877
At 1 April 2014 RZZE-NEFMA—H
Cost KA 31,526 - 31,526
Accumulated impairment losses 2 RERE (31,526) - (31,526)
At 31 March 2015 RIE-AE=A=1-H
Cost KR 42,283 124 42,407
Accumulated impairment losses 2 REEE (31,526) (4  (31,530)
10,757 120 10,877
ANNUAL R
S -
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Year ended 31 March 2015 #&E R —HAE=H =+— HIL4EE

16.

17.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

Computer software

In October 2014, the Group entered into a memorandum of
strategic cooperation with SAP (Beijing) Software System Company
Limited for strategic cooperation in relation to the development of
the industry chain integration platform for a term of four years. As
a result, computer software related to the solution management for
the supply chain business of approximately HK$10,757,000 was
bought. The computer software is under the development process
and its useful life will be determined when it is available for use.
Since the software was not yet available for use up to the end of
the reporting period, no amortisation was provided for during the
year.

The computer software brought forward from previous years is
related to the payment gateway platform based on the Near Field
Communication Technology (the “NFC”). Because no revenue
had been generated from the NFC in recent years, management
expected that the recoverable amounts of the computer
software was minimal and full provision of impairment loss of
HK$31,526,000 had been made in previous years.

INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

16. B EE (&)

B

RZZE—NFE+A AEFHRBEL (It
REHRFERDRGI L —HBREA1E
Btk NAEBREHBRANFCE
XE—2YarHBAE Bt BE
TEBHEREEEERANRZANB
#10,757,00070 2 E B B 1 - B 7 B B
BHERENRAERE  EFEAFHER
AHEARET BRZEHTCEER
EHRABIEERAEGEH Bt ER
FREH -

AAUNGEEZEMBEBERERR
EREgAARm(EERERAAR
Ml AEMFT—RINTEE  EREE
B B B A R A R W SR A M
EEEBMEMEGHAATRE S BHE -
B It B R A TE 4 2 1B 1 % %31,526,000
TLHUREEERE -

17. RINB QA 2B

Company
b N

Note 2015 2014

(In HK$'000) (LB FrRBEN) k3 —E-1f “T-mE
Unlisted shares, at cost FLETRG - KAE = -
Due from subsidiaries JE W B /BB 2 B 51 0R (iii) 294,681 26,005
Due to subsidiaries FESH P B 2 B ;IR (2,395) (2,406)
292,286 23,599

SKY FOREVER SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT GROUP LIMITED (FE#E#EEEERAR)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STAT

17. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)
Particulars of the principal subsidiaries of the Company

(i)

as at 31 March 2015 are as follows:

n

x & B

Year ended 31 March 2015 #& % ~2—FAE=H =1 —H L4

17.

BB AR 2R (F)
() R=ZB—AF=B=+—H &4
AXTEMBARZHBUT :

Place of Nominal value

incorporation/ of issued Percentage of

registration ordinary shares/ equity attributable
Name of subsidiary and operation registered capital to the Company Principal activities
AR/ ERTEER ARARERER A IEXH

i PGEL BaREERY HE/FRER Directy Indirectly

B% B
PalmPay Technology Company Limited * The PRC RMB29,186,000 - 100% Provision of payment
IREBEENRERAA B (2014: RMB22,836,000) gateway services and
AR 29,186,000 energy management
(Z5-m%: services
ARH#22836,00070) REELATARER
sonE Bk
Beijing Reese Compagq Technology The PRC RMB2,000,000 - 56% Trading of raw material
Company Limited (“Reese Compaq’) * hE AR 2,000,000 of lightning rod
PREHRRMRERAR (TRiRR]) EEREHRIH
Beijing Outwitting Huanyu Technology The PRC RMB3,600,000 - 56% Provision of integrated
Company Limited (“Outwitting Huanyu’) * hE AR 3,600,000 (Remark) solution for lightning
IREBRTHEARAR (BHRT]) (&) electromagnetic pulse
protection service
RUEESHNED 2
BB RRERTR
Rich Flash Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 = 100% Trading of wooden
& 7%10,0007T products
AEERES
Shenzhen Qianhai Sky Forever Industry The PRC Not yet paid up* - 100% Provision of supply
Chain Management Company Limited * G RASR ¢ chain management
MINSTEEFEERERAT service, trading of metals
and electronic products
REHEBERRY
tERETERES
Ziyeo Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 = 100% Trading of electronic
& 7%10,0007T products
ETEMmES
ANNUAL REPORT 2014-2015 5 #
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OTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BB ® x K O

Year ended 31 March 2015 #&E R —HAE=H =+— HIL4EE

17. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 17. RMIB AT 2% (&)
(i) Particulars of the principal subsidiaries of the Company (i) R=ZB—HF=ZHF=+—-H ' &4
as at 31 March 2015 are as follows: (Continued) AIEEMBARZFERENT @ ()
Place of Nominal value
incorporation/ of issued Percentage of
registration ordinary shares/ equity attributable
Name of subsidiary and operation registered capital to the Company Principal activities
AL/ ERTEER ARARERER A IEXH
WEARZE ERREeny HE/GRER Directly  Indirectly
BE )
Mindsim Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 - 100% Trading of electronic
products
& % 510,000 ETERES
Chiki Holdings Limited British Virgin US$1 100% - Property, plant and
Islands equipment holding
ABRAES %7 RENX BERR
Unisave Limited British Virgin US§1 100% - Property, plant and
Islands equipment holding
ZRRAHS %7 SEYEN I E
Ever Active International Limited British Virgin US$1 - 100% Property, plant and
Islands equipment holding
iBRAES %7 RENX BERZR
Zhao Yong Enterprise Limited British Virgin US$1 - 100% Property, plant and
Islands equipment holding
ABRAES %7 SEEN T E
Jun Chang Holdings Limited British Virgin US$1 - 100% Property, plant and
Islands equipment holding
LRRAES %7 AN HERRG
Great Truths Development Limited British Virgin US$1 - 100% Property, plant and
Islands equipment holding
iBRAES %7 RENX BERR
Yi Yuan Limited British Virgin US§1 - 100% Property, plant and
Islands equipment holding
ZERUBS 9 RKENX HERRE
Zhong Sheng Holdings Limited British Virgin US$1 - 100% Property, plant and
Islands equipment holding
LBRAES %7 AN BERRE
* English translation of company names is for identification 5 RA]ZEEXBZER (EFIH
purpose only. These companies are registered as wholly %o ZE NG IIRED ELE NI
foreign-owned enterprise under the PRC law. BINEIBE D E o
& The registered capital is RMB100,000,000 and has to be # FMERAEA K E100,000,0007C
injected on or before 1 January 2024. WER=ZFE=E—F—HZL Al
JEA e
é"gi-@o ~ SKY FOREVER SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT GROUP LIMITED (F{E¢tfEsEEmAR A )
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL

17. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

(i) Particulars of the principal subsidiaries of the Company
as at 31 March 2015 are as follows: (Continued)

(Remark)

By implementation of a set of control agreements, the Company
through Reese Compaqg has obtained control over Outwitting
Huanyu in substance and therefore, Outwitting Huanyu is
accounted for as a subsidiary of the Company.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in
the opinion of the directors, principally affected the results for the
year or formed a substantial portion of the net assets of the Group.
To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the
directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities outstanding at the
end of the reporting period, or at any time during the year.

= a8 B B ® Xk K &

Year ended 31 March 2015 #& % ~2—FAE=H =1 —H L4

17. RMB AT & (&)

() R=F—-HE=A=+-HB &2
RAFEMBARIZFBNT : ()

(#it)

BB — AR - AR R AR
FHER LCESHEBRTHOEN -
Bt - BBRTARRA—HMEBEAR -

TREINHESRAGHAEEFER
XEBKEIERE IBKAKEEE
FEEARBNZARRIMBAR -EF
RBRFIEMHBARZENESRE
BRITE

R E MRS ARF R - HENM
BRAIGEEMETEMNCEHES

Au%z&u_u‘ol 5 & 4
r Tty o - -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M B ® Ok K O

Year ended 31 March 2015 BRE -2 —H4E=H=1—HIL4EE

17. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

(ii) Financial information of subsidiaries with individually

material NCI

The following table shows the information relating to each
of Viva Champion Limited and its subsidiaries (together the
“Viva Champion Group”) and Boomtech Limited (“Boomtech”)
and its subsidiaries (together the “Boomtech Group”), the
non-wholly owned subsidiaries that have material non-
controlling interests (“NCI”) from the date of acquisition. The
summarised financial information represents amounts before
inter-company eliminations since acquisition.

17. AB AR 2= (&)

(i) BEERERFERER 2B
NN BER
TRV K ERREEEE A
TictEs (RS 2 k2 E
b7 /B 2 &lViva Champion Limited &
HKTB A F ([ Viva Champion
Group J) EBoomtech Limited
([Boomtech]) R E B2 7] (4118
[Boomtech Group]) 2 & ¥ o BF 7%
BRI E 551 e B 14 2 =) FE 8 8E Al

B EER o
Viva Champion Boomtech Total
Group Group Bt

At 31 March 2015 R-ZZ-Z%=A=t-H
Proportion of NCI's ownership ~ JEERRER M BB EER L I

interests N/ATE 45%
(In HK$'000) (WBETTREN)
Current assets MBEE - 7,900 7,900
Non-current assets ERBEE - 181 181
Current liabilities TEaE - (10,613) (10,613)
Non-current liabilities ERBEE = (2,469) (2,469)
Net liabilities BEFE - (5,001) (5,001)
Carrying amount of NCI FERER EEA - (2,251) (2,251)
(In HK$'000) (LEBTFTREN)
Year ended 31 March 2015 HEZ-Z-RF=fA=1+-ALEE
Revenue Wozs 2,066 8,586 10,652
Expenses By (4,178) (10,932) (15,110)
Loss 8 (2,112) (2,346) (4,458)
Other comprehensive loss HizmEE (91) (166) (257)
Total comprehensive loss 2EFELEE (2,203) (2,512) (4,715)
Loss attributable to NCI FERESEEESR (1,035) (1,055) (2,090)
Total comprehensive loss FEREEEGZEERER

attributable to NCI (1,079) (1,131) (2,210)
Dividends paid to NCI B SR ERR S - - =
Net cash (outflow) inflow from: ~ RE THIEEZRE ORH) RAFE :
Operating activities ) (114) (910) (1,024)
Investing activities BAEEY (12) 3 (9)
Total cash inflows RemALHE (126) (907) (1,033)

SKY FOREVER SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT GROUP LIMITED (FE#E#EEEERAR)




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

17. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)
(ii) Financial information of subsidiaries with individually

(iii)

material NCI (Continued)

= & B

| & M R

Year ended 31 March 2015 &RE_F—HFE=H=+—HILFE

17. R B LR 2 &% ()
(i) BEBRERFERER 2B

NENHEESR (&)

Viva Champion Boomtech Total
Group Group Mgt

At 31 March 2014 RZZE-ME=A=1+—-H
Proportion of NCI's ownership FERER N EEEERLD

interests 49% 45%
(In HK$'000) (WEBFLREN)
Current assets mEEE 14,028 9,696 23,724
Non-current assets ERBDEE 233 256 489
Current liabilities TEBEE (9,575) (9,877) (19,452)
Non-current liabilities EnBEE = (2,564) (2,564)
Net assets (liabilities) EE(AR)FE 4,686 (2,489) 2197
Carrying amount of NCI FEREEERE 2,296 (1,120) 1,176
(In HK$000) (WEBTFTREN)
Year ended 31 March 2014 BHE-Z-ME=A=t-HLEE
Revenue Wgs 1,839 4,253 6,092
Expenses 53 (4,945) (8,392) (13,337)
Loss EiE (3,106) (4,139) (7,245)
Other comprehensive income Hit 2@ K 295 319 614
Total comprehensive loss 2EBELEHE (2,811) (3,820) (6,631)
Loss attributable to NC FEREREG 2B (1,522) (1,862) (3,384)
Total comprehensive loss FERERELZEBELEE

attributable to NC| (1,377) (1.719) (3,096)
Dividends paid to NCI B IR EER S - - =
Net cash inflow (outflow) from: RETHSEZRERACRL) 58 :
Operating activities KEEy 86 1,075 1,161
Investing activities REES - (229) (229)
Total cash inflows ReRAEH 86 846 932

The amounts due are unsecured, interest-free and have no

fixed repayment term. The carrying values of the amounts due

approximate their fair values.

(i) JWFERAEER 2EHEEE
BRE MR EAERELZA

FERA
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18. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS

18. HHESHERE
Group and Company

REBRARD T
2015 2014
(In HK$°000) (LB FrBEN) —E-—FE —E—mF
Unlisted debt securities, at fair value  FEmEKHES  BLATLE
Non-current FETE - 12,450
Current kD) - 2,564
- 15,014

In June 2014, the Company disposed of all the unlisted debt
securities at a consideration of approximately HK$14,944,000,
resulting in a loss on disposal of available-for-sale financial assets
of approximately HK$70,000.

At 31 March 2014, the fair value of the unlisted debt securities was
determined based on quotes from market makers supported by
observable inputs. The most significant input was market interest
rates.

RZF—WFENA RRABURLHBE
14,944,000 2 REHE 2 HIELTE
BES EELENHEESREEY
E51849/8%70,0007T

R-ZE-—NFE=RA=+—H8 FLHmE
BREFAFENEMSRRERE (BT
BRRARBEXR)EE -BBREZBA
BEA/MIGHE -

SKY EDREWN MANAGEMENT GROUP LIMITED (518t 8 £ 8 4R 2 7))
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL S

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES

RPN EEEN &

Year ended 31 March 2015 &% 2 —H4E=H =+—H L4 )%

19. REFE N B 2R

Group

REH
2015 2014
(In HK$°000) (LB BT BE ) —E-RE —E—mF
Share of net assets IEEEFE 9,104 10,939
The associates are accounted for in the consolidation financial B N RN R A I RR AR AR ©

statements using the equity method, details of which at the end of

the reporting period are as follows:

=N
BEABSHRIHBOT

Proportion of

Place of Nominal nominal value of

incorporation/ value of issued issued/registered

registration ordinary shares/ capital held
Name of associate and operation registered capital by the Group Principal activities
NG AmAYL/ BR BRTEER AEEEECRT/ IEXH

REEHE BE/ERER AMERNREER S

Indirectly

[

China Optic Communication British Virgin Islands US$1,051 47.67% Investment holding
Technology Limited ABRAES 1051% T RERR
(“China Optic BVI")

China Optic Communication Hong Kong HKS1 47.67% Investment holding
Technology Limited B BB RERR

hERBENRERAT

Wuhan Xiang Fei Ji Ye The PRC RMBS,500,000 47.67% Manufacturing and trading of
Communication B AR 5,500,007 products related to optimal
Technology Limited * optical fibers, telecommunications,

REARESRENR electric power network systems
BERAE" and equipment

REREERLE B
BRZARRBREER

A REPORT 2(n4-2‘0|5iﬁm
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19.
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OTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued) 19. RE¢E N T 2% (&)
Proportion of
Place of Nominal nominal value of
incorporation/ value of issued issued/registered
registration ordinary shares/ capital held
Name of associate and operation registered capital by the Group Principal activities
Benaih AL/ BR BRAEER AREERERT/ IEXH
REEHY mE/ERES AMEANREEL A
Indirectly
B
Shenzhen JiaYeTongHui The PRC RMB2,000,000 47.67% Trading of products related to
Technology Limited * i AR 2,000,000 optimal optical fibers,
MIEZFEREARAA telecommunications, electric power
network systems and equipment
EERI LS B E8ZR
LFRERBER
Wuhan Xiang Yu Ji Ye The PRC RMB1,000,000 47.67% Research, development and sale
Communication Technology hE AR 1,000,000 of telecommunication products
Limited * HEREEEAER
RETATEZRENRERAT

* English translation of company names is for identification purpose
only. These companies are registered as wholly foreign-owned
enterprise under the PRC law.

Relationship with the associates

China Optic BVI and its subsidiaries (together the “China Optic
Group”), which manufactures and trades products related to
optimal optical fibers, electric power network systems and
equipment and provides associated services in the PRC, allows
the Group to penetrate the telecommunication optic fiber market.

Fair value of investments
All the above associates are private companies and there is no
quoted market price available for the investments.

RAEBHEXBER EAFIAE ° %
FRALREFEZEEM B EHE
P e

I

B

BHE AR 2BE

China Optic BVIR EK B R 7] (57
[China Optic GroupJ)ﬁ"‘:F‘ BEERE
ERLAYE ERRGRBERRER
MIRE  SAKEEEEREHETS -

REZRFE
AL ERAALARBAREY
EMHIHRE -

SKY FOREVER SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT GROUP LIMITED (FE#E#EEEERAR)
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19. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)

Financial information of individually material associates
Summarised financial information of China Optic Group, the
material associates of the Group is set out below, which represents
amounts shown in the associates’ financial statements prepared
in accordance with HKFRSs and adjusted by the Group for equity
accounting purposes including any differences in accounting
policies and fair value adjustments.

19. REtERNR 2 H (&)
BRIEXBERR ZHBER
£ B & KBt & 2 BlChina Optic Group
2 BERMESIINT - JyigkE R a
RBEBN RS EARE M BERE
Proles  WRASENEREAE
HARDESHBREERATEBE -

China Optic Group

2015 2014
(In HK$'000) (LB TFTREN) 2% —T-mE
Gross amount ABEE
Current assets MENE E 31,881 33,658
Non-current assets ERBEE 2,012 2,427
Current liabilities mEBEE (14,587) (13,082)
Non-current liabilities ERBEE (207) (55)
Equity 2% 19,009 20,948
Reconciliation #HAE
Gross amount of equity A 19,099 22,948
Group’s ownership interests AEBBEAEES 47.67% 47.67%
Carrying amount of interests Bm REE 9,104 10,939
Revenue Wz 1,823 1,515
Loss for the year from continuing SELEXBZERNER
operations (3,195) (25,709)
Other comprehensive (loss) income Hibhz2mE (BE) Wa (654) 1,536
Total comprehensive loss 2HEEER (3,849) (24,173)
Dividends received from the associates B Ht 2 A Al AL Z BB - -
Group’s ownership interests AEBHEAEER 47.67% 47.67%
Group’s share of results of associates AEEREHEDRIER (1,523) (12,255)
Group's share of other comprehensive AEBEEHE AR LM
(loss) income of associates 2H (B18) Wi (312) 732
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20. OTHER ASSETS

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Group
r&EE
2015 2014
(In HK$'000) (LB TFTRERL) —E-IF% —E-F
Net carrying amount RREFE
At beginning of the period REIH) = -
Additions NE 10,245 =
Amortisation B (545) -
At end of the reporting period M| SR 9,700 -
Current portion mENE D 1,025 -
Non-current portion JERENE R 8,675 =
9,700 -
Other assets represent payments of the right to use the vehicle EMBEERRERAIEER ZENNM
licence plates and are amortised on a straight-line basis over a T EGEER T ERERE -
lease period of 10 years.
21. GOODWILL 21. B8
Group
r&H
2015 2014
(In HK$'000) (BB TTmEN) —E-RfF —T-@OmF
At cost less accumulated BERABHERERE
impairment losses
At beginning of the reporting period KR & H 4] 10,808 42,308
Disposals of subsidiaries TERBAQF (1,235) -
Impairment loss HEEE (4,000) (31,500)
At end of the reporting period A& R BEoTa 10,808
Goodwill acquired through business combinations is allocated to BEERASHFRENEEIREARER
the Group's cash-generating units (“CGUs”) for impairment test as HeEASEMN([REELSEM]) ZRE
follows: Al
Group
r&HE
Note 2015 2014
(In HK$'000) (LER TLRERD) FifaE —E-hLF —E-mF
CcGU REeEELEN
Payment gateway business XNFRED 209,627 209,627
Energy management business RREBER (i) - 26,035
Lightning electromagnetic ELEURENEES
pulse protection business (i) 78,473 78,473
Cost DS 288,100 314,135

SKY FOREVER SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT GROUP LIMITED (FE#E#EEEERAR)
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GOODWILL (Continued) 21, BHE(E)
Group
by
Note 2015 2014
(In HK$'000) (LB T TRER) P 5% —E-FHEF —T-lmEF
CGU BeEEEN
Payment gateway business SRR E S 209,627 209,627
Energy management business ERERER (i) - 24,800
Lightning electromagnetic EEBUREHEEY
pulse protection business (ii) 72,900 68,900
Accumulated impairment losses Z:itFHEEE 282,527 303,327
Group
rEE
Note 2015 2014
(In HK$'000) (LB T TiRER) P 5% —E-FHEF —T-lmEF
CGU BeEEEN
Payment gateway business IRFEED = -
Energy management business R ERER (i) - 1,235
Lightning electromagnetic ELTEURENEER
pulse protection business (ii) 5,573 9,573
Net book value IRMEFE 5,573 10,808
() Energy management business (i) BEREEFEK
Upon the Disposal as detailed in notes 11 and 33 to the AR B BRSO M A1 X335
consolidated financial statements, the goodwill with carrying oz & % Hig GEERBY
amount of HK$1,235,000 was derecognised and included in 1,235,0007T < B2 B BUR R K &t
the determination of gain on disposal of subsidiaries. A EM B AR 2 e o
(i) Lightning electromagnetic pulse protection business (i) EBRSUIREHEXEK

The Group has appointed independent professional valuers,
BMI Appraisals Limited, to perform an appraisal of the value
of the lightning electromagnetic pulse protection business as
at 31 March 2015.

The recoverable amount of the CGU has been determined
based on a value-in-use calculation. That calculation uses
cash flow projections based on financial budgets approved
by the board of directors covering a 5-year period. Cash
flows beyond the 5-year period has been extrapolated using
a 3% long-term growth rate per annum. This growth rate is
based on the relevant industry growth forecasts and does not
exceed the average long-term growth rate for the relevant
industry.

AEEEREBUZXRAEMT
HABAFEERARAR-_F-—RF=
A=t AREEEHUREHESR
BEITRE -

ReELBENZMKESBHER
EREEEEETE - %87
FERBEFEHERERFHNY
BEERARERERAET - &
FHRRMNASRENRMERE
BE3%IMEE - ZEREIRIZARM
TRERFBAEE AT ERAH
TENFHRAPERE -
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21.

SKY FOREVER SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT GROUP LIMITED (FE#E#EEEERAR)

GOODWILL (Continued)
(ii) Lightning electromagnetic pulse protection business

(Continued)
Key assumptions used for the value-in-use calculation are as

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
a8 0 B ® x M =

21. BE (&)

(i) FESHIKERRHEES (B

EREEAEMAZEER/RMT

follows:
2015 2014
—E-1F —T-ImF
% %
Gross margin EM = 19-40 40-57
Average growth rate (per annum) THERX(GF) 10-30 4-7
Long-term growth rate (per annum) KHEER (F4) 3 3
Discount rate (per annum) FHRE(8F) 22 26

Management determined the budgeted gross profit margin
based on past performance and its expectation of market
development. Decrease in gross margin is due to increase in
overall material and labour costs. Since a higher qualification
in lightning protection professional construction was obtained
during the year, a high average growth rate is expected.
The discount rate used is pre-tax and reflects specific risks
relating to the CGU.

In light of the keen competition, increase in overall material
and labour cost and decrease in awarded projects, the
recoverable amount of the CGU is estimated to be less than
its carrying amount. Accordingly, the goodwill allocated
to the lightning electromagnetic pulse protection business
was impaired by HK$4,000,000 (2014: HK$13,900,000). The
impairment loss has been included in the “other operating
expenses” in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income.

The directors believe that any reasonably possible change
in the key assumptions on which the recoverable amount is
based would not cause the carrying amount of the CGU to
exceed its recoverable amount.

BEEERBAERALEUTHHE
RAPEEREENE - EFIXR
PTEARMH RS TRAER

Fr-mREFARSEENRER
REMESER BYFHERE
HeRm FAMKRXABA I
RREBReELENNFERR

ARBFHI - ME RS TRAE
BEAURAZEERD - BHed
EXBEfz kR BEEAER
B-AY PEEEESHREN
EE 2B R E S 4,000,000
T (= F—p4F : & #13,900,000
) o BREBBEFAGE2EKE
RATEMEERSZ] -

ESHE EFUREEEMNEE
BRENEMEEATEES TSI
ReELBEUMKREEBBE K
[ g %8




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

22. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

Year ended 31 March 2015 #& % —%F

= & B B | x KM &

—HAEZA=+ - HIREE

22, & BR R B H At BB UK

Group Company
REE VNN
Note 2015 2014 2015 2014
(In HK$'000) (LOBEFrREN) Wi “2-1f Z—E-mFE ZZ2-IF —mE
Trade receivables from B %= AR WER
third parties 458,033 103,352 - -
Allowance for bad and RERRE
doubtful debts (ii) (78,405) (85,065) - -
(i 379,628 18,287 - -
Other receivables Hth R
Prepayments BRRIE 17,084 4,247 309 -
Advance payment to re) {1t 7 A5 IR
suppliers (iii) 87,302 - - -
Deposits bk (iv) 2,747 32,596 2,087 30,500
Other receivables H 4 e WK 2,590 1,855 = 73
Due from associates JE B & R Al FRIR (v) 283 278 - -
110,006 38,976 2,396 30,573
489,634 57,263 2,396 30,573
(i) Aging of trade receivables (i) FEWER < BRER
Except for 360 days being granted to certain customers ST HEEEEEE  ETRPE
under supply chain management business, the Group ®360EMEEHIN - REBR

grants credit term ranging from 30 days to 90 days to its
customers upon the delivery of products or when the services

are rendered and invoices are issued. The aging of trade
receivables (net of allowances of bad and doubtful debts)
based on invoice date is as follows:

EMIRURBABLBEREE T
HEPIHEWHGEEH - RER
A E 52 FE KRR (FARR R IR AR B
&) <FREMT

Group

rEE
2015 2014
(In HK$°000) (LB TTREN) —E-—FE —mF
Less than 90 days Q0B AR 242,652 13,830
91 - 180 days 91 180H 132,087 190
181 - 270 days 1812270H 835 754
271 — 365 days 2712365H - 1,772
Over 1 year —FpE 4,054 1,741
379,628 18,287
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22. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued)
(ii) Allowance for bad and doubtful debts

22, BUWBRF R H AR W ()

B

il

(i) RBEREBE

Group

rEH
2015 2014
(In HK$'000) (LGB F T mElr) —E-1F ZT M
At beginning of reporting period R & H ) 85,065 81,914
Disposal of subsidiaries HEK B2 A (3,598) -
Exchange realignment BE N B (3,062) 3,151
At end of reporting period RB SR 78,405 85,065

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate
to a wide range of debtors for whom there was no history of
default.

Included in the Group’s trade receivables balance are
debtors with a carrying amount of HK$24,577,000 (2014:
HK$4,805,000), which were past due at the end of the
reporting period but not impaired as there has not been a
significant change in credit quality and the directors believe
that the amounts are fully recoverable. These relate to wide
range of customers for whom there have been no recent
history of default.

KRB RBERNEEK RS [
W ERERNKCENEFEH -

AEENENEREHEEREARE
5B 24 577,0007T (ZFE—4F :
JE #4,805,000;T) K FEMFRIE -
BEPACABETERE  RE
BEREEYESAKE BES
REZZENZERE - A
HELEF AT EBRNTRLHNE
FER -

Group

rEH
2015 2014
(In HK$'000) (LB TFTREN) —E-IF —ZT—mEF
Current B &g 355,051 13,482
Less than 90 days past due #E0B AT 19,053 57
91 - 180 days past due #HI912180H 2,934 92
181 — 270 days past due #1H181%270H - 518
271 - 365 days past due #H2712365H 61 2,247
Over 1 year past due BH—FNU L 2,529 1,891
24,577 4,805
379,628 18,287

2
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22. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

Advance payment to suppliers
The amounts represented payments made in advance to
suppliers for purchase of goods.

OB Hm R KO

Year ended 31 March 2015 &RE_F—HFE=H=+—HILFE

22, BRI R H AWK ()
(i) EEEHBNHER

ARXREERBEMREERRN

A e

Deposits (iv) &£
Group Company
& b N
2015 2014 2015 2014
(In HK$’000) (LEETTAEN) —E—R2F —T-—NF -1 —T-—@NF
Deposits paid BfEs 2,747 37,596 2,087 35,500
Impairment loss WEEE
- (5,000) - (5,000)
2,747 32,596 2,087 30,500

As at 31 March 2014, the deposits mainly represented the
deposits paid in respect of the proposed acquisition of 75%
equity interest of Hong Kong Automobile Restoration Group
Limited (the “HKARG Acquisition”). In accordance with the
terms of the sales and purchase agreements, total deposits
of HK$35,500,000 were paid, which included non-refundable
deposits of HK$5,000,000. Since the ordinary resolutions
relevant to the HKARG Acquisition were not passed at
the special general meeting held on 22 April 2014, during
the year, the refundable deposits of HK$30,500,000 were
fully refunded to the Group together with interest totalling
HK$100,000.

Due from associates
The amounts due are unsecured, interest-free and have no
fixed repayment term.

(v)

R-ZE-—ME=ZA=1+—8 K%
ITZEENBERNERRS REEES
BAERARTS%KE ([EFTHEE
BEERRARKESTE) MY
fTHike BEEEHRER B
¥ 1 & & 48 %8 % #35,500,0007T
BIE R AR & & € 75 5,000,000
T-AREBKEEE AEEES
BERARIZEBRRZRE_Z
—MMEMA -+ - BRI KRS
BlAERERB RAFE B
30,500,000t M AR EER S B ER
& HE#100,000T O F B BEEE
TAEHE -

FE W Bt & N R FRIE
ARAREREBER 2ENERETE
B -

ANNUAL REPORT 2014-2015 5 3}

i -

13



5

[O THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
a8 B ¥ ® R M =

Year ended 31 March 2015 &£ 2 —H4E=ZH =+—H L4

23. BANK BALANCES AND CASH 23. RITEHRRREE
Group Company
PSS AAT
2015 2014 2015 2014
(In HK$°000) (LB FraEl) —Z2-HEF —T-—Ng —Z2-HEF —FT—NF
Bank balances and cash RITEARRA S
Cash at bank and in hand RITRFERS 113,793 6,359 5,225 4,380
Fixed deposits THER 167,453 80,316 167,453 80,316
281,246 86,675 172,678 84,696
Cash at bank earns interest at floating rates based on daily RITRSBBEARITERMELEE
bank deposit rates. Short-term fixed deposits are made between BRI E - RHEBRERNFERBANT—
one month and three months depending on the immediate cash BAR=EA BRIrEENNKRE
requirement of the Group, and earn interest at the prevailing short- FRWME - WERRERTRMELGTE -

term deposit rates.

s
v

" - S.I& WREW MANAGEMENT GROUP LIMITED (FiEftEs#E@mMAR A R)
A B = 4w,




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATE

24. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

25.

= & B B | x KM &

Year ended 31 March 2015 #& % ~2—FAE=H =1 —H L4

24, BRI R EAMEMNK

Group Company
X 5E /NG|

Note 2015 2014 2015 2014
(In HK$'000) (UEEFTRER) M “E-1Ff ZT-WmF ZZ-EF Z—T-[QF
Trade payables ERTERR (i) 314,375 5,047 - -
Accruals [EFTER 5,633 4,323 200 630
Other tax payables Hith 58 2,294 2,799 - —
Other payables H R 5UIE 12,220 11,594 - =
Due to directors ERESHIE (ii) 2,872 144 - =
337,394 23,907 200 630

(i) Aging of trade payables
At the end of the reporting period, the aging analysis of the

(i) ENERAZRE
RBER  ERBEERH 2 e

trade payables based on invoice date is as follows: R ZBREEDITMT ¢

Group

rEE
2015 2014
(In HK$°000) (LBEMFrBEN) —E-5F —E—mEF
Less than 90 days 9Q0H KT 229,961 634
91 - 180 days 91£180H 84,414 890
Over 180 days 180B I £ - 3,523
314,375 5,047

(ii) Due to directors
The amounts due to directors are unsecured, interest-free
and have no fixed repayment term.

LOAN FROM A DIRECTOR

The amount represented loan from Mr. Wu Zhinan for the purpose
of the reorganisation of Boomtech prior to the acquisition of
Boomtech. The amount due is unsecured, interest-free and
repayable on 30 December 2016.

(i) EHESZE
BNEEFEREER 2E8HE
B 7 22 FHAR o

25. EEEX
DZHREERBREEEECERAELR
Boomtech!ft # = 18 A ¥ Boomtechi# 17
BEHR-FEABKR 2ERER-Z
—~Ft+t-_A=t+HEE-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

26. SHARE CAPITAL 26. A
Group and Company
AEERAAT
Note No. of shares HK$°000
ik RAHE BEFT
Authorised: EE
At 31 March 2014 and 31 March 2015, RA-Z—NF=A=+—HK
ordinary share of HK$0.01 each “E-HRF=A=+—-H"
SREEB¥0.01THLER 20,000,000,000 200,000
Issued and fully paid: BETRAR:
At 1 April 2013, ordinary shares RZE-=FMA—-A8"
of HK$0.01 each FREEE®KITHE AR 3,338,693,484 33,387
Shares issued upon placing H-—Z—=FNAREM
in April 2013 BTl 349,480,000 3,495
Capital reduction and share BRABR & B 1R & B
consolidation (3,319,356,136) (33,194)
Shares issued upon placing in A-_Z—=FNAREM
September 2013 BT 32,000,000 320
Shares issued upon top-up placing RERFEEMETRR 41,000,000 410
At 31 March 2014, ordinary shares R_ZE-—NE=f=+—H"
of HK$0.01 each FREEEE0.0ITHE AR 441,817,348 4,418
Shares issued upon rights issue [ B 1 22 17 47 (i) 883,634,696 8,836
At 31 March 2015, ordinary shares RZB-HE=HA=1+—-H"
of HK$0.01 each SREEB¥.ITHNEBER 1,325,452,044 13,254
Note: izt -

(i)

Pursuant to the ordinary resolution passed in a special general
meeting (*SGM”) held on 9 January 2015, 883,634,696 rights
shares on the basis of 2 rights shares for every 1 share held at
a subscription price of HK$0.45 per share were issued on a fully
underwritten basis and allotted to successful applicants on 12
February 2015. The market value per share at the completion date for
the rights shares was HK$0.45. The Company raised approximately
of HK$397,636,000 before expenses, to strengthen the capital base
of the Company and financial position for the Group’s future business
development. Expenses of approximately HK$9,959,000 arising from
the rights shares were recognised in the share premium account of
the Company.

All shares issued during the year rank pari passu with the existing
shares in all respects.

() BER-_Z-—AF-PFABETZR
REFNAE ((BRRENAE]) LEB
Z IR 2R 0 883,634,6960% 1 A% A%
NEBN-_Z—HAE_A+=-ANUE
IR B 80,450 2 RIB BN RSk B &
BAE-—BRBOHERZEMBERENZ
HENSEOHEEERTREE TR
WERBA - EREONTKBEHZER
M{EABE04ST - KRR BEENBE
397,636,0007T (KR&FFI ) PASE 8 A 12
RAMEREMREMBEMRR WELAE
BZAREBGRE HBEAZHEE
9,959,0007T B FA AN 2 B K A% 19 (B BR 7

7
i

FRARTHAERNERERNESS
EHFERFHA
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Year ended 31 March 2015 #& % ~2—FAE=H =1 —H L4

27. RESERVES 27. f#f&
Company ¥ N/NE|
Share  Contributed Warrant  Accumulated
premium surplus reserve losses Total
kiva® BARH AREREG ZitFE At
Note (Note (1)) (Note (ii)) (Note (iv))
(In HK$ 000) (WEETFLREN) i3 (M3 () (B &5 i) (B ¥(v))
At 1 April 2013 WZE3-=£MmA-A 55,357 485,118 240 (428,065) 112,650
Loss for the year and total ENEERENZEFELE
comprehensive l0ss
for the year - - - (76,653) (76,653)

Transactions with equity holders SEREREAET RS
Contributions and distributions — 2ER A

Expiry of unlisted warrants FITAREEER - - (240) 240 -
Issue of shares upon placing R-Z--fMARE
in April 2013 ki 21,039 - - - 21,039
Capital reduction and share BRI BBt & 6
consolidation (76,395) 109,589 - - 33,194
Issue of shares upon placing R-T-=FnARE
in September 2013 Ik 25,750 - - - 25,750
Issue of shares upon TERFREMEIRA
top-up placing 32,854 - - - 32,854
3,248 109,589 (240) 240 112,837
At 31 March 2014 and R-Z-ME=A=1+-Rk
t 1 April 2014 R-Z-MENA-A 58,605 594,707 - (504,478) 148,834
Loss for the year and total ENERRENZEFRLE
comprehensive l0ss
for the year - - - (73,769) (73,769)

Transactions with equity holders ERERE AET RS
Contributions and distributions ~ ZER#F

Issue of shares upon RtRmE TR
rights issue 26(i) 378,841 - - - 378,841
378,841 - - - 378,841
At 31 March 2015 RZE-1%=f=1-H 437,446 594,707 - (578,247) 453,906
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27. RESERVES (Continued)
Group and Company

Note:

(i)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

Share premium represents the excess of the net proceeds or
consideration from issuance of the Company’s shares over their par
value.

Contributed surplus represents (i) the difference between the nominal
value of the aggregate share capital of the subsidiaries acquired and
the nominal value of the Company’s shares issued as consideration
pursuant to the Group’s reorganisation took place in 2001, (ii)
the reduction of share premium and share capital took place in
November 2012 and May 2013 respectively.

Under the Companies Act of Bermuda, the Company’s contributed
surplus is available for distribution to shareholders subject to the
requirements of the Companies Act of Bermuda.

Exchange reserve comprises all foreign exchange differences arising
from the translation of the financial statements of foreign operations.

Warrant reserve relates to the private placing of unlisted warrants.
The outstanding unlisted warrants were expired and cancelled on 11
April 2013.

The laws and regulations of the PRC require wholly foreign-owned
enterprises in the PRC (“WFOE”) to provide for certain statutory
reserves, namely general reserve, enterprise expansion fund and
staff welfare and bonus fund which are appropriated from the net
profit as reported in the PRC statutory accounts.

The Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC, which are WFOE, are required
to allocate at least 10% of their after-tax profit to the general reserve
until the reserve has reached 50% of its registered capital. The
general reserve can only be used, upon approval by the relevant
authority, to offset accumulated losses or increase capital. The
enterprise expansion fund can only be used to increase capital upon
approval by the relevant authority. The staff welfare and bonus fund
can only be used for the welfare of the employees of the subsidiaries
in the PRC. Appropriation to the enterprise expansion fund and staff
welfare and bonus fund is at the discretion of the board of directors
of the subsidiaries in the PRC.

The subsidiaries in the PRC incurred after-tax losses during the year
and therefore no transfer to the statutory reserve was made. For the
year ended 31 March 2014, the subsidiaries in the PRC transferred
HK$74,000 to the statutory reserve.

As at 31 March 2015, the reserves of the Company available for
distribution to the equity holders of the Company amounted to
HK$16,460,000 (2014: HK$90,229,000), subject to the requirements
of the Companies Act of Bermuda.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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(i)

(ii)

(iif)

(iv)

(vi)

SKY FOREVER SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT GROUP LIMITED (FE#E#EEEERAR)
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Z8: (AR —=F+—Ak=
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RIBBREAREL  ARAINMARER
ANKTRER  HEAETERERRE
RIE °

PE Lk 5 B IR R RIR BB RS
BERMEEZINEZHE -

RIAE E A LA BB IF E R AR
BEME  ATTRFLTRBEEE LR
MAER-F—=FMA+—H&EH -

RIEPBEZRIER  PEIEHBED
X(MIEBELE]) ASEHBEER
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IR B R AR FABSRTREE -
H Y EAEEHESE -REE-F
—OHEZAZ+-RLFE 1ENE
N B [FEE B BB 1 74,0007T

R-F-—RE=A=1+—0 REESR
ERNRERTE AARAESEFAR
AlRIER B A 2 f# & %% 16,460,000
JL(=F—/O4F : ##90,229,0007T) °




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

28. SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company adopted a share option scheme (the “Scheme”)
on 18 October 2011. The purpose of the share option scheme
is to enable the directors of the Company, at their discretion, to
recognise and motivate the contribution of the employees of the
Group and to provide incentives and help the Group in retaining
its existing employees and recruiting additional employees and to
provide them with a direct economic interest in attaining the long-
term business objectives of the Group.

Eligible participants include any employees, consultants, suppliers
or customers of the Company and its subsidiaries, including any
independent non-executive directors of the Company. The Scheme
became effective on 18 October 2011 and, unless otherwise
cancelled or amended, will remain in force for 10 years from that
date.

The maximum number of unexercised share options currently
permitted to be granted under the Scheme, upon their exercise
may not be in aggregate exceed 10% of the shares of the
Company in issue at any time. The maximum number of shares
issuable to each eligible participant in the Scheme within any
12-month period up to the date of grant, is limited to 1% of
the shares of the Company in issue at that date of grant. Any
further grant of share options in excess of this limit is subject to
shareholders’ approval in a general meeting. As at 31 March 2015,
132,545,204 shares (2014: 44,181,735 shares) of the Company,
representing 10% (2014: 10%) of its issued capital, are available
for issue under the Scheme.

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted in writing
within 7 days from the date of the offer, upon payment of a nominal
consideration of HK$1 per option in total by the grantee. Any
share option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the
Scheme at any time during a period to be notified by the board of
directors to an eligible participant but may not be exercised after
the expiry of 10 years from the date of grant of the share option but
subject to the early termination of the Scheme.

= & B B | x KM &
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28. BBRERTE

ARAN-_F——F+t AT NBRHAH—
B E ([%T8)) - RERE
AEHEERBARRIEENEAER
SR AEEREMIEZS NUARRHE
B YARASESUREERARE
FPHREEZER REFEINFEEER
EXBARRRARHERLENS -

RERZEERRARANENBAF
ZIEMEE - B - HEEAXES -
BREAARZBUFATES - Lt &
A-ZE——FTATNBRBER B3
A EEBUREER] - BAI%TElA
EHEFTFRABR -

WRIEZETE - B ATA LUR A M R 1T
EREHANRKEETFER GHEE
TRBBARRREAEESZEITRG
10% > S EIC B ERBHELHEE
EERELAR; T @A LHHA -
AERTHRNMEZ AEREREE A
RARBETRHHI% - LR T BIBZ
FREBERE VEASRRERREAE
tHE-R=ZE—AF=A=1+—H &
Bzt & AR E)Z2132,545,204R% Bk 13
(ZFE 94 : 44,181,735 ) ({5 R A A
EBTRARZ10% (ZF—H%F : 10%))
A EAT o

ERARRBEEZOBEFTRANE
HEMELRE BAREAKENER
BAAXNEBITNREARE - 258
B2 BENREES BN ERE AR
REZTEIRRITEBERE  BEAEE
BRER L E B ES T FRERRITE
WERRAT BIEE AT AR LE BRSO o
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28.

29.

SKY FOREVER SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT GROUP LIMITED (FE#E#EEEERAR)

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

The exercise price of the share options is determinable by the
board of directors, but may not be less than the highest of (i)
the closing price of the Company’s shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date of offer of the
option, which must be a business day, (ii) the average of the
closing prices of the Company’s shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of offer of the option, (iii) the
average of the closing prices of the Company’s shares as stated in
the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the ten business
days immediately preceding the date of offer of the option, and (iv)
the nominal value of the Company’s shares on the date of offer.

During the years ended 31 March 2015 and 2014, no share options
had been granted. There were no share options outstanding as at
31 March 2015 and 2014.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME

The Group has arranged for its Hong Kong employees to join
the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF Scheme”). The
assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately in provident fund
managed by independent trustee. Under the MPF Scheme, the
Group and each of the employees make monthly contributions to
the scheme at 5% of the employees’ earnings as defined under
the Mandatory Provident Fund Legislation. Both the employer’s
and the employees’ monthly contributions are subject to a cap of
HK$1,250, which has been adjusted to HK$1,500 with effect from 1
June 2014.

The Group'’s subsidiaries in the PRC also participate in defined
contribution retirement schemes covering its PRC employees. The
schemes are administered by the relevant government authorities
which undertake to assume the retirement benefit obligations
of all existing and future retired employees of the Group’s PRC
subsidiaries.

During the year, the amount of employer’s contributions made by
the Group to the defined contribution plans was approximately
HK$705,000 (2014: HK$964,000).

28.

29.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMEN

30. DEFERRED TAXATION

Unrecognised deferred tax assets arising from

= A8 M B ® Rk B &

Year ended 31 March 2015 &RE_F—HFE=H=+—HILFE

30. ELEHE

UTRBRELEZARRELHAEE

Group

rEH
2015 2014
(In HK$'000) (LBEEFTREN) —E-IF —T-F
Deductible temporary differences AMRERER 28,953 29,080
Tax losses i1 B 18 29,748 35,485
At end of reporting period R &R 58,701 64,565

At 31 March 2015, tax losses of HK$10,911,000 (2014:
HK$16,745,000) arising in Hong Kong have no expiry date under
current tax legislation. The tax losses of HK$18,837,000 (2014:
HK$18,740,000) arising in the PRC can be used to offset against
future taxable profits of the respective subsidiaries for a maximum
of 5 years. The Group has not recognised deferred tax assets in
respect of these tax losses and deductible temporary differences
because it is uncertain that future taxable profits will be available
against which the Group can utilise the benefits therefrom.

The unrecognised tax losses arising in the PRC at the end of the
reporting period which can be offset against future taxable profits
of the respective subsidiaries for a maximum of 5 years will expire
as follows:

R-ZB—RE=A=+—0 BERT
BMBER  RARRBEABEEZHEB
18R 7%5%10,911,0000C (ZF—HF : &
#16,745,0007T) 3 £ J& 7 BARR © AR A A
R B E 4 2 BiTR B 18 5% 18,837,0007T
(ZFE—[94 : ##18,740,0007T) 7] AR
BEHEENBARREZAF 2 RRERT
B ARBEWARRZERBEHBRA
MREREZEERELCHEEE HIR
AAEIZRRAEEETHARKRER
BARETHEMER A -

KBRS AR BE 2 KR
BB AU R AR B A A8 5
KB 2 BERBUREA - BT IR
B

Group

r5E
2015 2014
(In HK$'000) (LGEBTF TR E(7) —ZT-h0fF ZT M

Year of expiry & % 10

2016 ZT-RF 3,999 4,153
2017 —T—tF 6,682 6,939
2018 ZT-N\F 4,387 7,648
2019 —E-NF 3,769 -
18,837 18,740
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30.

31.

SKY FOREVER SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT GROUP LIMITED (FE#E#EEEERAR)

DEFERRED TAXATION (Continued)
Unrecognised deferred tax assets arising from (Continued)

At 31 March 2015, no deferred tax has been recognised for
withholding taxes that would be payable on the unremitted
earnings of the Group’s subsidiaries established in the PRC. In
the opinion of the directors, it is probable that the earnings will not
be distributed in the foreseeable future. At 31 March 2015, there
were no unremitted earnings and at 31 March 2014, the unremitted
earnings totalled HK$1,009,000. In addition, no deferred tax has
been recognised for withholding taxes that would be payable on
the unremitted earnings of the Group’s associates established in
the PRC as the deferred tax impact on these unremitted earnings
was insignificant.

COMMITMENTS

Capital expenditure commitments

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had the following
capital expenditure commitments:

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

30. EEHE ()

31.

UTEREES 2 ARRAEERBEE
(&)

R-ZE—HF=A=+—8 LTERLE
ERFPERLZHBARZAEL BT
ZENTENHBRELCHE - EE2R A
RAERERTIRATED REZZRF -
R-E-—RFE=A=+—RATEXREH
Bf - MR=T-—NE=A=+—8 "
& & F 42 %8 B 7S %1,009,0007T ° B
Oh - AR AEB R R B 2B A A
ZARELRBFZ EMAENRZBEERIE
FEUAEBREEATE WU E
BEREL 2 BFIERELTHE -

el EAIE
B ARR T RIE
RI|EMK - NEBH T E AR &

i

Group
rEH
2015 2014
(In HK$'000) (LGB F T mElr) —E—R& ZT—mEF
Contracted but not provided for, BATAERESE  MBREMNIZRS
net of deposit paid
- Purchase of intangible assets -BERVEE 2,638 -

In addition, pursuant to the various joint venture agreements
entered into by the Group and various independent third parties
on 19 September 2014, the Group had committed to inject capital
totalling RMB45,900,000 (approximately HK$56,667,000) for the
formation of various companies which will be 51% owned by the
Group. The principal activities of these companies include, but
are not limited to, the provision of supply chain management
services, corporate management consultation and goods and
technology import and export business. Since certain conditions
under the terms of the joint venture agreements did not fulfill,
the commitment to inject the capital totalling RMB45,900,000
(approximately HK$56,667,000) was released on 19 March 2015
and did not exist at the reporting date. The management is still
in the process on negotiating the terms with various independent
third parties regarding the formation of various companies.

AN REAEEEAABLIE=TR
ZE-WFEANATABILZTRAE
BhERE  AEEABIEEARE
45,900,0007T (#) 78 #56,667,0007T) JA
HEBAAEREAS1%NTRANF © %
ERNAMTIEEBEEBETIRANEHE
EREERY  CEEBRBEAURENK
R L QXK - BREEREHEE
RTHETHRELREN  BEIEHR
AR #45,900,0007T (4% %56,667,000
T HEAZEER -_S—RE=A+BE
BHRUENBREBBY A FE -EBEE
DERETRANBLE = FEFAZETR

AR
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COMMITMENTS (Continued) 31.

Commitments under operating leases — the Group as lessee
The Group leases certain premises under operating lease
commitments. Leases for premises are negotiated for terms
ranging from 1 to 3 years.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had total future
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases
falling due as follows:

REBERE (B)
REBNRE-AEBFERAREA
AEERBREMNAZERETYE -
MERN DA EIEMNBPETER -

RBEEHR  AKEREIABRELE
AR AT EE 2 R RFEBOMN
AWM

Group
rEH
2015 2014
(In HK$°000) (LB TTRENN) —E-FE —T-mEF
Within one year R—FRA 9,501 566
In the second to fifth years inclusive RE_FEFAFA
(BREEEMF) 7,239 —
16,740 566
RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 32. ARG

In addition to the transactions/information disclosed elsewhere
in these consolidated financial statements, during the year, the
Group had the following transactions with related parties:

BREZEGAMBRRAMBIREL
X5/ &R FR - AEE R
VY TMIRS

Group
r&EE
2015 2014
(In HK$'000) (LB TFTREN) —2-58% —T-mF
Related party relationship Nature of transaction
B L E% RHEME
Key management personnel Salaries, allowances
(other than directors) and benefits in kind 1,785 806
TEEBAR(EEHRIN) }o o RZEREYMGE
Contribution to defined
contribution schemes
RE BTGB 2 1% 31 40
1,816 846
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33. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES 33. HEWBAH
On 1 August 2014, the Group disposed of its entire interest in R-ZE—NWENR—HF AEEBER
Beaming to an independent third party at an aggregate cash BeamingM 2 R HE T —BHBILE
consideration of HK$3,000,000. The details are as follows: =} ' #3R& K EARB%3,000,0007T °
FEWT
(In HK$'000) (LOBBFTREN)
Net assets disposed of: HEFEE:

Property, plant and equipment MmE - BEERE 220

Trade receivables e AR 3K 9,216

Prepayment, deposit and receivables BRNRIE - e REKR 2,389

Cash and cash equivalents RekReEED 109

Trade payables FETBR 3K (2,884)

Accruals and other payables st ERAREMEMNRK (6,495)

Tax payable FERTIE (243)
Net assets value FEEE 2,312
Non-controlling interests RS (1,217)
Release of exchange reserve BOER RIS (136)
Goodwill derecognised BUHER 2 1,235
Gain on disposal & 2 W 806
Consideration KE 3,000
Satisfied by: TRAER:

Cash b 3,000
Analysis of net inflow of cash and cash equivalents in respect of AFRLENRBRARAELZEARELE
disposal of the subsidiaries is as follow: BYRINFESTMT :

(In HK$’000) (L ESTorBEN)
Cash consideration HeNE 3,000
Cash and cash equivalents in subsidiaries HEWBRARIZRERBEEEY

disposed of (109)
Net inflow of cash and cash equivalents HEEE RS RREEEY

on disposal A E 2,891

4
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L B W )



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMEN
®woHm oR KO

34. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND

POLICIES
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34.

The Group’s principal financial instruments comprise bank

balances and cash, available-for-sale financial assets and loan

from a director. The main purpose of these financial instruments

is to raise and maintain finance for the Group's operations. The
Group has various other financial instruments such as trade and
other receivables and payables, which arise directly from its

business activities.

The accounting policies for financial instruments have been

TREREEREREE

AEEZTZSRIABERTERK
Ae  AHLESHEEREFEN - %
FEMIAZIZENEREERER
ARBzEEREE ARBRAFENE
W B A N L A MR A B AN Rz E A
SRTE BERRBEXKEDY -

FRSBTAZEHBRERRTIE

applied to the line items below: 15 :
Available-for-sale
financial assets Loans and receivables
at fair value at amortised cost
BATESIRL RRERRIER
L ELHER LERREYFE
Group and Company Group Company
ARERALT A%E O
2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014
(In HK$'000) (WEETFLAENL) “%-1f -ZEZ-m% -F-1f -3-0% ZF-1f _Z-Q%
Financial assets SREE
Available-for-sale financial assets MRHESREE - 15,014 = 5 = =
Trade and other receivables EREST R At RN - - 385,248 53,016 2,087 30573
Due from subsidiaries EUHBARZZE - - - - 294,681 26,005
Bank balances and cash RikEBRRRS - - 281,26 86,675 172,678 84,696
Total Bt - 15014 666494 139691 469,446 141274
Financial liabilities
at amortised cost
REERRSIR ERER
Group Company
rE NN
2015 2014 2015 2014
(In HK$'000) (W EETFTEEL) “%-1% “5-pf ZE-1% “3-mE
Financial liabilities tREE
Trade and other payables EREHRAMERNK 333,340 18,258 200 630
Due to subsidiaries ERHBARZZE - - 2,395 2,406
Loan from a director EZEX 2,469 2564 = =
Total At 335,809 20822 2,595 3,036
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34. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND

POLICIES (Continued)

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments are
credit risk, interest rate risk and liquidity risk. The Group does
not have any written risk management policies and guidelines.
However, the board of directors generally adopts conservative
strategies on the Group’s risk management and limits the Group’s
exposure to these risks to a minimum.

Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that one party to a financial instrument
will cause a financial loss to the other party by failing to discharge
an obligation. The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to
trade receivables and bank balances.

A detailed discussion of the Group’s credit risk in respect of trade
receivables is set out in note 22 to the consolidated financial
statements. The Group trades only with recognised, creditworthy
third parties. Management closely monitors all outstanding debts
and reviews the collectability of trade debtors periodically. The
maximum exposure to credit risk is represented by the carrying
amount of each financial asset in the consolidated statement of
financial position. The Group does not hold any collateral over
these assets.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had a concentration
of credit risk as 77% (2014: 42%) and 96% (2014. 66%) of the total
trade receivables were made up by the Group’s largest customer’s
and the five largest customers’ outstanding balances respectively.

The Group’s bank balances are placed with credit-worthy banks in
Hong Kong and in the PRC.

Interest rate risk

The Group’s exposure to cash flow interest rate risk mainly arises
from the fluctuation of the prevailing market interest rate on the
bank balances. However, the management considers the Group’s
exposure to such interest rate risk is not significant as bank
balances are all short-term in nature. No sensitivity analysis is
prepared as the fluctuation and impact is considered immaterial.

Liquidity risk

Management of the Group aims at maintaining sufficient level of
bank balances and cash to finance the Group’s operations and
expected expansion. The Group’s primary cash requirements
include payments for operating expenses and additions or
upgrades of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets.

SKY FOREVER SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT GROUP LIMITED (FE#E#EEEERAR)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMEN

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

The undiscounted contractual maturity profile of the Group’s
financial liabilities at the end of the reporting period, based on the

= A8 M B ® Rk B &

Year ended 31 March 2015 &RE_F—HFE=H=+—HILFE

34.

ctREREERSREE (B)
RBEERER (&)

REEHR AEE 2 ERABEZ R
BENZAHEMDBRERAEEN RS

earliest date on which the Group is required to settle the financial HAREANSREBEZEEHHETE -
liabilities at the end of the reporting period is summarised below: i N
Group AEE
2015 2014
2%-1f “R-RE
Total Total
Total  contractual Total  contractual
carrying undiscounted On Qver carying - undiscounted On Qver
valug  cash flow demand 1 year value  cash flow demand 1 year
alRKR SRR
(I HK$ 000) (ERTTAEL) BESE ReRAR REXE BB-F REEE ReRgE  RBW He-f
Trade and other payables EARRRAMENR 333,340 333,340 333,340 - 18,258 18,258 8,258 -
Loan from a director REER 2,469 2469 - 2469 2564 2564 2,564
335,809 335,809 333,340 2,469 2082 2082 18,258 2,564
Company A T
2015 2014
2%-1f “R-RE
Total Total
Total  contractual Total  contractual
carrying undiscounted On Qver carying - undiscounted On Qver
valug  cash flow demand 1 year value  cash flow demand 1 year
alRER SRR
(I HK$ 000) (ERTTAEL) BESE ReRAR REXE BB-F REEE ReRgE  RDBW He-f
Other payables EHER 200 200 200 - 630 630 630 -
Due to subsidiaries ERHEATZHE 2,395 2,395 2,395 - 2406 2406 2,406 -
2,595 2,595 2,595 - 3036 3036 3036 -

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

The following presents the assets and liabilities measured at fair
value or required to disclose their fair value in these financial
statements on a recurring basis at the end of the reporting period
across the three levels of the fair value hierarchy defined in HKFRS
13 Fair Value Measurement, with the fair value measurement
categorised in its entirety based on the lowest level of input that
is significant to the entire measurement. The levels of inputs are
defined as follows:
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35. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued) 35.
e Level 1 (highest level): quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the Group can
access at the measurement date;

e |evel 2: inputs other than quoted prices included within Level
1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or
indirectly;

e level 3 (lowest level): unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability.

(a) Assets and liabilities measured at fair value

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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(a) EAFEIRZEERER

Group and Company

AEBRAADF
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
(In HK$°000) (LB T T BE ) E—H5 EZRA E=5
2014 —E-E

Assets measured at fair value BAFEFECEE
Available-for-sale financial assets At HE SR EE
(note 18) (B3E18)

= 15,014 =

During the years ended 31 March 2015 and 2014, there
were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 fair value
measurements, and no transfers into and out of Level 3 fair
value measurements.

(b) Assets and liabilities with fair value disclosure, but not
measured at fair value
The carrying amounts of the Group’s and the Company’s
financial assets and liabilities carried at other than fair value
are not materially different from their fair values as at 31
March 2015 and 2014.

36. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT 36.
The objectives of the Group’s capital management are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern and
to provide returns for shareholders. The Group manages its capital
structure and makes adjustments, including payment of dividend
to shareholders, return of capital to shareholders or issue of new
shares or sale of assets to reduce debts. No changes were made
in the objectives, policies or processes during the years ended 31
March 2015 and 2014.

SKY FOREVER SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT GROUP LIMITED (FE#E#EEEERAR)

BE_T-RFR-_T-—NE=A
=T HLEEE F-RHEF-
BRI NFEFECHLEER M
F =B A FEF B Y EEATEA
RE -

(b) BEAFEERULAFEFEZ
EEREBE
RZE-—RAER-ZZTE—NOE=AR
ZT—H BREMSHEIENRE
BrA ReBMEERAENER
BEEFENAFEZALTESTAZE
Ho

EXEHE
AEEZEAEERRRREAKER
RONFEREEREERE Y AMK
RRREDH AEEEEREERRER
fEHAZ - BEFMBRRERS - MR
REBERKBTHRNDIEEEENR
EE% -RBE-_T-—AFK_-_FT—@O
FZA=tT-HLEEERN AEEYLE
BERAR  BRIER







	封面
	香港聯合交易所有限公司（「聯交所」）創業板（「創業板」）之特色
	目錄
	公司資料
	主席報告
	管理層討論及分析
	董事及高級管理層
	董事會報告
	企業管治報告
	獨立核數師報告
	綜合全面收益表
	綜合財務狀況報表
	財務狀況報表
	綜合權益變動表
	綜合現金流量表
	綜合財務報表附註
	封底

